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Orders of Reference

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the

Senate, Thursday, October 8, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,

. The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to examine and report to the
Senate from time to time on any matter relating to
foreign and Commonwealth affairs generally, on any
matter assigned to the said Committee by the Rules
of the Senate, and, in particular, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, on any matter concerning
the Pacific area with particular emphasis on the
position set out in the policy paper “Foreign Policy
for Canadians: Pacific”;

That the said Committee be empowered to engage
the services of such counsel and technical, clerical

23047—1}

and other personnel as may be required for the
foregoing purposes, at such rates of remuneration
and reimbursement as the Committee may deter-
mine, and to compensate witnesses by reimburse-
ment of travelling and living expenses, if required,
in such amount as the Committee may determine;
and

That the Committee, before assuming any financial
obligations in connection with the said examination
and report, submit to the Standing Committee on
Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts a budget
for approval setting forth in reasonable detail the
forecast of expenses to be incurred.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.



Minutes of Proceedings

Wednesday, October 21, 1970.
(6))

Pursuant to notice, the Standing Senate Committee on
Foreign Affairs met in camera at 10:30 a.m. this day to
deal with anumber of administrative matters.

Present: The Honourable Senators Aird (Chairman),
Belisle, Carter, Fergusson, Haig, Hastings, Laird, Pearson
and Robichaud—(9).

In atiendance: Peter Dobell of the Parliamentary
Centre for Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade.

On motion of Senator Haig, Resolved that a Steering
Committee be appointed, comprised of Senators Aird,
Grosart, Robichaud and ex officio Martin and Flynn.

On motion of Senator Fergusson; Resolved that 800
copies in English and 300 copies in French of the Com-
mittee’s proceedings be printed.

On motion of Senator Belisle; Resolved that the Steer-
ing Committee be authorized, subject to confirmation by
the Committee, to negotiate contracts and agreements for
goods and services reasonably and necessarily required
for the purposes of the Committee.

On motion of Senator Robichaud, the Chairman (Sena-
tor Aird) was authorized to report to the Senate that this
Committee has expended, during the past two sessions
while studying Canada-Caribbean Relations, the sum of
$69,925.93 and that expenses for printing not yet account-
ed for will amount to approximately $7,000.00.

The Chairman was authorized to submit to the Senate
Committee on Internal Economy and Contingent
Accounts a budget of expenses to be incurred in connec-
tion with this Committee’s hearings respecting the Pacific
Area.

Discussion following respecting the Committee’s future
programme.

At 11:00 a.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of
the Chairman.

ATTEST:
E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.

Tuesday, October 27, 1970
2)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Standing
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met this day at 4:00
p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Aird (Chairman),
Bélisle, Cameron, Carter, Croll, Eudes, Fergusson, Hast-
ings Laird Nichol Pearson Robichaud Sullivan White.
14

In attendance: Mr. Peter Dobell Director, Parliamen-
tary Centre for Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade; and
Mr. Bernard Wood, Special Assistant to the Committee.

The Committee commenced its study of the Pacific
Area.
The Chairman introduced the witness:
Dr. Lorne Kavic
Lecturer in International Politics,
University of British Columbia.

The witness was thanked for this contribution to the
Committee’s study.

At 5:40 pm. the Committee adjourned to Wednesday,
November 4, 1970 at 2:00 p.m.

ATTEST:
Denis Bouffard,
for E. W. Innes.

Clerk of the Committee

Note: A map of the Pacific Area is appended to this
day’s proceeding.



The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs

Evidence

Ottawa, Tuesday, October 27, 1970

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs
met this day at 4 p.m.

Senator John B. Aird (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, it is now past the
hour of 4 o’clock and I see a quorum, and I therefore call
the meeting to order.

It is an unexpected and unusual surprise for all of us
here today to see our former distinguished colleague the
honourable Norman “Larry” MacKenzie in the back row,
and on behalf of all of you I wish to extend him a most
hearty welcome.

Hon. Senators: Hear, hear.

The Chairman: The other piece of news I would like to
give you is that unfortunately our secretary, Eric Innes,
suffered a mild heart attack last Friday. I was speaking
to him about half an hour ago—he is in the hospital—so
you will gather that he is progressing very well and
expects to be back on duty quite soon. We have today in
his place Mr. Bouffard and I welcome him on behalf of
the committee.

Honourable senators, this is the first hearing of our
new inquiry or study into Canadian relations with the
countries of the Pacific area. As you know, our terms of
reference are very broad, and we are certainly talking
about a vast and varied geographic region. For purposes
of definition, I might point out at this stage that we will
not be giving direct attention to the United States, the
Latin American countries bordering on the Pacific Ocean,
or to the Soviet Union.

Even after these exclusions, however, the term “Pacific
area” obviously encompasses a great deal. In many
senses, this is not a single area at all; the differences
among the countries often outweigh the similarities.
There is, however, a strong case from a Canadian point
of view for examining these countries together. The
Prime Minister has aptly spoken of “our Pacific fron-
tier”—a phrase that suggests the rapidly expanding con-
sciousness of the whole area among Canadians.

For this first meeting we have been very fortunate in
obtaining an expert witness whose knowledge extends
not only to all the territories, but also to the many issues
involved in these relationships. Dr. Lorne Kavic is a
Canadian scholar who is at present working, under a
Canada Council grant, on a two-volume work on Canada
and the Pacific. Just prior to this meeting he advised me
that he has completed volume I at this stage.

Dr. Kavic received his master’s degree in International
Relations from the University of British Columbia in
1960 and then served for a year with the Department of

External Affairs. He left to take up a Commonwealth
scholarship at the Australian National University, and
received his Ph.D. from that institution in 1966. Subse-
quently he has published a book on India’s defence policy
and has taught history at Simon Fraser University.

All members of the committee have received a copy of
Dr. Kavic’s wide-ranging paper entitled “Canada and the
Pacific: Prospects and Challenges”. I might mention that
this paper was originally commissioned jointly by the
Canadian Institute of International Affairs and the
Department of External Affairs. It provided the focus for
discussion at the joint conference held last February as
part of the Government’s foreign policy review.

Now that the official policy paper on the Pacific has
been published, I am sure that Dr. Kavic will be keen to
elaborate on the issues brought out in his stimulating
paper. His initial remarks will, as usual, be followed by
questioning. In that regard I have asked Senator Laird
and he has consented to lead the questioning, after which
time the meeting will be open in the usual way to all
honourable senators. I have discussed the format with Dr.
Kavic, and when I asked him how long he would be, he
said “I would be just as long as you wish me to be.” I
believe that under the circumstances and today when we
are dealing with such a broad area, it would probably be
advisable to take as much benefit from his knowledge as
possible and therefore I have set him an objective of half
an hour, and he will be more or less in that
neighbourhood.

Dr. Kavie, you are most welcome here today and we
look forward to your remarks with great interest.

Dr, Lorne Kavic, Lecturer in International Politics,
University of British Columbia: Honourable senators, as
you can see, I have come well stocked for the purposes of
expanding at any length on my views. Like most aca-
demics, I have a facility for speaking at great length, if
necessary; also I hope I have the ability to be relevant
and brief.

For the purpose of my approach today I will proceed
on the basic assumption that you are either familiar with
the views that I have set forth in the “Behind the Head-
lines” paper and/or have read the background govern-
ment papers on the basically similar subjects. For that
purpose, therefore, I do not intend to regurgitate precise-
ly what I have there. However, I do hope to expand on
those views, providing a little more information upon
which, hopefully, more pertinent questions can be posed,
as well as to provide a certain amount of background.

I think it is most important to appreciate that Canada’s
interests, policies and relationships in the Pacific rim
have been developing for a very long period of time,
depending on the particular issue and area discussed.
Although interest is more recent, certainly at the public
level and, from a dramatic point of view, from the Gov-
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ernment level, you must appreciate that trade contacts go
back several centuries, immigration certainly goes way
back beyond that, if one accepts the Polar thesis of the
Indian migrations. As far as issues of strategic conse-
quence are concerned, these certainly pre-date the turn-
ing of this century. As far as aid and related subjects are
concerned, you must appreciate that missionaries pro-
ceeded to make a contribution, in a peripheral aid sense,
in the Pacific rim from approximately the middle of the
last century. And there were certain private aid mea-
sures as well as sporadic government emergency mea-
sures which predated the formulation of precise foreign
aid or international development policies.

From the standpoint of immigration, Canada has, of
course, a considerable legacy with which to cope. Canada
is a product of immigration, but although only a modest
portion of our existing population, exclusive of the Indi-
ans, originates in the trans-Pacific rim, nonetheless the
Asiatic aspect of this immigration was a considerable
problem for Canadian governments and a feature which
certainly affected our relationships with the governments
of British India, China and Japan, down to the outbreak
of the Second World War.

Although the actual numbers of immigrants involved
was relatively small and many of these did not stay in
Canada permanently, they created a considerable prob-
lem in the Province of British Columbia, where the
impact was most immediate in the human sense, and
constituted a considerable dilemma for Canadian gover-
ments which were anxious not to do anything which
might adversely affect Imperial relationships with China
and Japan, and exacerbate Britain’s increasing problems
in a steadily more turbulent India.

The attitude taken by the Government in this respect
reflected a consideration of power relationships and a
variable attitude towards trade, and a concern, of course,
for the primacy of the federal sphere from the standpoint
of disallowing unacceptable provincial legislation.

Basically speaking, China was impotent; Imperial rela-
tionships with China were not regarded as a particularly
sensitive issue; and, accordingly, measures were adopted,
beginning with the so-called head tax which was
increased from $50 to $100 and, ultimately, to $500, and
subsequent imposition of a variety of restrictions, cul-
minating in the Exclusion Act of 1923, which only
approximately a dozen Chinese were ultimately able to
surmount.

The attitude of the Chinese government to these mea-
sures was extremely sensitive, but the Canadian Govern-
ment did not reveal more than a passing concern for
the problems or the viewpoints of an impotent China, and
the Government was quite prepared to sacrifice trade to
this question.

The problem of British India was more ticklish in view
of the fact that this was part of the Empire, it was the
so-called jewel of the Empire, and the problems which
the British Indian Government was facing, from the turn
of the century on, caused a sensitivity in Canadian Gov-
ernment circles, desirous not to exacerbate that problem;
the degree to which Canadian measures could exacerbate
the British position in India was reflected by the reper-

cussions in India in the aftermath of the famous
“Komagata Maru” incident of 1914.

Ultimately, a combination of co-operation from the
Government of India and some rather neat and subtle
types of legislation by the Canadian Government, includ-
ing the so-called continuous voyage principle—which
prevented Indians from moving to Canada at a time
when there was no possibility of a continuous voyage
from their Indian land of origin—subsequently coped
with the problem quite adequately.

As far as the Japanese were concerned, this was a
particularly sensitive issue. The Japanese were very
proud; but fortunately they were not particularly con-
cerned with migration, and when Japanese migrants did
indicate an interest in the so-called eastern Pacific, much
of this initially went to the Hawaiian region and to the
western United States. When the problem did appear in
Canada, fortunately the Japanese government adopted a
self-imposed restrictive policy, ultimately augmented by
a receptiveness to Canadian sensitivities on this score,
culminating in the gentleman’s agreement of 1907, and
subsequent measures which rendered the application of
that agreement even more restrictive.

On the eve of the Second World War the ultimate
product of this policy was that Canada had basically
been maintained as a white man’s preserve, and there
was certainly no intention on the part of the Government
to let the walls down easily. Prime Minister King reiter-
ated that this was also to be the post-war policy in his
famous statement of May 1, 1947.

However, ultimate developments in Asia rendered this
policy imprudent, to say the least, and the result was the
establishment of quotas and, ultimately, subsequent
concessions leading down to the present immigration
legislation, whereby the emphasis is upon the criteria of
skills.

The discrimination of the present policy on the basis of
skills, however, does effectively exclude the majority of
Asians. It is completely at odds with the view advanced
by some people, like Professor S. Chandrasekhar of
Baroda University in India, until recently a member of
the Indian cabinet, who enunciated in one impassioned
book the belief that “empty” lands like Canada could not
justify their emptiness while people were starving in
crowded lands elsewhere.

The policy, of course, is also not pleasing to Australi-
ans and New Zealanders, conditioned to relatively unre-
stricted access to a sister “white” dominion, and especial-
ly to those unable to surmount the points system, when
there are no similar restrictions on the emigration of
Canadians to Australia and New Zealand. The proportion
of immigration visas issued and refused from applications
received in the Pacific area indicates the degree that one
can expect a certain amount of ingratitude. As a result,
this policy is not going to ingratiate Canada to the many
prospective immigrants who are failing and will in future
fail to gain acceptance. Local agitators unfriendly to
Canada will, in my opinion, continue to possess oppor-
tunities to embarrass Canada’s local image, and Canada
has little choice but to accept this as a normal hazard of
contemporary international politics.
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© The skills bias of the new policy must also be viewed
from the standpoint of the attitudes of governments in
the area, especially in those countries with developing
economies relevant to the so-called brain drain. Is the
drain serious? Is it resented by local government and
inimical to Canadian diplomatic goals in the region, in
view of Canada’s stated commitment to providing devel-
opment assistance to regional economies? Is the new
policy doing these countries a disservice by accepting and
even seeking out diverse skills, especially of a manageri-
al, professional and technical nature?

The answers would seem to vary from country to
country, with a general sensitivity by governments to the
exodus of professional, managerial and technical person-
nel, and an attitude varying between acceptance and
active encouragement by most Asian governments of the
emigration of persons trained in the liberal arts, due to a
general surplus of such skills resulting from a combina-
tion of educational traditions, bad planning and the dif-
ficulty of accurately forecasting future needs.

The emigration of educated unemployables is desirable
in certain countries from the standpoint of precluding the
development of a politically volatile unemployed or
underemployed educated class. The exodus of skills to
Canada is causing some concern in Australia, with par-
ticular criticism of Canadian recruitment practices pro-
voked by the loss of airline pilots from Qantas to C.P.A.
in 1966.

Senator Belisle: Mr. Chairman, could we ask the doctor
to go a little slower? It is so important, I would like it to
sink in.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Senator Belisle.
Would you be guided accordingly?

Dr. Kavic: I certainly will. The exodus of skills to
Canada is causing some concern in Australia, with par-
ticular criticism of Canadian recruitment practices being
provoked by the loss of airline pilots to CPA in 1966,
forcing the cancellation of Qantas’ weekly Sydney-Auck-
land-Mexico City run in August of that year, and the
highly publicized exodus of hundreds of public school
teachers since 1965 with the strong encouragement of
British Columbia, Ontario, and Alberta education
authorities. In the former case, some Australians voiced
the view that CPA was “stealing” pilots, and thereby
contravening the ‘“gentlemen’s agreement” between the
two countries precluding official recruitment.

Such was the concern of Donald Shand, founder and
chairman of East-West Airlines of New South Wales that
he suggested a full university course for pilot training
with a doctorate of aviation degree. In the latter case, the
British Columbia recruiting drive in 1967 prompted pro-
tests from Australian educators, and the success of the
Toronto recruiting team in 1967 provoked expressions of
alarm and dismay. Mr. W. B. Russell, Assistant Director
of the Victoria state education department was quoted in
January 1968 as stating that teacher recruiting tactics by
Canadian provinces were against the spirit of Common-
wealth education, and as warning that “it is very likely
that this matter will be raised by Britain or Australia

next month at a Conference on Commonwealth Co-opera-
tion in Education to be held in Lagos.” The New South
Wales Minister of Education, Mr. Cutler, has also been
very critical. The sense of grievance, however, is mode-
rated by recognition that Australia is drawing heavily
from other countries including Canada, to meet its own
needs, that much of the human loss is short term, and
that Australia’s developing economy will eventually pro-
vide the opportunities presently drawing most profession-
als to Canada.

The “brain drain” from New Zealand is far greater
than from Australia—to which much of it goes—and the
loss of trained people like teachers and dentists, which
has seriously affected the School of Dentistry at the
University of Otago, is regretted but not resented. It is
generally appreciated that the local economy does not
now provide, nor is likely to be able to provide, useful
opportunities for many skills attractive to young New
Zealanders, and that a certain overseas drain is inevita-
ble. Consolation is also being drawn from the influx of
Canadian immigrants which roughly offsets quantitative-
ly the loss to Canada.

The attitude of Fijian officials generally coincides with
that held in New Zealand—regret at the departures of
skilled young people, tempered by a realization that local
opportunities for many of them are limited.

The desire for migration is strong in Hong Kong,
where the ever present threat of communist Chinese
occupation inhibits long term economic planning, with
even technical and scientific graduates unable often to
find suitable employment, and is implicitly encouraged
by authorities acutely conscious of the potential danger
of an under-employed and unemployed educated Chinese
element.

The pressures are somewhat less in Singapore, where
the Government is energetically exploiting geography
and relative security from external aggression to estab-
lish industries capable of affording employment for the
tiny nation’s expanding and increasingly skilled popula-
tion. But the economic future remains sufficiently uncer-
tain as to motivate at least some Singaporeans into seek-
ing security through emigration—not least those students
privately trained abroad and not accorded the preference
in employment provided by the Government to its spon-
sored Columbo Plan students.

The South Korean government, engaged in industriali-
zation, appears to be well disposed to emigration of sur-
plus skills, such as mining.

Japan, the most developed country in the region, would
seem to be able to suffer the loss of a wide spectrum of
skilled persons as the absorptive capacity of the economy
loses some momentum, but the Government is exercising
great caution in giving clearance to prospective emi-
grants to Canada and elsewhere, mindful of the ease with
which an uncontrolled flow could resurrect latent fears
of the “yellow peril,” and exacerbate its international
relations, and desirous therefore of ensuring a successful
transplantation of Japanese nationals creditable to their
homeland and unprovocative to their new countries of
adoption.
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The attitude of the Philippines government towards
the emigration of skills would appear to be favourable,
despite the fact that such skilled persons as nurses—who
figure prominently among the emigrants to Canada—are
not in surplus supply in the country.

Such signs of sensitivity to Canadian economic and
social conditions are both prudent and farsighted. That
Canadians have become more receptive towards Asiatics
as residents is suggested by the acclaim that has been
accorded in the fifties and sixties to athletes and painters
and recently to Seiji Ozawa, the much heralded conduc-
tor of the Toronto Symphony Orchestra, and to many
others. It has been demonstrated by the election in 1957
of Douglas Jung as Canada’s first parliamentarian of
Asiatic origin, and of Peter Wing as Mayor of Kamloops
in 1968, for another first. It has been evidenced in the
appointment of George D. Wong as a governor of Simon
Fraser University, of Arthur Wakabayashi as Deputy
Provincial Treasurer of Saskatchewan, and of numerous
persons of Asiatic origin to the staffs of public schools
and universities, including Dr. S. Wah Leung as the first
head of the School of Dentistry of the University of
British Columbia.

Perhaps the most telling point in Canada’s favour is
the popularity of Canada to prospective Asian emigrants
in an age of mass and instant communications quick to
expose discriminatory practices and “incidents”. It ap-
pears beyond doubt that the predominately-Caucasian
Canadian people have developed a considerable maturity
of outlook on issues of race, religion and creed since
World War 1I, attributable to a combination of conscience,
a buoyant economy, a growing awareness of the impor-
tance to Canada’s future of the non-white world, and the
fact that Canada’s Asiatic population continues to remain
small in relation to Canada’s total population, is more
widely distributed geographically than in pre World
War II days, and is no longer heavily concentrated in the
unskilled and semi-skilled sectors of the labour force.

But prejudice is a deeply rooted emotion, which tends
to be latent rather than visible during times of full
employment and prosperity such as Canada has
experienced generally since 1945, but which has always
surged with variable aggressiveness when employment
prospects in particular restrict. Organized labour, histori-
cally the antagonist of Asiatic immigration in British
Columbia, remains sensitive to the inflow of persons
which “threaten” local wages, employment prospects, and
vested union interests. Thus, reports in July 1967 that
Canadian mining companies were considering importing
South Korean miners to help relieve an acute shortage of
underground labour provoked the charge that the propos-
al meant ‘“coolie labour”, having no skill and unable to
meet the English language working-knowledge require-
ments “essential” underground. The employment of a
handful of Japanese technicians on the joint Japanese-
Canadian pulpmill mentioned at Skookumchuck in south-
eastern British Columbia sparked protests from officials
of another British Columbia union loecal that its members
were qualified and available and should have priority in
employment.

Monopolistic self-interest also figures in the rigorous
screening foreign-trained doctors, dentists, and other

professionals have to overcome in order to practise their
skills in Canada, and there are rising indications among
public school and university teaching bodies that re-
cruitment of non-Canadians is acceptable only to the
point where it endangers the employment prospects of the
native Canadian product. For cultural and historical rea-
sons the non-white immigrant will be more exposed to
employment discrimination than the Australian or New
Zealander.

Canada is predominantly a Caucasian society, and few
Canadians would privately admit that they do not wish it
to remain so. This fact will undoubtedly continue to
underline the official policy on immigration, however that
policy may be represented publicly.

In the field of trade Canadians and other based in
Canada have always envisaged the development of the
so-called fabled lands of the east as a market for Canadi-
an products, or with Canada being a sort of through
highway for the marketing of European products.

Canada established its first trade representative in
Australia in 1895. This was the first permanent full-time
commercial agent of Canada appointed anywhere in the
world. Other representatives were appointed in Japan in
1904, in China in 1906, and in New Zealand in 1910, and
between the world wars there were several Southeast
Asian posts established. As of 1938 the trans-Pacific rim
took 9 per cent of Canada’s total exports, and provided
just under 5 per cent of its imports. This represented a
drop of 14 per cent in the total two-way trade since 1928,
and this was primarily due to the unstable conditions
prevailing in the Far East during the period of the 1930s.
During this period Southeast Asia took an average of 6
per cent of Canada’s regional trade. Oceania’s climbed
from one-third to two-thirds and East Asia’s fell accord-
ingly from two-thirds to one-third.

Since the Second World War there has been a signifi-
cant expansion in trade between Canada and her Pacific
neighbours. During the 1946 to 1968 period the two-way
trade of the countries of the South Pacific, Southeast and
East Asia rose from $132 million to $1,740 million, with a
sizable balance in Canada’s favour, imports increasing
from $45 million to $640 million, exports from $87 million
to nearly $1,100 million. The region continues to provide
an important market for industrial and secondary raw
materials, forest products and food products and a con-
venient source of textiles, automobiles, electrical goods,
light manufactures and other goods.

Most of the trade has been governed by trade agree-
ments providing for reciprocal British preferential tariff
and most favoured nation rates augmented by interna-
tional agreements governing grain, tea and sugar and
voluntary restraint arrangements on commodities
destructive to domestic Canadian industries, notably tex-
tiles. Canadian importers have also profited and been
adversely affected by general instability in Pacific Asia
and by regional underdevelopment,

Australia and New Zealand have developed into Cana-
da’s second most important market for fully processed
end products and Canada has enjoyed a particularly
favourable balance with Australia, which in recent years
has averaged approximately $100 million per annum.
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Southeast Asia has continued to constitute a rather
limited market for a variety of Canadian produce, due
partly to imperially motivated trading patterns, the dif-
ficulties of transportation and the turbulence in the area.

We have witnessed in our trading relations with Japan
a considerable concern on the part of the Government
that these relationships be facilitated by whatever method
possible. The results have certainly proven to be highly
beneficial in the past decade, in which Canadian export
trade, particularly in raw materials, has boomed consid-
erably. The import trade from Japan has not grown at
the same rate, resulting in considerable and beneficial
trade surplus in Canada’s accounts.

The People’s Republic of China, has continued to pro-
vide an interesting attraction for many Canadians
obsessed with the prospects of selling a toothpick to
every Chinese or putting a little wheat in his bowl every
day. The results were somewhat belatedly realized; it
was only in the late 1950s that the hope of recapturing
some of Canada’s significant inter-war wheat market in
China was realized and, of course, this continues to play
an important role in Canadian trading policies.

With regard to the specific details of this trade and the
manner in which it developed, in view of the time factor
I will not proceed to go into the detail. However, I am
certainly prepared to answer any questions on this
subject.

As far as the future prospects for the area are con-
cerned, the Pacific region is a rapidly developing trading
area with great potential. The gross national product in
Pacific non-communist countries doubled in the last ten
years and is expected to redouble by 1980.

Trans-Pacific trade represented 45 per cent of Trans-
Atlantic trade in 1967, but is growing more rapidly and
should quadruple by 1980 with the mutual trade of the
five developed Pacific nations, the United States, Japan,
Canada, Australia and New Zealand, estimated to be
increasing at an average rate of 15 per cent per annum.

The Australian economy is moving rapidly ahead.
Japan’s economic miracle shows few signs of weakening.
Mainland China should offer at least sporadic prospects
for a variety of items, hopefully and especially grain. The
market for diverse manufactures, capital goods and ser-
Vices is expanding rapidly with the development of
Southeast Asia, the increasing sophistication of Aus-
tralia’s import requirements and movements towards lib-
eralization of import control on manufactures in Japan.

These developments, coupled with the efforts of most
of the countries of the region to deliberately diversify
their export markets and sources of imports, presents the
Canadian salesmen with exciting opportunities. There is
also the added possibility that Canada could come to
Constitute some sort of a land bridge linking the Pacific
and Atlantic shipping lanes, although this remains
extremely speculative at this time.

The potential has provoked visions by Lionel Kent,
former Chairman of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce
Executive Council, that the Pacific rim area will become
Canada’s greatest single trade area, larger even than the
United States. Arnold Hean, a Burnaby lawyer and
member of the Pacific Basin Economic Consultative Com-

mittee, visualizes that the developing economies of the
Pacific area will have as profound an effect on Canada’s
second century as the development of trade in the Atlan-
tic community had on the first.

Canada is reaping considerable profits from Pacific
trading, the 1968 exports of $1,100 million representing
8.4 per cent of total exports and imports of $640 million
accounting for 5% per cent, with a resultant very im-
portant trade balance. Equally significant is the fact
that during the 1958 to 1968 decade Canadian exports to
Pacific countries increased by 417 per cent as against an
increase of 175 per cent to the world, while imports from
the Pacific rose over 300 per cent as compared to 138 per
cent from the world.

The future fruits of the expanding economies of the
Pacific region, however, will fall to the hands of those
who aggressively exploit the potential. There is no reason
for complacency on the part of the Canadian producer
based on geographical contiguity, Commonwealth prefer-
ences, past reputations or current quality of goods. The
grain grower must contend with peculiarities of diet,
world surpluses, extensive price cutting by other produc-
ing countries and new milling processes that require a
lower proportion of Canada’s high quality wheat.

The mining industry must acknowledge that Japanese
industry is deliberately seeking to diversify its sources of
industrial raw materials. The forest industry faces grow-
ing competition from local and foreign suppliers, espe-
cially in the important Australian and Japanese markets
and from new construction materials, such as steel house
frames, in Australia. The manufacturer must contend
with restrictive legislation limiting access to the booming
Japanese market, efforts by all Pacific states to stimulate
local secondary industry and vigorous competition from
European, American, Australian and Japanese suppliers.

The Canadian Federal Government continues to show
its traditional awareness of the trade potential of the
area, although this interest and awareness has been more
concerted of late.

The Minister Pepin’s visit to various countries in the
area following the Tokyo meeting of the Japan-Canada
Ministerial Committee in April 1969 was the first such
tour by a federal trade minister. A new trade office was
opened in Bangkok in February, 1969. Expenditure by
the department on Pacific trade promotion has considera-
bly increased in recent years and the Government is
becoming more active in participation in trade fairs in
the area. An increased security is provided for Canadian
exporters as a result of the replacement in October of
last year of the Export Credits Insurance Corporation by
the Export Development Corporation, possessed of a
more flexible power and twice as much capital with
which to insure, guarantee and finance Canadian exports
in almost any area of activity.

Provincial governments are showing more interest
through the establishment of local marketing or informa-
tion agencies in Japan. Canadian banks are becoming
increasingly active in the area, both for the purposes of
servicing expanding trade and also, of course, for pur-
poses of adding to their own profit margins. A particular
deficiency, however, in the Canadian private sector
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response to Pacific trade developments is noticeable in
the manufacturing sector, where Australia and New Zea-
land continue to receive considerable attention, bl}t the
other parts of Asia, with the notable belated exceptlon of
Japan, continue to be denied the attention which is war-
ranted by their very rapid growth rates. Thus only 14
Canadian firms exhibited at the first Asian Internationa'il
Trade Fair in Bangkok in 1966, only 20 Canadian busi-
nessmen attended the 1967 Canton Trade Fair, and oply
40, mostly buyers, were among the nearly 3,000 foreign
businessmen who attended the 1968 Canton Trade Fair.

In Pacific Asia outside of Japan, the dearth of Canadi-
an salesmanship has been particularly noticeable, and
it has been remarked upon by Canadian officials and
also by local residents of the area, such as, for example,
the National President of the Hong Kong Junior Cham-
ber of Commerce, who during a visit to Canada in 1967
contrasted the aggressive marketing of Australian firms
in the Crown colony with the tendency of Canadian
businessmen to rely on the Canadian Trade Commission-
er to drum up business for them. The cause of this
neglect by the Canadian manufacturer, would seem to lie
in the comfortable preference for concentrating upon
traditional markets in the United States and Europe, and
a tendency to rely upon the Canadian Trade Service to
drum up business for them in less familiar markets. The
continuance of such a posture, however, is manifestly
impractical in view of contemporary patterns of competi-
tive trade.

The private manufacturing sector must, therefore,
begin to manifest more vigour than hitherto, and also
consider the application of more ingenuous methods, not
excluding possible combinations for export purposes in
various products so as to offset promotional budgets lim-
ited partly by the modest to moderate size of many of
these companies. Canada must also, of course, recognize
that regional parties must sell if they are to buy, and
must proceed to consider the degree to which the con-
tinuance of various import restraints is inhibiting to the
sale of Canadian goods within the region, is contradictory
to the strong bilateral trade manifestations which are
evident throughout the region, and also is inimical to the
securement of the objects for which Canada is expending
hundreds of millions of dollars on so-called international
development aid.

In the field of investment, the flow of investments
between Canada and the lands located within and along
the western literal of the Pacific Ocean commenced over
70 years ago, although most of the activity has been since
the conclusion of the Second World War. While the scope
has been modest in comparison with that which has
taken place between the region and countries like the
United States, Britain and France, it has not been unim-
portant in economic terms, either to the investor or to
the recipient, nor has it escaped the impact of develop-
ment in politics.

The story of these investment flows reveals an early
and developing private Canadian confidence in and finan-
cial commitment to the economies of our neighbours
across the Pacific Oceanic mass, the degree to which
investors in these lands have been attracted by and con-
tributed to the expanding Canadian economy, and the

clearly mutual and beneficial results that have flowed
from these developments. According to data provided the
writer by the Dominion Bureau of Statistics, the book
value of Canadian direct investment in the countries
embraced by the study totalled $175 million at the end of
1965, and $190 million at the end of 1966, of which $154
million was in Australasia, principally Australia. This
distribution was heavily weighted in favour of the manu-
facturing and merchandising sector, with smaller quanti-
ties in mining and smelting, and distributed among
petroleum, utilities, financial and miscellaneous undertak-
ings.

In the years since the collation of those figures, how-
ever, Canadian activity throughout the Pacific rim has
steadily increased with new ventures, some of a multi-
$100 million variety, involving some of our larger mining
concerns, such as Sherritt Gordon, Inco and Placer Devel-
opment, and also the involvement of dozens of Canadian
companies in the manufacturing and, particularly, mining
boom that is being experienced by Australia.

With regard to Canada’s international development
assistance, one must appreciate that missionaries, who
have been active in the area from the middle of the 19th
century, constituted the thin edge of a belated official
policy. They represented a commitment on the part of
the private sector, which, although basically a Christian
response to the spiritual and material needs of people of
diverse cultures, none the less has steadily expanded in
scope, has been augmented from the beginning of the
second quarter of this century by the activities of an
increasing number of private aid agencies, and of course
since the Second World War on an increasingly larger
scale by the Canadian Government.

In the field of security issues, Canadians have been
particularly fortunate in that power political rivalries
prevailing in the Pacific area, down until the explosion of
Japanese power in 1941, were always inclined in our
favour, and did not require any more than sporadic inter-
est on our part. Although Canadians were not neutral in
thought with regard to the activities going on in China,
to aggressive Japanese policies or to imperial rivalries in
the Pacific, they were not called upon to make major
sacrifices.

The First World War brought a temporary alarm with
regard to German naval ships, but the post-war period
witnessed Canada’s only major military involvement in
the area through the highly contentious despatch of a
group of largely unwilling draftees to the Vladivostok
area, although the government was sufficiently sensitive
to popular opinion on this score to make it completely
clear to the commanders on the scene that under no
circumstances should any Canadian ever become a casu-
alty in the theatre. i

Prior to the Second World War Canada had an increas-
ing concern with the developments in Asia, but the
Canadian Government properly declined to undertake
initiatives at a time when other major powers with more
immediate interests were similarly declining. The com-
mitment in Hong Kong, of course, was a very contentious
one, and remains so today, but it maintained the policy
of a minimal Canadian military involvement in the
sector, and the fall of Japan came before Canada pro-
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ceeded to implement what was not a particularly positive
policy of military involvement in 1945.

With regard to the developments that have occurred
since Canada’s military involvement in Korea, in New
Guinea and in Indo-China, the facts of these issues are
well known, and the public and official attitudes on the
question need not be discussed at this time. The future,
however, holds out problems for Canada on matters of
regional security. Whether Canada can continue to main-
tain its relatively detached military posture in the area
remains a matter in point, which I have dealt with in
some degree in my paper, but which I will only expand
upon as and to the degree that interest is shown at this
time.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Dr. Kavic. As I
have sat here during the last 30 minutes in the chair and
listened to Dr. Kavic, the immensity of the challenge
facing this committee is becoming more and more clear
to me. I think that one of our major problems is going to
be trying to focus on certain areas. Dr. Kavic is obviously
a veritable encyclopedia of knowledge, on not only the
countries but the peoples thereof and relationships
involved.

I was interested, Dr. Kavie, that you reoriented the
headings from your article and started off with immigra-
tion and ended up with security. I presume there is no
forethought purpose in that. I would be hopeful that the
committee members will now participate in the question-
ing and I would ask Senator Laird if he would be kind
enough to lead.

Senator Laird: Dr. Kavic, let me profess to my igno-
rance on this whole subject and extend my personal
gratitude for your being here today. I am afraid this is
true of a lot of eastern Canadians, as you yourself have
said in effect in your article.

You can readily imagine that many of us here today
are concerned primarily with the recent recognition of
mainland China and its effect in several aspects. I should
like to steer clear of the political aspects and ask you
what you now foresee in connection with our trade with
China arising out of this recent recognition. Will it
increase and, if so, in what respect?

Dr. Kavic: On the basis of an assessment of the trade
benefits accruing to other governments which have recog-
nized China, there is no reason for optimism. One must
appreciate, as far as British recognition in 1950 was
concerned, that it was followed immediately by the
Korean War. Probably the only relevant example one can
draw upon in speculating on trade prospects for Canada
in relation to our recognition of the People’s Republic
would be the French recognition in 1964. French recogni-
tion was followed by a moderate trade increase over the
subsequent years, although France’s proportion of
increasing Chinese imports actually fell, which suggests
that the Chinese, at least down to the present time, have
carefully kept politics and economics separate.

Senator Laird: Therefore, frankly you do not anticipate
this will have a particularly favourable effect on our
trade relations with China?

Dr. Kavic: No, I do not unless the Chinese leadership is
particularly desirous of somehow weaning Canada into
advancing more vigorous support for their claim to the
Chinese seats in the United Nation’s Security Council and
General Assembly.

On the trade question, though, it should be noted that
Peking bought Ceylonese rubber in the early 1950s at
above market prices. Why they did it is difficult to ascer-
tain. This might suggest that the Chinese are not unwill-
ing to use trade as a matter of leverage in other matters
and that if they do feel that such leverage will cause a
more positive Canadian sponsorship of their position then
they might not fail to utilize it.

Senator Laird: Then might they not also consider the
closeness of our relationship with the United States of
America?

Dr. Kavic: Yes, there have been suggestions. I noticed
in the Globe and Mail this morning a report from Hong
Kong to the effect that the Chinese regard Canada as a
back door to the United States and that they are going to
push this to dismantle the embargo which has existed
against trade with China. I am afraid, however, that this
matter of trade as political leverage must remain rather
speculative. On the basis of what China has done in the
past, there is no reason for unwarranted optimism
regarding major Canadian economic benefit arising out of
a diplomatic exchange with China.

Canada has, of course, indicated interest in recognizing
China for some time, but during that period Australia
has actually been selling more wheat to Communist
China than we have. Australia, has taken a much harder
line on the Chinese question than we have, which indi-
cates, down to the present time, that the Chinese have
not attempted to use wheat as added leverage to get
Canada to hurry up and modify its position. Whether it
will now proceed to do so, Canada having conceded
recognition, remains to be seen.

Senator Laird: Before we leave the subject of China, I
was very interested to note on page 7 of your article that
you speak in terms of Chinese capital being in Canada
awaiting investment. Quite frankly, this was all news to
me. I had no idea that Chinese capital found its way to
Canada at all. Is that an extensive move?

Dr. Kavic: It comes primarily from Hong Kong and
southeast Asia and is heavily oriented towards British
Columbia real estate.

Senator Laird: You do make mention, just prior to
that, of capital coming in from Hong Kong, Australia and
New Zealand and then you go on to mention Chinese
capital. I got the impression that this must be Chinese
capital emanating from mainland China.

Dr. Kavic: I never meant that, no. It is strictly Hong
Kong and southeast Asia which provides the Chinese
capital. One must appreciate, of course, the family web
structure of Chinese business throughout southeast Asia
and that some of these individuals are immigrating and
bringing their money with them. Others who are immi-
grating and running down their holdings in Hong Kong
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and southeast Asia are gradually bringing their money
out. Yet others are proceeding to invest where the offer-
ings are good. In more recent months there has been a
counterflow of this capital back to Hong Kong as the
aftermath of the disturbances there.

Senator Laird: It is not in the same vein as the {-\meri-
can investments in Canada, where it comes in with the
idea of staying?

Dr. Kavic: It’s a definitely speculative aspect for Chi-
nese capital and they are mot interested in long-term
investments, but want a quick return. They have an
obsession with apartment buildings, high-priced homes
and increasingly, recreational land. They have shown no
interest in long-term investment of the type we associate
with other sources.

Senator Laird: You keep stressing the proposition that
we cannot have this imbalance of trade continue and that
somehow or other we have got to import more, because
we certainly do not want to cut down our exports.

Dr. Kavic: From certain countries, right.

Senator Laird: We have to think in practical terms,
being members of Parliament. In this connection in what
particular products would you suggest we could increase
our import to Canada?

Dr. Kavic: As far as southeast Asia is concerned, we
are going to have to increase imports in the labour
intensive field, of which textiles is an automatic core
item.

Senator Laird: Let us deal with textiles first. To be
very practical, how can we permit the importation of
more textiles without running our own textile business in
Canada?

Dr. Kavic: I think it is a question of ultimate economic
rationalization which I appreciate is a far-reaching and
complicated one.

Senator Laird: The trouble is that we have these philo-
sophical concepts thrown at us, but we have to be practi-
cal. Some of us, for example, are on the National Finance
Committee and we realize that money has to be raised.
Have you any products, other than the labour intensive
products, by which you think we could increase our
exports?

Dr. Kavic: A labour intensive is the prime product, as
far as southeast Asian economies are concerned, but I
think Japan is going to be gradually forced out of the
labour intensive field of textiles, footwear and such
things as that. Korea, Taiwan, and Southeast Asian coun-
tries will probably cut the Japanese out in these sectors,
and indeed Japan is proceeding to export these industries
to these countries to take advantage of lower labour
costs.

Senator Laird: That will change the present nature of
the particular trade pattern with Japan?

Dr. Kavic: Yes, I think the trade pattern with Japan is
well under way towards what we call consumer dura-

bles—in other words appliances, automobiles and things
of that nature—but the proportion of non-durable con-
sumer goods—such as footwear, textiles and this sort of
thing, which have been traditionally a strong feature of
Japanese export to this country—are in rather rapid
decline. This of course is opening up certain advantages
to the southeast Asian states, which means there will be
a redistribution among the importing countries which
will not necessarily involve a severe cut into our domes-
tic capacity. I recognize that at some point, of course,
there are just too many countries in this field of activity.
The recent troubles we have had with Mex.co are
suggestive that ultimately there is a limit t{o what the
Canadian economy can absorb; and if countries are going
to take an extremely resentful attitude towards us, obvi-
ously there is nothing we can do about it but accept the
consequences.

Senator Laird: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have
absorbed enough time.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Laird.

Senator Belisle: It seems to me desirable to inform the
committee that Dr. Kavic obtained his Ph. D. in Aus-
tralia. He must have travelled considerably. Seeing that
he mentioned mines and miners, would he venture an
opinion on what will happen to the Canadian uranium
market, from what has been found in Australia, the rich
deposits of uranium, much richer than we have in
Canada; and knowing that the world market has become
saturated, would you forecast an opinion as to what will
happen?

Dr. Kavic: On the basis of my investigation, I would
think that the best leverage that Canada has in the
Japanese uranium market is Japan’s deliberate policy of
diversifying its external sources of supply.

Senator Belisle: Would you say we could find other
markets?

Dr. Kavic: Japan is looking all over the place. South
Africa may well be Canada’s most serious competitor at
this stage—although Australia is certainly a dark horse
which undoubtedly is going to come on strong.

The Chairman: I do not wish to rebut the witness’s
answer, Senator Belisle, but within my own experience
the Japanese diversification in minerals in Australia is
most extensive.

Senator Belisle: Thank you.

Senator Carter: I would come back to the question
Senator Laird raised about balance of trade, which is
very much in Canada’s favour. In Dr. Kavic’s article, he
intimated that this problem was not going to go away,
that it is going to stay there and no matter how long we
postpone coming to grips with it, we will have to do it
some day. I would like him to expand on that. Senator
Laird has pointed out, whenever we come to grips with
it, we are going to ruin our textile industry in Canada. If
we extend this to other goods, like electrical goods and
rubber goods, from Japan, these industries in Canada
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will disappear. Does Dr. Kavic have something to say on
that, that we should go ahead with that or should we
phase out these industries in Canada?

Dr. Kavic: No, what I am suggesting is that I feel that
there are going to be eventually strong pressures in this
direction, that we have to perceive the very sensitive
nature of trade. We hear a great deal about multilateral-
ism in trade today. We hear an increasing amount about
bilateralism as well. The Japanese are constantly remind-
ing us of the imbalance in their trading account with us.
The Chinese are undoubtedly going to start reminding us
of the severe imbalance in our trading relationships with
them. Australia has $100 million a year trade imbalance
with Canada. And we ourselves are extremely sensitive
to our imbalance with the United States and we are
extremely sensitive to senatorial suggestions down there
that the automobile agreement should be re-negotiated,
etcetera.

So I think we must appreciate that multilateralism is
fine so long as the economies remain buoyant. We have
had a particularly good run, I think, in the 1950s and
1960s. Whether this is going to continue through the
1970s and into the 1980s is hard to say.

I would envisage the need to contemplate that major
problems are going to develop, which are going to have
somewhat of a domino effect. For example, the United
States has a trade imbalance with Japan, and Americans
are getting increasingly sticky on that basis. If the
Americans proceed to squeeze the Japanese, the Japanese
can be expected, even while perhaps making some sort of
compromise with the United States, to start squeezing the
countries with which it has an imbalance. That means
that these countries will probably have to re-assess the
imbalances that they have with the United States.

If Australia and Canada proceed to become heavily
dependent upon Japanese markets for their raw materi-
als, then the Japanese have extremely strong leverage for
arguing that they, rather than the United States, should
enjoy more of the fruits of their import markets as far as
manufacture are concerned.

So ultimately, if merely one of the parties among the
developed nations in the Pacific—Japan, Australia,
New Zealand, Canada and the United States—proceed
to start getting tough with somebody with which
it has a trade imbalance, this will have a domino type of
effect.

Senator Carter: I am still not quite clear. How do we
deal with this in Canada? Do we accept the inevitable,
that these enterprises will have to go, and do we proceed
now to phase them out, in a way in which the displaced
workers will be employed somewhere else? Or will we
just carry on, hoping that somehow or other we can keep
them alive, that we can give them a portion of the
domestic market and subsidize it. I would like to get your
mind on how some of these things are going to develop.

Dr. Kavic: I do not think Canadian resources are such
that we can proceed to contemplate a large scale subsidi-
zation, over a long term, of every particular sector which
proceeds to come under peril. I think there is need for
establishment of a long-term policy with regard to what

does constitute the national interest from the standpoint
of an economic base, and to proceed to take measures
either to develop or to restrict to a certain point those
sectors of the economy which are considered to be mini-
mally necessary.

The Chairman: If I might assist the witness in
endeavouring to answer your question, Senator Carter, I
think it is a very difficult question, because it requires,
perhaps, a political opinion, in reply, from the witness.
‘What I think the witness has given to this meeting are
the facts of the situation, and he has indicated that in his
opinion this gap obviously is there and his opinion is that
it will be a closing one rather than an opening one.

Senator Carter: I appreciate that, but we have to try to
work out some recommendation on some of these things.
I would like to get some guidance on it. Staying with this
question, supposing that we say that our textiles and
other goods are expendable and that they disappear, and
then we buy from abroad, and you are saying we pay for
it. It is a bit hypocritical that we send out aid to these
Asian countries, and then refuse to buy their products. If
you take the case of textiles, the Japanese have textiles
to sell and Taiwan has textiles to sell, and all those
developing countries have textiles to sell. What should be
our policy with respect to each one of them? Should we
bow to the pressure from Japan, or should we stick on to
what we are doing and continue Taiwan as a trader?

Dr. Kavic: We are probably going to have to pursue
this partly through multilateral channels, in other words,
the developed countries proceeding to show greater sen-
sitivity to the problems of the under developed countries,
in an attempt to rationalize on a multilateral basis the
marketing of the vital exports from the developing coun-
tries. And thus there is, for example, the possibility of
conceding to less developed countries preferred access for
their exports to the markets of developing economies, but
this necessarily is a multi-lateral problem which Canada
can certainly not resolve on a bilateral basis. Therefore,
if we take any unilateral initiative on this score, we are
going to be submerged. There is no question about it. Our
economy is just not large enough to cope with more than
a trickle of the potential flood of goods which could come
forth from the developing economies of the world. And,
therefore, even if we did, let us say, completely sacrifice
our footwear and our textiles and take the lumps, which
would be quite severe domestically in the short-term, this
would be no more than a finger in a collapsing dyke.

Canada could not possibly resolve this problem, or
contemplate resolving it, on its own standards. And I do
not think it should. As a major international trading
nation, Canada is much more sensitive than the United
States. Canadians are much more sensitive than Ameri-
cans, I think, and are more sensitive than many peoples
in the world of the necessity of give-and-take in interna-
tional economics. We have to give a great deal in order
to benefit. We are a major exporter and we are also a
major importer, and, therefore, we can appreciate the
sensitivities and problems of some of the developing
economies more than, say, the American Senate can. For
this reason we should utilize this sensitivity in pushing
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for serious consideration these measures on a multi-later-
al basis.

Senator Carier: You emphasize in your paper the
neglect on the part of the private sector in Canac}a,
particularly of manufacturers, to exploit the potential
around the Pacific. As you point out, we have set up an
export development corporation; we do have trade com-
missioners; we have the White Paper which was recently
published and which pinpointed this problem; what more
do you see that we should be doing in this area?

Dr. Kavic: The Government has been doing quite well:
historically it has shown an interest; since the second
world war it has expanded its trade services; the Depart-
ment of Trade and Commerce is a very efficiently-admin-
istered and well-run agency. But ultimately, of course,
the average individual trade commissioner just does not
have the promotional capabilities or knowledge with
which to proceed to deal with the marketing problems of
these diverse manufactures which Canadian industry
does have available.

To travel in southeast Asia is a remarkable experience
from the standpoint of noticing the nationality of the
businessmen one encounters there. You have to really
look to find private Canadian businessmen. But you will
see Australians flooding southeast Asia and east Asia.
Australian companies are spending large sums of money
in order to provide language training to rising executives
whom they send out to the fields and then bring back to
their head offices. They have an extremely energetic
approach. Perhaps necessarily so, because Australia is, of
course, much more involved in Asia than is Canada. It
has had some shocks with regard to the European and
Mid East scenes. And there is certainly a more positive
regional orientation on the part of Australia, which one
would not expect would be as true of Canada with its
several regional frontiers.

It is my opinion, however, that if Canadian business-
men proceeded to take even a partial example from the
Australians in this regard, the benefits would be reward-
ing, because a lot of Asian businessmen are extremely
sensitive. They much prefer to deal with the man from
whom they are going to be buying rather than dealing
through an intermediary such as a government trade
representative.

This holds true in any domestic economy and it cer-
tainly holds true in Asia, where most Canadian busi-
nesses are not regarded as being interested. If you are
not interested; if you just show up occasionally one day
with a brochure; who cares? You have to develop these
areas, and the only way you can develop them is to show
that you are willing to train people and to spend the
money for the purpose of competing with other very
aggressive individuals.

Senator Carter: Is the money spent on training govern-
ment money?

Dr. Kavic: No. It is spent by the companies involved.

Senator Carter: That is the whole point. The point of
my question, which was perhaps not too clear, was that
in spite of what the Government has done—and you said

that the Government has done very well—it has not had
any results. The results have been very poor. How can
we be more effective?

Dr. Kavic: Well, the one obvious measure would be for
the Canadian Government to offer some sort of better
incentives through tax concessions or something in that
order.

Senator Carter: To promote training?

Dr. Kavic: For the purpose of stimulating the private
Canadian manufacturing sector to go forth and to sell.

Senator Carter: Thank you.

Senator Nichol: Dr. Kavic, I have two questions that
are somewhat related. As you will gather from what I
have to say, I am from British Columbia.

I believe Senator Laird put his finger on the basic
dilemma we are dealing with here. I understand that this
year 37 per cent of the automobiles sold in Vancouver
are Japanese. This percentage is rising very rapidly. We
have generalized that all the manufacturing industries
are in eastern Canada, essentially; all of the ones that
compete with Japanese products are located in eastern
Canada. All of the export products are generated in
western Canada, however. Therefore, in the classic west-
ern argument, the western consumer is paying the price
for supporting these eastern Canadian protected
industries.

As the Government and as the Canadian people turn
towards the Orient and trade begins to grow at the rate
you are suggesting it will, it is my thought that that is
going to place a considerable strain on the economic
fabric of confederation.

My first question is do you think that is a correct
analysis?

Dr. Kavic: Yes, I do. There is no doubt that western
Canada has and will continue to have an extremely hefty
trade surplus on its trading account with the Pacific rim,
but that central Canada, which presently has a very
adverse trading account, will undoubtedly continue to
have it for reasons that the market for manufactures in
southeast Asia is highly competitive. In Japan it is highly
restrictive, and in Australia it will be limited ultimately
by the size of the market.

Senator Nichol: That brings me to my second question,
which is connected with the first. Talking about the
aggressive selling of Canadian products in and around
the Orient, or in the Pacific, my impression is that the
raw materials industries, pulp, timber, mining products
and so on, have been very aggressively sold by the
Canadian manufacturers over a long period of time. You
mentioned lumber sales in Australia, for example. The
whole thing has been very outward-looking. It is an
export trade. The lumber mills of British Columbia—I
think I am correct—could supply the annual needs of the
Canadian market with three weeks’ cut, which puts the
thing in perspective. The mills are cutting a million
board feet of timber a day. That timber has to go some-
where and that is where it goes.
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I suspect, and I want to ask you if you think this is
true, that one of the reasons the manufacturing compa-
nies of eastern Canada have been so lacking in aggres-
sion in selling into these markets is that they enjoy a
tariff-protected market which encourages people, by pro-
ducing artificial costs, to stay within their own bailiwick
and not bother going off and fiddling around in these
other markets. As long as the tariff protects them and to
some extent guarantees them an annual profit and an
annual sales volume which is not going to be attacked by
fore gn products, they will never find any need and go
and attack them in these foreign markets.

I would like to ask you what you think about that.
Here I am asking two questions about the tariff policy
which are connected with each other. What I am saying
is this; do you think the tariff policy of Canada as it has
been tradit.onally protecting central Ontario and central
Canadian industries—do you think that has a bearing on
the fact that they have been so lacking in aggressiveness
in selling even in western Canada, much less going
outside.

Dr. Kavic: I think this is very definitely the case. The
only notable examples down to 1939 of Canadian manu-
facturers marketing in the Pacific involved bicycles and
farm .mplements which were very successfully marketed
from the turn of the century onwards.

Senator Nichol: That was Massey-Ferguson?

Dr. Kavic: Massey-Ferguson and Cockshaft Plough
Company. I have not been able to identify the bicycle
company that did extremely well.

Senator Nichol: I thought the Japanese bicycles were
the cheapest and the best bycycles in the world. That is
what I was brought up to believe in Vancouver.

Dr. Kavic: Not apparently at the turn of the century in
Australasia.

Senator Nichol: Well, I was not brought up at the turn
of the century.

Dr. Kavic: I think this is an example and an early
demonstration of the rewards that did accrue to eastern-
based manufacturers through an early exploitation of a
far-off market at a time when communications were
much more primitive than they are now. But it seems
that with the passage of time—although certainly the
farm implement business has continued to pay a lot of
attention to this area through the establishment of local
production facilities—that other Canadian manufacturers,
as the Canadian manufacturing sector became more
diversified, became extremely tradition oriented and
their increasing capacities were satisfied either to the
south or across the North Atlantic, and satisfied to the
degree of meeting their minimal expectations with the
result that the Far East remained the Far East, and even
the Far West remained ver much the Far West. I think
the Canadian manufacturing sector is and has been tradi-
tionally guilty of taking refuge behind high-tariff barri-
ers using central Canada’s population and its political
leverage for the purpose of insuring a very cozy protect-
ed market.

Senator Nichol: Basically through controlling this insti-
tution in which we sit, and by that I do not mean the
Senate, but the Government of Canada.

Dr. Kavic: I agree with you. And the westerner who
has constantly felt exposed to international competition
has to buy from a highly protected eastern market and
he has to sell on a highly competitive international
market. He has had to go out or die but he has been able
to survive quite well.

The Chairman: Dr. Kavic, I would like to add a couple
of supplementary comments to Senator Nichol’s ques-
tions. Number one is oversimplified, perhaps, but it is to
challenge the fact that western Canada is the sole pri-
mary producer in Canada. I think the pulp producers of
Quebec and New Brunswick might take some issue with
that.

Senator Nichol: Selling into the Orient?

The Chairman: The second point I would like to ask
you about, Dr. Kavie, and is further related to Senator
Nichol’s question is this; what about the real exception to
this rule, the success of Ford of Canada in Australia?

Dr. Kavic: Well, Ford of Canada in Australia was
established in 1925, which was subsequently followed by
Malaysia in 1926 and New Zealand in 1936. Ford got in
there right at the grass roots and General Motors of
course was a little behind, although they have since
surpassed Ford with their Australian Holden operation.

The Chairman: But I was speaking of Ford of Canada
per se in Australia.

Dr. Kavic: Well, Ford of Canada established a subsidi-
ary in Australia, and the result was that this subsidiary
provided an extremely lucrative marketing agency for
Canadian automobiles, and the prominence of Canadian
automobiles in our Pacific trade prior to the Second
World War was primarily due to the existence of Ford
facilities in Australia, New Zealand and Singapore.

Senator Laird: Mr. Chairman, this has been followed
very effectively by the Canadian holders of franchises on
Colonel Sanders fried chicken.

Senator Nichol: Mr. Chairman, if I come back on the
point you made a few moments ago about exports of
Canadian raw material products to the Pacific countries
and imports from them, I did not mean to be critical of
your beloved part of the country by any means.

Senator Sullivan: He saved himself an awful lot by
that remark.

Mr. Chairman, I would like to hear Dr. Kavic’s view-
point or opinion on this. You know Japan does not have
an embassy in Peking. Why?

Dr. Kavic: I think it is an outgrowth of the Second
World War and the fact that while mainland China was
proceeding to shift from one government to another,
Japan was effectively under American military occupa-
tion, and subsequent to the conclusion of the Korean war
the Japanese have been extremely inhibited by American



1:16

Foreign Affairs

27-10-1970

attitudes for trade and strategic reasons. Japan has algo
concurrently developed a heavy economic stake in
Taiwan, and Japan has, despite the circumstances, been
able to develop approximately a $200 million export
market in ma.nland China—which, of course, is not
nearly what the Japanese envisage they could do. But the
reason for this is the fact that they have managed to
make significant sales to mainland China and they have
concurrently developed a very significant economic sta}<e,
trade and investment-wise, in Formosa and they contin-
ue to be extremely inhibited by American attitudes, in
view of the fact that they sell the United States $4 billion
worth of goods each year and enjoy a very hefty tradg
surplus. It is quite clear that in view of American atti-
tudes with regard to trade with Red China that the
Japanese are going to have to be extremely careful about
not endangering their already sensitive position on the
American domestic market by trying to jump after the
golden goose too quickly.

The Chairman: Could we have, for the record, Senator
Sullivan, just what the imbalance of trade is between the
United States and Japan? You say it is $4 billion one
way. What is it the other way?

Dr. Kavic: Last year it was $33} billion.

Senator Carter: Before we leave this subject, coming
back to Ford of Canada, I have this brief supplementary.
Can Ford in Australia benefit indirectly by the auto pact
between Canada and the United States?

Dr. Kavic: No, there is no reverse flow of components.
In fact, Ford of New Zealand is now being heavily sup-
plied from Ford of Australia. And in the New Zealand
trade the multinational corporation is proceeding to reor-
ganize its supply procedures. Instead of Canadian sup-
pliers providing, say, the New Zealand market, increas-
ingly it is the Australian based companies which are
proceeding to supply New Zealand. This could well
become true elsewhere in Asia as well, because Australia,
for a number of reasons, is a more useful vehicle for the
purposes of servicing Far Eastern trade.

Senator Pearson: Mr. Chairman, I want to speak now
on immigration. Due to the tremendous development
taking place in British Columbia, with the Japanese
investment in all sorts of trades such as forestry and
mining, they have taken a tremendous amount of raw
materials. At the same time there is a tremendous popu-
lation explosion in Japan and all the eastern Asian area.
Can we continue to prevent and stay in our cozy little
position of keeping the Asiatics out of Canada or the
Pacific area, because of trade they will want to go a little
faster and get more trade than they are getting. Do you
think we could supply that without allowing the Japa-
nese or Chinese to come into this country?

Dr. Kavic: I think the Chandrasekhar view that “emp-
ty” lands have an obligation towards crowded lands no
longer has any particular currency. It might be useful for
the odd demagogue, and no doubt will continue to be
used in this respect, but I think as far as informed
opinion is concerned and as far as governments are
aware, there is no such thing as a safety valve for

surplus population any more, that if one were to try to
accommodate the annual increase in Japan, pretty soon
we would be saturated.

Senator Pearson: Supposing they have this tremendous
interests in Sherritt-Gordon; they also have interests in
Noranda.

Dr. Kavic: Yes.

Senator Pearson: Supposing they are not getting as
much material from these two mines as they want and
they demand their technicians be sent in there to help
out. Eventually they will probably want more of their
nationals in there and an increase in the labour force. Do
you not think they will gradually creep in this way to
satisfy the needs they have in their own homeland?

Dr. Kavic: I think it is possible that the Japanese
investor, to the degree that there appears to be local
technical deficiencies, will insist upon his personnel being
inserted certainly on a short term basis. The Skookum-
chuk project did involve some of these personnel, and
some of these mining ventures involve some Japanese
personnel. I think that the Japanese are extremely sensi-
tive to any suggestion that they are in a sense going to
adopt a rather aggressive high key posture; certainly
their activities to date indicate that their preference is to
remain in very much of a low key posture in order not to
stimulate adverse local reaction, although one can cer-
tainly envisage from time to time certain key personnel
being inserted for a specific reason, which might not
always please the local union, and might occasionally be
a rather sensitive matter to local managerial personnel.
But, this is part of the development of modern business,
which is increasingly international, and the fact that the
Japanese case is not going to be all that multinational,
would seem to make it disposed to be a little more
sensitive.

Senator Nichol: I should like to say that I agree with
Dr. Kavic. My experience in British Columbia with a
very large number of Japanese technicians, financial
people, and mining people, who have come there during
the last ten years, has shown that they have been meticu-
lously careful and polite in their dealings with Canadian
industry so as not to ever present an aggressive posture
in British Columbia. There is no sign of it whatever. As a
matter of fact, they are marvellous. They are first-rate
corporate citizens. I hope that we are as nice to them.

Dr. Kavic: Yes, and from the standpoint of our immi-
gration pressures, the Japanese have traditionally been
extremely sensitive about their migrants not being
accepted, and somehow impairing the image of the home-
land. This applies today, and there is an extremely rigor-
ous selection of Japanese migrants before they are
allowed to proceed abroad. I see no possibility of this
changing.

Senator Sullivan: Dr. Kavic, you might be interested in
this example. I am on the board of trustees of the Con-
naught Laboratories. Japan wanted the Connaught
Laboratories to go to Tokyo and set up a laboratory
there, and to give them the know-how and the patents it
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has on certain drugs, and so on and so forth. They would
do everything provided we would give them the know-
how. They would control the whole industry in Japan.
Dr. Fergusson and Mr. Brant would not go for it. This
seems to indicate that they want everything for them-
selves, and don’t think they don’t.

Dr. Kavic: I agree with you in so far as their home
industries are concerned. This is reflected in their invest-
ment policies and trade policies. Japan is very interested
in maintaining control of the golden key, but in so far as
their external posture is concerned the Japanese are
sufficiently aware of sensitivities as to move extremely
cautiously.

Senator White: Mr. Chairman, I should like to ask Dr.
Kavie if he would care to comment on the armistice
negotiations that have been going on for over 15 years in
Korea.

Dr. Kavic, what do you see as the ultimate outcome?
Do you see any hope of unification there?

Dr. Kavic: Of the Korean situation? No.
Senator White: Will it go on forever?

Dr. Kavic: In fact, the Korean situation seems to be
somewhat removed from both Russian and Chinese con-
trol. I think you are going to have a continuation of the
rather peculiar indigenous attitude of the north towards
a resolution of its problems, what with the degree to
which South Korea is forging ahead economically and
becoming more closely involved with the Western coun-
tries such as Canada and Japan. Political and social
barriers are adding to already existing political and
historical problems, so I do not envisage any serious
consideration being given to unification in the fore-
seeable future. I think this is going to be more or less a
de facto separation, along the lines of India-Pakistan,
lacking the legality of that particular development. I
do not think we can draw any analogy between this
division and the division of Vietnam nor, for that matter,
the division of Germany, although West Germans are
more interested in the good life than they are in reuni-
fication. I think this is also probably true of East Ger-
many; they are more interested in the vested interests
which they do possess than in unification, with the
problems of adjustment in a larger Germany.

In Korea we have a little of the Vietnamese situation,
too much blood under the bridge. There is also an
increasing development of the German situation of vested
interest, two styles of life, et cetera, gradually reinforcing
the division which does exist and making it in effect as
close to a permanent one as one can contemplate and
with the advantages to various other powers in keeping
it that way.

I cannot see China, for example, or Russia being in
favour of any reunification in which the south would
have the initial economic power, technical advantages, et
cetera, and in close contact with Japan and the United
States. I think this situation would, from the Russian and
Chinese standpoint in the foreseeable future, be highly
adverse to the maintenance of their interests in the
peninsula.
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Senator Pearson: Do they not regard it as a buffer
state, much as Crzechoslovakia?

Dr. Kavic: Yes, I think North Korea is very much a
buffer state, partly in analogy to the Vietnamese situation
and partly in analogy to the German situation. The
longer it lasts the more difficult it is going to be to
actually rectify the situation and the more reluctant any
of the major parties are going to be to rectify it.

South Korea cannot really gain through reunification.
North Korea could gain economically, but South Korea
certainly could not in my opinion. Also, from the stand-
point of strategic and political power benefits, et cetera,
I cannot see any of the other major parties bieng at all
positive in this direction.

Senator Carter: At some time in the future, Hong Kong
in a few years—what is it?

Dr. Kavic: The year 1997.
BSenator Carter: It is going to revert to China.

Dr. Kavic: It is just the New Territories.
Senator Carter: Oh, not the island itself?
Senator Hastings: It is just the Kowloon side.

Dr. Kavic: But, of course, the island’s viability would
decrease without the New Territories.

Senator Carter: They could cut the island off whenever
they wished. Will that have much impact do you think?

Dr. Kavic: Well, it is a question of what is going to
happen in 1897. Obviously Peking has been reminded
constantly of its inconsistency with regard to this imperi-
alistic treaty and territory. However, for practical pur-
poses the Chinese have shown that they are more inter-
ested in the economic benefits of Hong King, which is
their major vehicle for trade with the outside world.
They make a tremendous amount of money through sale
of water and agricultural commodities to Hong Kong and
this largely covers their wheat purchases in volume. In a
sense they have shown an ability to differentiate between
practical interest and ideological attractions. Even during
its so-called cultural revolution phase we did, of course,
have a little of its spill-over into Hong Kong, but the
Chinese government did not push the issue and the Brit-
ish authorities were able to cool the situation, quite
unlike the situation in Macao, which does suggest that
even during the heat of this particular upheaval the
governing powers that be in Peking continued to give
high priority to the maintenance of a basically independ-
ent Hong Kong, at least independent of its control. It is
possible that in 1997 they might somehow agree to just
let the matter run on, although I imagine this would
depend a lot upon the situation prevailing at that time.

Senator Carter: In future Japan is going to take great-
er responsibility for the security of that area.

Dr. Kavic: Greater interest. I would not

responsibility.

say
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Senator Carter: You do not think they are go.ing to put
money into defence? Will they not beef up their defence
budget?

Dr. Kavic: The Japanese have recently sanctioned
about a $5 billion defence budget, which will give them a
navy in excess of 200 ships, a tank force of 1,000 plus
front line tanks, an air force of 1,000 front line aircraft.
It is obvious that the Japanese self-defence forces are
becoming increasingly efficient and well-equipped, but it
is quite clear that the types of aeroplanes involved, the
types of ships involved etc. will proceed with restriction
to very local defence, and do not provide for any sort qf
expeditionary force. I cannot envisage Japan moving uni-
laterally in any respect beyond its borders. At the most,
Japan would have a very serious interest in the disposi-
tion of South Korea.

Senator Carter: As Japan sinks more and more money
into defence, she will be like the rest of us and have less
and less for servics and for expansion. Is their economy
so strong now that this will not have very much impact
on it?

Dr. Kavic: Currently she has been spending less than
one per cent of her GNP on defence, and the very
expansive nature of the Japanese economy suggests that
this five-year defence plan will be a virtual drop in the
bucket, that it will not really entail any sort of pressure
upon the Japanese economy.

Senator Carter: She is also taking responsibility for
development of these undeveloped areas, putting money
into these undeveloped countries, and she is in a
strategic position to do this. As she has to expand her
economy, being in that strategic position, will it be possi-
ble for other countries, like Canada, to compete in there?

Dr. Kavic: The Japanese attitude, of course, towards
trade and aid is a very closely linked one. They use aid
as a vehicle for trade. This is what makes the Japanese
trade aid policies highly sensitive in the eyes of other
governments, the fact that the Japanese are using the
more idealistic aspect as a long term investment, with
every intention to tie the products of their aid to the
Japanese economy; in other words, to help open up mines

etc. and have long term contracts, tying these to Japa-
nese industry. The possibility, therefore, of Japanese
trade aid policies being tantamount to a co-prosperity
sphere, is I think a very real one.

Senator Carter: This is what I was getting at.
Dr. Kavic: This is what is developing.

The Chairman: Senator Carter, I do not wish to cut
you off...

Senator Carter: I was wondering if we could arrange to
have Dr. Kavic back again, because we have only
scratched the surface.

The Chairman: Senator Carter, in my concluding
remarks, I was going to say that Dr. Kavic’s testimony
here today, both in his presentation and in his answers to
the questions, has been brilliant. I think this committee
can benefit greatly from a return visit, and perhaps Dr.
Kavic could fit this into his busy schedule as we get a
little further down the road in our hearings. We are not
vet sure the course we will be taking. In thanking you, I
do wish to emphasize what I consider to be the feeling of
this committee, that we are most appreciative of what
you have given us here this afternoon. It has been a
first-rate start for our hearings. To try and present all
the points of view is impossible, as Senator Carter points
out. Therefore, we are just scratching the surface. In
thanking you, Dr. Kavie, I extend an invitation to you to
come back another time.

I would like to announce to the members of the com-
mittee that next Wednesday, November 4, the Minister of
Industry, Trade and Commerce, the Honourable Jean-Luc
Pepin, will be our witness. The meeting will commence
at 2 o’clock and terminate at 3.15. This will be a very
special meeting, and I would like your full attendance.
The Honourable Robert William Bonner, Q.C., former
Attorney General and Minister of Commercial Transport
of British Columbia, and presently Vice-President of
MacMillan Bloedel Company, will be here on Tuesday,
November 10 at 4 o’clock in the afternoon. Thank you
very much for your attendance today.

The committee adjourned.
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Orders of Reference

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Thursday, October 8, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to examine and report to the
Senate from time to time on any matter relating to
foreign and Commonwealth affairs generally, on any
matter assigned to the said Committee by the Rules
of the Senate, and, in particular, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, on any matter concerning
the Pacific area with particular emphasis on the
position set out in the policy paper “Foreign Policy
for Canadians: Pacific”,

That the said Committee be empowered to engage
the services of such counsel and technical, clerical
and other personnel as may be required for the
foregoing purposes, at such rates of remuneration
and reimbursement as the Committee may deter-
mine, and to compensate witnesses by reimburse-
ment of travelling and livng expenses, if required, in
such amount as the Committee may determine; and

That the Committee, before assuming any financial
obligations in connection with the said examination

and report, submit to the Standing Committee on
Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts a budget
for approval setting forth in reasonable detail the
forecast of expenses to be incurred.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Wednesday, October 28, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,
The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Langlois:

That Rule 76(4) be suspended in relation to the
Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs on
Wednesday next, 4th November, 1970, and that the
Committee have power to sit while the Senate is
sitting on that day.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

ROBERT FORTIER,
Clerk of the Senate.
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Pursuant to adjournment and notice the Standing
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met this day at 2.00
p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators: Aird (Chairman),
Bélisle, Cameron, Carter, Eudes, Fergusson, Grosart,
Haig, Hastings, Laird, Macnaughton, McElman, Pearson,
Sparrow and Yuzyk. (15)

In attendance: Mr. Bernard Wood, Special Assistant to
the Committee.

The Committee continued its study of the Pacific Area.

The following witnesses were heard:
Department of Industry, Trade and Commerce:
Mr. Jean-Luc Pepin, C.P., M.P., Minister;

Mr. F. R. Petrie, Director of the Pacific, Asia and
Africa Branch;
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Mr. T. M. Burns, Assistant Deputy Minister for
External Services;

Mr. V. J. Macklin, General Director, Office of
Economics.
Export Development Corporation:
Mr. F. M. Carlton, Loan Director, Asia Area.
The following witness was also present but was not
heard:
Department of Industry, Trade and Commerce:
Mr. W. J. O’Connor, Acting Chief, Grains Program
Office.

At 4.10 p.m. the Committee adjourned to Tuesday,
November 10, 1970 at 4.00 p.m.

ATTEST:
Denis Bouffard
for E. W. Innes,

Clerk of the Committee.
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Ottawa, Wednesday, November 4, 1970

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs
met this day at 2 p.m.

Senator John B. Aird (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I welcome Sena-
tor McNamara to our meeting this afternoon. As we came
through the door the minister indicated that he thought
it would be most interesting to have Senator McNamara
on the other side of the table. I am sure we are all
honoured by his presence amongst us.

Our meeting this afternoon is the second in our inquiry
into Canadian relations with the Pacific region. Last
week we obtained a broad overview of the topic, and we
are now moving into an intensive examination of eco-
nomic relations.

We are very fortunate that the honourable Jean-Luc
Pepin has been able to join us today for a discussion of
this central aspect of our study. I know that Canada’s
economic ties with Pacific nations are a growing preoccu-
pation of Mr. Pepin’s department, and I also know that
he has a strong personal interest in this region. Last
spring he toured six countries of the region—Japan,
Thailand, Malaysia, Singapore, Australia, and New Zea-
land—and at that time held full discussions with political
leaders and officials in each country. Since that time the
Government’s foreign policy paper has made it very clear
that Canada will be giving increasing priority to the
Pacific region, particularly in the fields of trade, invest-
ment and development assistance. This committee is very
interested in each of those areas.

I might mention that each member of the committee
has received a copy of the most recent issue of Foreign
Trade, published by the Department of Industry, Trade
and Commerce, which focuses on the Far East.

Mr. Pepin is accompanied today by his Assistant
Deputy Minister for External Services, Mr. T. M. Burns.
I understand also that Mr. F. R. Petrie, the Director of
the Pacific, Asia and Africa Branch of the Department
is present, and perhaps there are some others whom the
minister will introduce.

On behalf of the committee, Mr. Minister, I am very
pleased to welcome you. My understanding is that you
wish to make a preliminary address after which, follow-
ing our usual custom, we will ask you questions. I have
asked Senator Cameron if he will be good enough to lead
the questioning today. I understand that we have to
complete this meeting in an hour and fifteen minutes to
suit your convenience. We shall do our best to divide the
questions in a proper and fair fashion.
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The Honourable Jean-Luc Pepin, Minister of Industry,
Trade and Commerce: Mr. Chairman, as the young lady
said, my time is your time! I will stay for as long as you
feel there is a justification for my presence.

The Chairman: Thank you very much.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I am very much impressed by the
quality of the audience. Many of you are experts in
different areas of international affairs—some in cultural
affairs, some in investments, some in wheat trade, and
others in mining. Knowing that, I came here fully pro-
tected. Besides Mr. Burns I have with me Mr. Petrie who
has also been introduced, and Mr. Macklin, the General
Director of the Office of Economics. Also present is Mr.
F. M. Carlton, the Loan Director-Asian Area, of the
Export Development Corporation.

The chairman said that you have already received
quite a lot of documentation, and he referred to the
Foreign Affairs review which is of course a basic docu-
ment for your study. He referred to the magazine
“Foreign Trade”, published by my department, but there
are o her issues than the one he mentioned which could
be useful. He mentioned the issue of October 24 entitled
“The Far East—the Dynamic New West”, but I think you
should also read the issue of September 12, 1970, which
contains an article entitled “Canada Expands Trade with
Southeast Asia”. Which covers another section of the
Pacific area. I may be referring also to the issue of
January 31, 1970, which has to do with business possibili-
ties developed through international financing organiza-
tions.

If T may be presumptuous I should like to refer you to
speeches made on the Pacific by the Prime Minister, by
Mr. Sharp, and by myself. The chairman has been kind
enough to refer to one that I made in Vancouver on May
5, 1969. Andre Siegfried used to say that you should not
hesitate to quote yourself. “This is what all of us do most
of the time anyway,” he added.

Another one from which I shall quote was given on
October 23, 1970. It deals with Canadian trade in Latin
America. In the first pages I talk about the general recent
trade picture in Canada, and you might refer to that for
a global survey. This coming Friday, at the University of
Windsor, I will speak on ‘“Canada’s Trade with the
Developing Countries”. I will try to cover what is being
done by Canada at this time to develop trade with that
group of countries. Many countries of the Pacific are
“developing,” as you know.

Copies are available at no cost at all from my office!

Honourable senators, you are fully acquainted with the
importance of the Pacific area for Canadian trade. This is
the third largest market for us, following the United
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States and Western Europe including the United I‘(ing-
dom. In 1969 the two-way trade with the Pacific region—
I presume “Pacific region” has already been defined, Mr.
Chairman.

The Chairman: Yes, it has been already defined.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Thank you. In 1969 the two-way trade
with the Pacific region amounted to $2 billion; exports
from Canada amounted to $1.1 billion, which represeqted
8 per cent of our total exports in 1968, which at that time
amounted to $14.1 billion.

The Canadian share of the Pacific rim market, which
totals $32 billion, is about 4 per cent, which at first look
seems low but my experts might put that figure in more
proper perspective.

Our exports in the Pacific in 1969, as stated, amounted
to $1.1 billion whereas in 1965 they amounted to $671
million. So, in less than four years the amount has almost
doubled. A growing market indeed!

If you look at the figures for the first seven months‘ of
1970 you will see that the growth of exports to the Pacific
has been 23 per cent, a very encouraging figure.

Perhaps I can make some rapid remarks now upon the
character of the area. The first observation is the one I
have just made, that is, that the Pacific is a fast growing
area from a trade point of view.

The second observation is that the Pacific Rim is not a
homogeneous area in that you have there highly “devel-
oped countries like Japan, Australia, and New Zealand,
and the rest of then classified as ‘“developing” countries.
But, you are as aware as I am that this classification of
countries into “developed” and ‘“developing” is a rather
debatable one.

To give you an example: Japan is a highly industrial-
ized country, and yet it benefits from some of the advan-
tages of a developing country when it comes to the cost
of labour.

Some people are quite willing to say that Canada itself
cannot be classified as a fully developed country—that is,
one where all sectors are of the economy, the primary,
the secondary, and manufacturing sectors, are in relative
balance. They usually add, and rightly that some parts of
Canada think of “regional disparaties” as belonging more
to the “developing” type of country than to the “devel-
oped. And this is said en passant.

In my Vancouver speech I indicated a few other char-
acteristics of the Pacific area, and perhaps I should
repeat them here. The first point I made was that:

Industrialization is increasing everywhere. New Zea-
land is reducing its dependence upon agriculture.
Singapore is seeking to become more than just an
entrep6ét, and offers extraordinary incentives to
industry. Similar arrangements exist in Malaysia.
Australia requires a larger population and more
industry in order to reduce its dependence upon
agriculture and primary products.

The second observation was on the development of
infrastructures. I said:
Seaports and airports are being improved; hydro-
electric power is being expanded; the purchase of
nuclear power reactors is being considered. ...

by Australia in particular.
Tourist facilities are being improved.

Those of you who were in Singapore recently know that
there are 30 or 40 hotels going up...

Senator Cameron: There are 28.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I was exaggerating. Ministers of
Industry, Trade and Commerce always exaggerate a
little!

The third observation I made is still valid. I said:
There is a great deal of local investment, and for the
most part there is a considerable supply of capital. I
was told, for example, at the time I was in Malaysia,
by the President of the Malaysian Bank, that the
need was not for money essentially (that is a rather
different statement, and it was the first time I heard
it) but for more expertise, for more technical and
more managerial experience. It was often suggested
that there should be more joint ventures with
Canadians.

I shall come back to that last point later on.

Another observation I made was that standards of
living were improving. I said:

Needs are developing for consumer goods. Although
we may sometimes not agree with their economic
policies, government experience and competence in
economic planning is increasing. I was impressed
with the “operations room” in Kuala Lumpur, the
centre for economic planning in Malaysia.

So indeed, most of the Pacific Rim is a developing
area, but with rather particular characteristics. So much
for the character of the Pacific area.

The rest of my remarks today have to do with the
different possible approaches or ways by which we are
tryin to improve our trade position in the Pacific Rim. I
am going to indicate three approaches. They are not
mutually exclusive; they can be reconciled, combined.

The first approach is the one to which the chairman
has already referred, and it is what I would call the
“area of concentration approach,” which is indicated as
being our approach in the Foreign Affairs Review, and
which is, as you know, the CIDA approach. CIDA has
identified a number of areas of concentration, and this is
where they put most of their money and time.

In the Review we seem to say that Latin America and
the Pacific Rim will be the Canadian areas of concentra-'
tion. The reason why I smile is twofold. Firstly, Latin:
America and the Pacific Rim constitute very wide areas.
It is just like telling a hunter to concentrate on the bear.
These are big, big areas. So, it is a bit of an eccentricity
to say, “Let’s concentrate on Latin America and the
Pacific.”
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Secondly, my reason for my smiling at this thing is
that I question whether Canada can afford to concentrate
on anything when it comes to trade promotion. It seems
to me to be a very basic principle of Canadian trade that
we must concentrate on the world. How can we ignore
Western Europe? How can we ignore Eastern Europe?
How can we ignore the Soviet Union? How can we
ignore the United States? So, if you cannot ignore any-
thing—and I do not think we could or should—then it is
difficult to say: concentrate on something. It is just like
saying: concentrate on everything. As a matter of fact,
this is what we are doing. But I thought the idea of
concentration was one that, without discounting, should
be taken, as we say in French, “avec un grain de sel”—
with a grain of salt—at least when talking about trade.

The second approach to trade promotion, which I find
to be more rewarding, is “concentration on products.” Of
course, Senator McNamara, Canada would sell anybody
anything they can find in Canada which is surplus to our
needs. So much the better if the Japanese want more
wheat, barley and coal. But at the same time it would be
wise, I think, to devote a lot of our attention in our
promotion, in our financing support too, to what I called
in my Latin-American speech, “sectors for growth”. I am
going to read what I said at the time.

What could be the sectors for growth?

In the process of solving its own domestic prob-
lems, Canadian industry has over the years constant-
ly had to conquer vast distances, difficult problems of
resources extraction, extremes of heat and cold, as
well as other climatic, topographical or even cultural
“barriers”.

As a consequence, not surprisingly, Canada has
developed particular competence in a number of
technologically advanced secteurs de pointe. These
fields include: transportation, telecommunications,
mining, forestry and fishing, education.

Well-known examples include the trans-Canada
microwave relay system, the Arctic communication
system, earth satellite ground stations, microelectron-
ics and telephone electronic switching systems;
... specialized aircraft, aerial surveys, flight simula-
tors, forest fire-fighting techniques using water
bombers, airborne infra-red fire and heat detectors,
airport design, construction and equipment—with
Ste-Scholastique and Toronto coming, it is surprising
the amount of expertise that Canadian engineers
should develop from these two projects—equipment
for railways, roads and subways; hydro-electric
power dams, stations and grids, high voltage trans-
mission equipment; mining and forestry techniques
and equipment; nuclear reactors; educational
equipment.

In the process of solving their own problems,
Canadians have contributed substantially to new
technology.

The theory is very simple: perhaps some of the
lessons we have learned can be shared with, perhaps
some of the equipment we have created can be used
by our friends in the Latin-American and Pacific
Rim.
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This thesis is not the invention of the wheel, as
Mr. Kierans would say; but sometimes we have a
tendency to overlook the obvious.

This is really the meaning of the “products concentra-
tion approach.” Again, I repeat that you do not ignore the
rest of your export possibilities, but in your promotion,
in your financing of exports, for example, you pay par-
ticular attention to these things, because this is where,
presumably, en principe, you have a greater contribution
to make, having already made it in your own country.
This is also where you have the best possibilities of
creating employment.

Of course, when you think of equipment, of products,
you include services also. You include consulting ser-
vices; you include the firms specializing in the creation of
these technologies, equipment and plants.

So, very simply, this is the products concentration
theory. If you analyse present Canadian Government
trade policies, you will find that we are paying a lot of
attention to this, more and more attention to it.

Let me give you just two or three examples. As you
know, GAAP, the General Adjustment Assistance Pro-
gram, was developed at the time of the automobile agree-
ment with the United States and the Kennedy Round
application. You know how the program works. It allows
the Government to pay 50 per cent of consulting services
to guarantee 90 per cent of a loan by a bank. If the bank
does not want to make the loan, and when the plans are
acceptable to the GAAP board, the Government will
even make a direct loan to the industry, when it has the
export improvement capacity. That is one way of fav-
ouring concentration on certain types of products that
exist in Canada and are desired in another country of .
the world.

Let me give you two other examples, one which is not
yet in the books, but it will get there soon. I hope you
will support me.

Many engineering firms find it difficult to pay for
feasibility studies on projects abroad. If you are the
president of a consultant service you may bid once, you
may pay for a feasibility study a second time, and possi-
bly a third time, but if you lose on the first three in one
year you are bound to be discouraged when a fourth
opportunity comes.

I think it is generally assumed and recognized now that
the engineering firms are very often the “advanced
guard” of the traders in today’s world. If a certain firm
in Montreal, Toronto or Vancouver gets a contract in .
Malaysia or Singapore, possibilities are greater that
Canadian equipment will be used. I just say “greater”
and not ‘“automatic,” of course.

So my department is thinking of developing—and this
is not original because the Americans have done it and
the British are doing it too—of establishing a risk shar-
ing system with Canadian consulting firms going into the
field to make feasibility studies to bid on projects. I think
this will be an important contribution, and I hope to be
able to announce that this has become a fact in the
coming weeks.

I do not know if you observed, but another innovation
has taken place. There was an announcement from CIDA
on October 8 on this subject. CIDA has come out with a
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plan to support Canadians who want to invest abrqad.
Investment, as you know, is another way of developing
trade with a country. If a Canadian firm establist_les
abroad, then the possibilities are that Canadian equip-
ment will be used or there will be a common venture and
some parts of the end product might well be manu-
factured in Canada and some other parts in the other
country.

So CIDA has now, for developing countries only, t}}e
right to make a contritution of $2,500 for “starter”. proj-
ects. They also share, potentially on a 50-50 basis, the
cost of feasibility studies.

I just wanted to indicate that new trading apd 'invest-
ing support methods are being developed at this time by
the Government.

These were the first two approaches, what I called the
“area concentration approach” and the “products concen-
tration approach.”

My third point is to say that known techniques are
being improved. Let me just give you a list. You might
want to question us on these things.

First of all, and coming back specifically to the Pacific
Rim, there is no doubt that Canadians, in general, are
showing a lot more interest in the Pacific. By showing
interest they are creating interest in the area. I know
many of you have been around there, but the Prime
Minister, myself and a number of ministers have been
there too. One can debate on the usefulness of ministers,
but one thing which is sure is that when they travel they
attract attention—interviews, articles on Canada in the
press, et cetera, and when the present Prime Minister of
Canada in particular travels, that is a real subject of
conversation wherever he goes!

Not only are Canadians politicians travelling to the
Pacifie, but politicians from the area, from Australia and
New Zealand, for example, in recent months have also
come to our country.

We are trying to go a bit beyond that. You may be
aware that there is an institution called “ministerial
meetings”. Canada already has ministerial meetings with
a number of countries in the world, in particular with
the United States and with Japan, and we are now
developing a similar approach with Australia and New
Zealand. These ministerial meetings have many advan-
tages. One of them is to create an atmosphere of “It’s got
to be done!” If you know there is a ministerial meeting
on December 5 in Japan or in Australia, then a number
of things which were progressing at a slow pace suddenly
start to run.

The Chairman: It creates a deadline.
Hon. Mr. Pepin: It creates a target.
Senator Grosart: Ministerial incentive.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes. That applies to all levels of
government and even to business.

So that is my first point: there is more interest being
shown by Canadians and politicans of the Pacific coun-
tries. When I went to New Zealand I was the first minis-
ter travelling there since C. D. Howe in 1956, if my
memory serves me well. It is difficult to pretend that you

have shown great interest for the Pacific, at the political
level when you face a situation of this kind.

My second point to illustrate efforts at improving
known techniques of trade promotion, is that trade com-
missioners in the area—there are seven in Japan, eight in
Australia, we have opened a post in Indonesia, South
Korea would like to have one, we are going to have two
in Peking—are very active. They have extended their
operation: they are now looking for investment possibili-
ties in Canada as well as for trade opportunities. The
service is not static. Their excellence is recognized.
Hardly a week passes by without letters from business-
men or politicians coming to me complimenting the
department on the quality of its trade commissioners.

Another thing is very often done now: when the ex-
port opportunity is a very specialized one—bearing in
mind that the trade commissioner cannot be specialized
in everything—we send more and more often specialists
from headquarters. The idea is not new, but its use has
been accentuated.

Our exhibitions and missions are still very useful.
Osaka was obviously a very great success in terms of
creating in that country an interest in Canada.

Other things are being done in the department. There
are new techniques, like consortia: you put a number of
people together who have a common interest so that they
go after a foreign project together. We have one which is
called “Airports for Export.” Canada is good at building
airports, so we put different professionals in a group in
order to increase the efficiency in their bidding.

The department is very active also in trade policy, and
I am quite sure you will want to question my officials and
myself on that.

(1) China was not recognized, as you all know, for
trade reasons, but there is nothing wrong with trying to
get some more trade out of that decision.

You are all aware of the fact that steps have been
taken that will lead to the setting up of a mission in
Peking. There will be two trade commissioners in that
group. You may question us on the possible trade advan-
tages that will flow from this. Senator McNamara will
indicate his views on that, I am quite sure.

The general pattern has been that following recogni-
tion the recognizing country enjoys a certain advance in
trade—ten per cent, or something like that. At that point
it levels off. Will it be the same so far as Canada is
concerned? I certainly hope not. Our trade commissioners
and business men will want to make sure that the gener-
al rule does not apply. We had contacts before with
mainland China through Hong Kong and the Canton fair,
but the fact that our men will be in Peking will make
relations with the seven trading companies much easier
than before.

The Canadian Wheat Board has previously a sort of
“special status” in Peking. Now all other Canadian trad-
ers ought have the same advantages.

(2) We are working hard trying to convince the Japa-
nese to speed up their liberalization, and we are negotiat-
ing—some of my officials are in Japan today—on textiles.
I am sure you will want to question me on the question
of textiles.
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(3) Another thing we are doing with respect of trade
policy is trying to rejuvenate our trade agreements with
Australia and New Zealand. The British entry into the
Common Market will obviously necessitate a review of
our trade agreements with these countries, and in so
doing we will try to maximize access for Canadian goods
in both countries.

(4) In respect of trade with the developing countries,
you will, if you read my Friday speech in Windsor, have
the full survey. The main recent feature here is, as you
may know, the General Preferential Scheme. You might
want to go into that to see how the scheme will advan-
tage developing countries of the Pacific area and Canada
at the the same time.

Canada is participating also in international aid organi-
zations, as I have already indicated. We are a founding
member of the Asian Development Bank, and we are
now exploring the possibility of acquiring a ‘“non-area
membership” in the Economic Commission for Asia and
the Far East. We are now an “observer”.

The department is active on tourism promotion. I.T.C.
has tourist offices in Sydney and Tokyo. We made a
special effort to bring Japanese travel agents to our
pavilion in Osaka. Japan is the fifth largest exporter of
tourists to Canada, and recent changes in their regula-
tions on travel and foreign exchange make it possible for
them to come to Canada for reasons other than trade.

I should not forget to say that the Government is
supporting export by providing money to EDC. About a
year ago the Government supplied more money to the
Export Development Corporation; there is another bill
coming up in the house in a few weeks continuing that
trend. Canadian exporters to the Pacific area will no
doubt use these facilities.

You have all read in the business papers that the
Export Development Corporation is more and more
aggressive in stimulating exports from Canada.

Finally, there is also a growing interest in trade with
the Pacific in the Private sector of the Canadian econo-
my. The Canadian Committee for Pacific Basin Economic
Co-operation, which has been established in Canada
through the Chamber of Commerce and the Canadian
Manufacturers’ Association, is very much at work. The
next meeting, as you may know, will take place in Brit-
ish Columbia, and will be hosted by the Canadian
committee.

I have said enough Mr. Chairman. Perhaps you think I
have gone on for too long, but I wanted to give a proper
idea of the activities in the field of ‘“trade with the
Pacific rim.”

The analysis that your committee is making of this
subject is another indication of the growing interest I
have talked about. My department will be very attentive
to what you are doing. It will contribute to the analysis
that you are making.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Minister,
and thank you in particular for your closing remarks. I
think it is clear to this committee, and to everyone
present, that you have given a great deal of thought to
your presentation. We are grateful for the background

work that has gone into it, and we are grateful for the
supporting cast that you have brought with you today.

As I indicated before, Senator Cameron will lead the
questioning. After Senator Cameron is finished, the Chair
will recognize other members of the committee.

Senator Cameron?

Senator Cameron: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Min-
ister, appropos your introductory remarks as to quoting
your own speeches, I would say that you are in very good
company. I recall an occasion upon which a former Dean
of Law at McGill was appearing before the Privy Council
in England, and he quoted a reference in which he was
concerned. The Lord Chief Justice said: “I presume this
is a very eminent counsel. I see the name Corbett here,”
and he answered: “Yes, very eminent.” So, you have a
good precedent.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Do you want to table your own
speeches?

Senator Cameron: Secondly, I would like to congratu-
late you on the format of the magazine, Foreign Trade. It
is very attractive, and it is a departure from the usual
type of Government publication in that a number of the
articles are reasonably brief. So many such articles usu-
ally go on and on as though the author was being paid by
the word.

Finally, I should like to congratulate the foreign ser-
vice officers. It has been my privilege to meet many of
them in various parts of the world, particularly in the
Pacific Basin during the past four years. They are doing
a good job. My only question is: Is there enough manpow-
er there to do the job? I do not think there is.

In line with your own philosphy, it is my view that you
have got to go after and develop every possible oppor-
tunity. In other words we must not pass up anything. In
order to do that we probably need to strengthen the
manpower in this area. So much by way of introduction.

This is such a fascinating topic and such a large one
that obviously we could go on questioning you for a great
length of time. The chairman has given me the privilege
of making a selection of the areas upon which I would
base my questions. Not being a financial expert I shall
leave the financial end of the matter to those who are
most expert in it than I, but it is significant to note, I
think, that the value of the total exports to the whole
Pacific area last year was about $24 billion, and of this
Canada’s share was four per cent. That is going up a
little bit this year. This shows that there is a tremendous
opportunity there, and I think it is likely we shall have
to be selective, as you have suggested.

As a westerner, I am very conscious of what Japanese
contracts and Japanese investments mean to Alberta and
British Columbia. Every fifth person you sit beside in the
hotels, and on the trains and planes, in the west today is
a Japanese. This is not happening just to Canada. I have
just come back from six weeks in Europe and every-
where I went, even in relatively small towns, I met
Japanese engineers and Japanese economists. Every-
where they are pushing the Japanese image and Japa-
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nese products with energy and a dynamism that we have
not seen before.

This has far-reaching implications for Canada, because
we are going to have to compete with these people. I
think we must keep that in mind in looking at the
overall picture.

My first question is: There is an increasing resistance
to Japanese imports into the United States begause they
are beginning to hurt. In the event that the United States
imposes some restrictions which will have the effect of
cutting down exports from Japan to the United States,
will such an eventuality react to the benefit of Canada?
That is my first question. My second question relates to
our recent recognition of China, and Japan’s relationship
to China. Is it not inevitable that Japan will more and
more move into China, certainly if she meets with re-
strictions in the United States, as it seems likely she will.
Is not that even likely to make it tougher still for Canada
to get into the Chinese markets?

My first question is: In the event that the United States
imposes restrictions on Japanese exports, is this likely to
react to Canada’s benefit?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Let’s try to put the question in still
broader perspective. The Americans, like ourselves, are
in negotiation with the Japanese at present on textiles.
Our “approach,” as you know, is quite different. The
Americans would like to impose global quotas. The
Canadian approach is a more sophisticated one. We ask
generally for voluntary restraints on their part, and only
in respect of specific textile items, those which “damage”
the Canadian industry. We stand by Article 19 of
GATT.

What will happen if the Americans and the Japanese
agree on restrictive quotas? We do not know at what
level these restrictions on Japanese imports will be
placed, but if the level is low then what will happen is
that the pressure on the Canadians will be even greater—
what the Japanese and the other low-cost countries will
not be selling in the United States they will try to sell in
Canada. So that will make our life even more difficult
than it is now. That is the answer to your first question.

Your second question is that you want to know if the
Japanese presence and influence in China will be greater
if their exports should decline in the United States. We
would have to qualify that, I would think, by saying first
that textile is only one aspect of Japanese exports to the
United States. There are so many other items on which
they may recoup what is lost on textiles, if anything.

I doubt very much also that, comparing Japan-US
irade and Japan-P.R.C. trade, we are talking about the
same commodities. What the Japanese are exporting to
the United States is not what they are exporting to
China. So I do not, off hand, see the interrelationship, but
maybe Mr. Burns does and I will ask him to comment. I
was looking in my pile of notes because I wanted to show
you something of the Japanese trade picture—here it
is—which complements what you were saying.

The Japanese in 1969 were exporting to the United

States $5-billion worth; to South Korea $767 million; to
Hong Kong $614 million; and to the Republic of China—

that is Taiwan in this case—$606 million. So, their No. 2,
3 and 4 importers are all countries of their own area.

This supports what you were saying about the Japa-
nese presence in the area, how strong it is. I would think
that in some cases exports to the three countries men-
tioned are on a subcontract basis. By so doing, the Japa-
nese benefit from advantages they used to have at home
but do not have any more to the same extent.

Senator Cameron: Cheap labour.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Cheaper labour. For continental China
that export figure is $390 million—quite substantial too,
but their “area of concentration” is mostly the other
countries around mainland China—South Korea, Hong
Kong and Taiwan.

Senator Cameron: But is it true that at the recent
Canton Trade Fair, which has just concluded, out of some
4,000 representatives of other countries, 1,200 were Japa-
nese as against 40 from Canada? This gives some idea of
their aggressiveness and the impact they are making
there to get into this tremendous market.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I agree 100 per cent with you on their
effort, though sometimes I wonder why there is all that
mass movement. One week you meet a mission that is
here to investigate something, and two or three months
after another mission is here to investigate the same
thing or to investigate the investigation that has taken
place. I may be wrong. I would like to remind you also
that Japan has five times our population, giving them
five times more businessmen going around than we have.

However, I am impressed, as you are, by their aggres-
siveness, by their shrewdness—if that is the proper word
in English. For example, the way they went about buying
coal in Canada is very intelligent. They were ahead of
everybody else in assessing the present “return” of coal.
The way they diversify their sourcing is also impres-
sive—they have a piece in the United States, a piece in
Canada, a piece in Australia. In the case of wheat as
well, as Senator McNamara knows, they play one source
against the other quite intelligently.

I am impressed also with the way they get these
sources of raw materials, usually with minimum direct
investment, while others invest heavily abroad, some-
times provoking domestic debates. The Japanese come
around and sign long-term supply contracts with the
potential exporter, and that is enough for the domestic
banks to provide the money for the development of
whatever project was in question. This is all very
intelligent.

Senator Macnaughton: Before we get off this subject,
under the heading of textiles, can the Minister at this
point say anything about the quality of Japanese textiles
vis-a-vis Canadian?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I am not an expert on quality, only on
quantities.

Senator Macnaughton: My point is that if you go to
Japan today, unless you are in the very high priced
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section of the stores, the general quality seems to be very
cheap. It might be a factor in the competition.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: When I went to Japan I was impressed
by the very high level of prices; so much so that one
begins questioning oneself on the extent of the sacrifices
that the domestic population makes to raise exports.

The Chairman: This is on a comparitive basis with
Canadian products?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes. Did you have the same experi-
ence, Senator Cameron?

Senator Cameron: Yes. That question Senator Mac-
naughton raised was the next one I had.

Senator Macnaughton: I am sorry.

Senator Cameron: The imports of rubber footwear and
textiles. In the documents here you quote rubber sneak-
ers, as we call them, at 18 cents a pair. We cannot begin
to compete with that.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: We are not trying to either, and we
should not as we cannot under any circumstances. We
must be selective on what type of footwear we produce.

Senator Cameron: But the quality is not that bad. I
have seen these sandals and have seen them used. The
quality is not that poor. In days gone by it is true that
the quality of a lot of these things coming in from Japan
was inferior to our standards. This picture has changed,
but the price differential is there in bulk quantities, but
to go into the stores in Japan or anywhere there, there
are no bargains and you come back impressed with what
you get in Canada.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: From Japan?

Senator Cameron: Yes. The answer to this is that
rubber footwear is one of the sore points as far as the
import quota is concerned, and textiles. They and the
Chinese are saying that unless we buy more from them,
they are not going to buy more wheat.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I would like to talk for just one
moment on that subject. It is a big subject and I am
interested in it, and I hope that you are going to go into
it in some depth because it is high time the Canadian
population in general learned about these matters.

When I talk about having a textile policy in Canada
everybody looks at me with a frown, as if I were about to
exclude all imports.

Just one figure. There is now only 5 per cent of Japa-
nese export to Canada on “voluntary restraint” basis—>5
per cent. In 1960 it was 32 per cent. We are not cutting
off trade between Canada and Japan by developing a
textile policy in Canada.

Another thing we should put on the table at one point
during your discussions of imports from the Pacific area
is the degree of penetration of the Canadian market by
imports from low-cost countries. It is high time Canadi-
ans knew all the facts. When they see the facts they will
realize that we are not developing a protectionist policy
in Canada by developing a textile policy—and, soon, I

hope, a footwear policy too. If you look at the degree of
penetration, it is deep, as you know. In the cotton textile
business already 57 per cent of the Canadian domestic
market is in the hands of importers. I will give you the
figures showing the comparison between what the
Canadian population takes in footwear, textiles as com-
pared with what the Europeans and the Americans are
taking in. It is comparing a dog and a camel.

The degree of possession of the domestic market by the
domestic economy in the United States is in the 80 and
90 per cent bracket. In Canada it is 57 per cent only. I am
sorry; I reversed the situation a moment ago. I meant to
say that 57 per cent of the Canadian domestic textile
cotton market is in the hands of Canadians manufactur-
ers; 43 per cent in the hands of importers.

Senaior Grosart: Might not that indicate, Mr. Minister,
that we are protectionists?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: That indicates that we have not been,
to my way of thinking. Do you think we should get rid of
the textiles industry in Canada, the footwear industry in
Canada?

Senator Grosari: I did not mean to interrupt Senator
Cameron, but perhaps I might ask this question. Is it so
that the department, officially or unofficially, has indicat-
ed to some Canadian textile industries that there will be
a cut-off point on their protection related to the efficiency
of their operation?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: That there will be a cut-off point?

Senator Grosari: A cut-off point in the protection
Canada is giving our textile industry.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I don’t know what you mean and this
shows the point I was trying to make. I think you should
reserve a meeting of this committee to go into the textile
question in some depth, because when we talk about
trade with the Pacific we talk in part about textiles, as
the greater part of it is coming from the Pacific Rim and
it becomes one of the important aspects of the study that
you are conducting at this time.

Senator Grosart: The reason I asked the question was
that at a meeting, I think it was this summer, we had
some parliamentarians from South-East Asia. One of
your officials gave me the impression that he told that
group that there was such a policy.

Hon., Mr. Pepin: When we meet I will give you also the
other side of the story, which is a description of the
items which are still unliberalized in Japan, because that
is a relevant aspect of the study too.

Senator Grosart: You mean they are still Conservative?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: They have 100 items that they have
not liberalized yet, and some of them are of importance
to Canada. One cannot say that their investment policy is
a liberalized one either.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I think we will
accept the minister’s suggestion, and we are grateful that
you have indicated, on a voluntary basis, you would like
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to come back and talk about this subject. Would you like
to proceed with your further questions, Senator
Cameron?

Senator Cameron: I would just make one further com-
ment on this. This is the reason it is so important to get
this information out. You hear the argument used here
that the high unemployment, we will say in Cornwall
today, is because of the imports from the Far East.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I will give you the list of the plants
that have closed in the last five or six years in Canada,
generally, not always, because of these imports.

Senator Cameron: An analogy to this is that about
three years ago, when Canada agreed to take some ply-
wood from the Far East, there was a tremendous scream
here that we were importing plywood as part of a trade
agreement, and we did not have enough markets for our
own mills. It turned out that this amount of plywood that
was taken under this contract was less than two days’
operation of a small mill in British Columbia. This is the
kind of reason why this kind of information must come
out.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: If I may interrupt, I made a statement
in the house on May 14 on the textile policy. That
document will be useful in the discussion we are going to
have.

Senator Cameron: You made a comment—and I heard
the same comment made by the same gentleman last
April, a man from the Malaysia National Bank—that
they did not need money, which was a surprise to me,
but they needed expertise. What are we doing to try to
provide that? I have some examples of what we have
done, but is there anything special in addition to what
has been done in respect of fishing, radio communica-
tions, and teaching in Malaysia? I am referring here to
Canadian expertise.

The second part of my question is: Has this led to the
purchase of more Canadian equipment in these fields—in
other words, electronic equipment, fishing equipment,
forestry equipment, and so on?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: That is so, because the Prime Minister
got at the wheel of one of those pieces of equipment
when he was in Malaysia. Much of the participation in
development in these countries is effected, as you know,
through CIDA. If you think of projects in Thailand and
Malaysia then you will realize that much of the equip-
ment is provided under CIDA, and perhaps you should
question them on that.

Senator Cameron: That is, we should question CIDA?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes. What my department might be
able to do—and Mr. Petrie is in a position to say this—is
to provide you with an analysis of the export content—in
terms of primary, processed and semi-processed, and
manufactured goods going into the Pacific area, on a
comparative basis as between five years ago, three years
ago, and now. That will give us a view of the changing
pattern. I am quite sure that what you said is true.

Mr. Petrie, would you like to say a few words on that?

Mr. F. R. Petrie, Director, Pacific, Asia and Africa
Branch, Depariment of Industry, Trade and Commerce: I
think I shall have to take up the suggestion that we will
table it. In general, I can say that our exports to the
southern Pacific, to Australia and New Zealand, are to a
great extent highly manufactured. Australia is our
second market for manufactured goods—that is, second
to the United States.

Senator Pearson: Do those exports comprise mostly
eastern Canadian products?

Mr. Petrie: I shall have to look at the figures. I think
they are mostly eastern Canadian manufactured goods,
but there are some from western Canada too.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: One way of doing that would be to
give you the change in exports to Japan. There is the
basic stuff like wheat, barley and coal, and in more
recent times there has been frozen food, specialized types
of meats, honey, cigars and other items going to Japan.
This is what will be interesting to have.

Senator Cameron: And frozen foods is a natural for
expansion in that area.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: And I forgot to mention rapeseed!

Senator Cameron: I was in Japan three years ago with
two colleagues of Senator McNamara, Frank Hamilton
and Vic Martins, and we were told frankly by the Chi-
nese trade and commerce people then that if Canada
expected to continue with her wheat exports to that
country she would have to change the balance of trading
from ten to one in our favour to their favour, and they
are going to be quite tough about it. So, my last question
is: Do you think that recognition of China is going to
lead to a quicker expansion of trade between the two
countries, and particularly purchases from that country
by this country?

I notice that in this article here there is no mention of
imports to Canada of sporting goods or furniture. It is
just in terms of textiles. I had Canadian businessmen
with me in China, and we found that we could buy
footballs in Canton for $9 or $10 that would cost $45
here. They were of the same quality. The same could be
said of furniture, although the disparity in the price was
not as great. My question is: Is there an opportunity in
this area to get into the Canadian market to help to
improve their balance of payments so that they could
buy more from us?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: This business of balancing trade
between countries is a regular debate. If you are the
visiting minister in a country with which you have a
deficit balance of trade you make a big pitch for balanc-
ing trade. If you happen to be on the other side you
make a big pitch for the insanity of this concept! I
refrain from doing that, but others are doing it unto me!
There is nothing in law or in trade practice which makes
it essential for China and Canada to have a balanced
trade picture.

It would be quite difficult for us to take manufactured
goods from China in equal quantity to the sums repre-




4-11-1970

Foreign Affairs 2413

sented by our exports of wheat. I think it is impossible.
The Chinese may say that, en passant...

Senator Cameron: I mention these two articles because
they seem to be items that we might import into Canada
to help improve the balance of payments.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I will let Mr. Burns speak to that, but
to come back to the previous subject to show you how
efficient our department is, I have here an internal—and
I am sure Mr. Petrie in answering you will extract some
figures from it—on “Canada’s participation in the Japa-
nese import market for end products, 1954 to 1967”. It is
an analysis of the changing patterns of trade between
Canada and Japan, and is produced by Mr. Macklin’s
service. We will extract the relevant passage for you.

Mr. Burns, what about the possibility of imports from
continental China?

Mr. T. M. Burns, Assistant Deputy Minister, External
Services, Depariment of Indusiry, Trade and Commerce:
There are one or two short comments I might make on
that aspect. I think the experiences of Canadian import-
ers at the Canton fair, which has been the main trading
arrangement that the Chinese have had with foreign
businessmen, is that the quantities available from China
of particular kinds of goods have not been large. I think
to a substantial extent the problem, at least for the time
being, is one of supply from China. Certainly I think it
would be fair to say that there is a diversity of effort
which the Chinese could make in this market, partly of
the same character that the Japanese have, which is to
move away from what have been very sensitive products
in the Canadian economy over a much broader range,
and I would expect as supply capabilities improve in
China we will see that kind of pattern developing as
well.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: It would be interesting to look—I have
not got this information before me—to see the extent to
which the Chinese have used their voluntary restraint
agreements with Canada. My memory is that they have
not always filled them. This would indicate that Mr.
Burns’ point is a valid one. What I mean is that they
have not used even the possibilities they had of exporting
textiles to Canada.

The Chairman: Senator Grosart?

Senator Grosari: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I should,
first of all, apologize to you and the committee for my
absence from the last two meetings.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: It was noticed.

Senator Grosari: I was going some field work on the
subject under discussion. As a matter of fact, last week-
end I was at the Canadian Economic Policy Committee
meetings in Vancouver which concentrated on this very
subject—the Pacific Rim.

My questions, Mr. Minister, will relate not so much to
the balances and imbalances currently in trade as to
investment between Canada and the Pacific rim coun-
tries—I say “trade” and “investment” because they are
not always the same thing. First of all, can you give us a

quick rundown on the comparative access of products of
the Pacific rim countries to Canada vis-a-vis our access to
their markets?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: You are talking of investment now?

Senator Grosart: I am talking of trade and investment
because it is very hard to have trade without some
investment. I may be a little more specific later on
because I have some questions of financial investment
that you would not normally put under the heading of
“trade”.

Hon, Mr. Pepin: I wonder if it is possible to generalize.
I know what the situation is in Japan. They have a
hundred different tariff items that have been unliberal-
ized. The Australians have relatively high tariffs for
manufactured goods, and New Zealand has also, although
we have preferences in these two cases. I do not know
what tariffs N.T.B. are in Thailand, but I presume they
are quite high too.

In most of the developing countries of the Pacific—and
Thailand is an example—controls of governments on
imports is by one way or another almost absolute, if I
remember well from my visit there. You only export
there if the government really wishes you to.

Mr. Petrie, why do you not take it from there, and
describe what the situation re access is in each of the
countries?

Mr. Petrie: I think we can say as far as Australia is
concerned that the main barrier is the tariff, which is the
orthodox or internationally accepted one, and we do have
a preference. As far as New Zealand is concerned, there
is also in addition to the tariff the balance of payments
imports restrictions because New Zealand does have a
balance of payments problem. These restrictions are
authorized by the GATT and the International Monetary
Fund, so it is quite a legal situation.

So far as Japan is concerned, as the minister has said,
it does have a number of quantitative import restrictions.
These are all illegal internationally. They are not accept-
ed by the GATT or the ILM.F. as being legal.

So far as China is concerned the situation, of course, is
one of state trading—one is dealing with the seven state
trading corporations.

In Taiwan there is a quite elaborate system of balance
of payments import restrictions, but again the Taiwanese
maintain that they do not discriminate against Canada.

As for the developing countries in the area, I think we
can say that they all have a balance of payments prob-
lem, and they all maintain a quite elaborate system of
import restrictions.

This is a thumbnail sketch of the facts of the situation.

Senator Grosart: I know it is very difficult to general-
ize, but as a starting point could you answer this ques-
tion: On balance is the Canadian market more open,
trade-wise and investment-wise, to the Pacific rim than
the Pacific rim is to Canada?
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Hon. Mr. Pepin: I will stand to my dying days by the
statement that Canada has the most open market in the
world.

What Mr. Petrie said gives more credit to the idea that
if you want to make an impression in this market, you
have got to use, for the time being anyway, other ave-
nues than that of straight bilateral trade—‘“we have got
this, you have got that; sell us this, we will sell you
that.”

You have got to get into joint ventures with them. This
is one way of getting yourself accepted. You have got to
have a feasibility study sponsored by CIDA, and then
convince them to take our goods.

So, this is where you have to have Canadian financing.
A lot of the stuff, as the E.D.C. people will tell us in a
moment, we sell in this area is sol dthrough the facilities
of the Export Development Corporation. Perhaps Mr.
Carlton knows the percentage. But, when we sell planes
to Singapore, or when we think in terms of an airport for
Thailand, and that sort of thing, it is usually conditional
upon financing coming from Canada. So, the Export
Development Corporation then becomes a sine qua mon
instrument of trading in the developing countries of the
area, and even in Australia in many cases.

The Chairman: Would you like Mr. Carlton to develop
that?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes, by all means.
The Chairman: Mr. Carlton?

Mr. F. M. Carlton, Loan Director, Asia Area, Export
Development Corporation: So far the EDC has signed
long-term export loans in the Pacific rim to the value of
$57.943 million. These loans were made for sawmill and
furniture complex, aircraft simulators and telecommuni-
cations equipment. We have under negotiation at the
moment in the Pacific rim a total of $40.869 million.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: That is financing.
Mr. Carlton: This is direct financing.
Hon. Mr. Pepin: How much have you guaranteed?

Mr. Carlton: Under the insurance part of our corpora-
tion, in the medium-term field for EDC account we have
at liability half a million dollars. On government account
we have $33 million. Under short-term policies we have
$13.875 million liability.

The Chairman: This is the current position, today?
Mr. Carlion: Yes, just before I came up here.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I should have mentioned also when I
was talking about new facilities offered by the federal
Government, that EDC now has a clause guaranteeing
investments in developing areas against non-commercial
risks. Again, this is a service added recently.

Senator Grosart: It seems rather strange that CIDA
would be doing this rather than the development corpo-
ration. I do not understand why CIDA gets into this

business of direct financing of Canadians in these

countries.
Hon. Mr. Pepin: No, no!

Mr. Carlton: These figures I gave are not CIDA’s fig-
ures; they are Export Development Corporation figures.

Senator Grosari: I see; I am sorry; but I understood
that CIDA was getting into this also.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: No, what CIDA is doing is subsidizing
“starter” and feasibility studies for possible investment
in developing countries—private investment.

Senator Grosari: If I understood these figures correctly,
the EDC has a much larger direct investment than it has
on the guarantee account, is that so?

Mr. Carlton: Than we have on the insurance side. We
have a greater direct lending interest than we have on an
insurance interest.

Senator Grosari: How much do you have under the
guarantee account?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: The guarantee of what—investments?

Senator Grosari: Yes—the guarantee against non-com-
mercial risks.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: The guarantee system is not operative
yet.

Mr. Carlton: We have had inquiries from the Pacific
rim.

Senator Grosari: You have been in business for a year.
Why not the Pacific rim, Mr. Minister?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: What happened here was that in the
legislation there was a clause that necessitated the
negotiation of agreements between Canada and the gov-
ernments of developing countries where such insurance
of investments would take place. These governments—
and I do not blame them—have resented the idea and
have told us that they did not particularly like the idea
of admitting that they were a commercial risk...

Senator Grosart: A non-commercial risk.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Right, a non-commercial risk, and
some of them have been shrewd enough to ask for a
similar guarantee of delivery of goods by the Canadian
Government. By the way, this might create a constitu-
tional issue in Canada, as usual, as to who should give
that kind of guarantee. So, that clause of the EDC act
will be amended. This is part of the bill that you will
study within a few days. We will be satisfied, from now
on, with the guarantee of the foreign government that
the national bank, or their department of finance...

Senator Grosart: To what countries have these non-
commercial risk guarantees been extended now? I am not
speaking of the Pacific rim because obviously there is
none, but outside of the Pacific rim? Have not some been
extended to the Caribbean countries?
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Mr. Carlion: This problem, as outlined, has stalled us,
and that is why we are going forward for the new
legislation to take that out of our requirements.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: So, with regret, it has failed, but now
we are coming along with something else and the inter-
esting part is what the EDC gentleman was saying about
the possibilities that have already been indicated; that is
requests that have already been made to ECD from the
Pacific countries, among others.

Mr. Carlion: We have had inquiries for investment
insurance in every Pacific rim country to date.

Senator Grosari: How is the $57 million distributed—if
I may ask Mr. Carlton, through you, Mr. Chairman?

Mr. Carlton: The signed contracts total $57 million.
There was $5 million with Taiwan—actually, that was
prior to Canada’s recognition of the People’s Republic of
China; $7.68 million, Malaysia; $2.7 million, Singapore;
$757,000, New Zealand; and $41.806 million, Philippines.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: You might also repeat what the
financing was for.

Mr. Carlion: The Taiwan transaction covered sawmill
and furniture complex. The Malaysian contract covered
the sale of Caribou aircraft. The Singapore contract cov-
ered the sale of Twin-Otter aircraft. The New Zealand
contract covered the sale of an aircraft simulator. And
The Philippines is all telephone equipment—central office
switch gear, et cetera.

Senator Grosari: What about Australia? Is not Aus-
tralia included in those figures?

Mr, Carlion: Not in the signed ones. At the moment we
have under negotiation $18 million in Australia, $16.4
million in New Zealand, $5.794 million in Korea, and a
very small amount of $675,000 in The Philippines.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Those I know of are for very sophis-
ticated equipment—electronics and that sort of thing; so
this is more meat to the point you were making some-
time ago, Senator Cameron.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Chairman, in view of the prepon-
derance of our investment in Australia up to now, is
there a reason why none of the $57 million so far has
covered Australia?

Mr, Carlion: Primarily, the reason is that EDC has not
had approaches from Canadian exporters. It is only just
recently that we have had this $18 million approach. I
regret I am not a liberty to divulge what it is.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Senator, there is also the fact that
these facilities are not necessarily used. There are other
means of finding the capital needed for exports—you can
go to the banks, for example. This is the traditional and
normal way to go about it. So it is generally only in
certain types of countries that the facilities of EDC are
used. As a matter of fact, there is no EDC financing for
exports to the United States.

Mr. Carlton: Not at the moment, Mr. Minister.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: That is not generally the way exports
are financed between Canada and the United States.

Senator Grosari: There is no reason why not, that I can
see, unless EDC is harder to get money from than the
banks.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Is it?
Senator Grosart: I do not know.
Hon. Mr, Pepin: I do not think I will start that rumour.

Senator Grosari: I think most businessmen, if they can
get money on easier terms from EDC rather than from
the banks, would go to EDC.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Most of the businessmen I have heard
from, and it is quite a number of them—and this is to be
underlined—say that the aggressiveness and quality of
services that EDC is giving at the moment are remark-
able. There were learned articles in the press on this
subject. EDC are very flexible; they study what the
particular case is; and if some other country happens to
be providing concessional financing in that area, they try
to make up for that. This is all done openly. I have
talked about that is the House.

Senator Grosart: A final question, Mr. Minister.

The Chairman: Before you ask your final question,
Senator Grosart, I would like to ask a supplementary to
yours.

Mr. Minister, do you have a “top” on this? Is this on a
quota basis? How far do we go?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Mr. Carlton will indicate what the
monies are. EDC have an overall capacity of nearly $2
billion for guarantee and financing. Some of it is on
government accounts, some on EDC accounts. Some
financing of wheat exports is on Canadian Wheat Board
accounts. Two million is the amount we would like to
increase in the bill which is being introduced. It will do
that and will correct the difficulty we have on the guar-
antee of investment. This is the bill you are going to
have in your hands in a few weeks.

Senator Grosari: A final question, Mr. Minister. This
really comes out of the point that was emphasized rather
strongly in these meetings in Vancouver on the week-
end, that Canadian businessmen tend to expect far too
much from your trade commissioners; that they are
tending to expect them to do the marketing. Could you
tell the committee what the terms of reference of your
itrade commissioners are in respect to the support of or
assistance to Canadian business?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: They are male business entremetteurs!

Seriously, trade commissioners do all kinds of things,
from finding a hotel room for the incoming businessman
to concluding a sale on his behalf. The other day I had an
industrialist who came to see me. He had just been
selling locomotives in Australia, I think it was. He said,
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“All through the sale your trade commissioner there was
writing to me, ‘Don’t worry, it is on the right track.’ On a
number of occasions I felt like going myself, because I
wanted to be reassured, but the commissioner kept
saying to me, ‘Everything is going nicely.’ ” Finally, the
sale was made and this gentleman wrote to me and
complimented the department on the imagination and
aggressiveness of our trade commissioner in Sydney.

Senator Grosari: To complete the metaphor, I know
your trade commissioners have an excellent track record,
but I wonder if this point that was raised was noi{ that
their very excellence may be inhibiting the enterprise of
Canadian businessmen; in other words, that they are
relying too much on your trade commissioners. Regard-
ing the Canton Fair, which has been talked about all over
the world, our poor showing there might be a case in
point.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I am not aware of the “poor showing”.
You have to make a distinction between big companies
and smaller ones. The smaller one would tend, of course,
to rely more on a trade commissioner than Noranda or
some of the big ones who do not need the trade commis-
sioner really to tell them what to do. So the work of the
commissioners varies very much, depending on who is at
the other end.

Senator Grosart: This will perhaps help your answer.
Do you permit them to do actual order taking?

Mr. Burns: Senator Grosart, the trade commissioner is
really involved in all the aspects of the marketing propo-
sition, except the actual taking of the order and the
signing of contracts. If I understand your point correctly,
it could be put in another way: It would be useful to
have more Canadian businessmen travelling in the export
markets and doing some of this work themselves. I must
say I think the department feels the more the better in
this area, because the work the trade commissioner can
do will be much more valuable if the representative of
the firm concerned is on the ground. There are limits to
the development you can do in the course of correspond-
ence. So, if you are asking: Should businessmen be on
the road more? I think we agree that they should be.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Senator Cameron seemed to regret
that we do not have more of them, and I agree with him,
but we have limited funds and we have to balance the
expected results in each particular case. Let me give you
an example. I said a moment ago that we were going to
have two in Peking and one that we had recently
appointed in Indonesia.

The South Korean Ambassador in Ottawa—quite right-
ly, because we have full diplomatic relations with them;
they have an embassy here, and they have trade commis-
sioners in Montreal and Toronto—comes to see me and
says: “How is that you have not opened an office in
Seoul?” I answer him: “Well, we have $10 million worth
of trade with South Korea at the moment. It is growing,
but let us see it grow a bit more before we open an
office there. At the moment I cannot justify it.”

We have just opened, as you may know, a trade com-
missioner’s service in Minneapolis and in Buffalo. These

are areas with which Canada does hundreds of millions
of dollars worth of trade. Are we going to sacrifice
Minneapolis or Buffalo in order to have one trade com-
missioner in Seoul? That is the question. Having limited
funds, we have to make a decision, and we have not yet
made one to send a trade commissioner to Seoul. I wish
we could.

This brings me to a point upon which we might reflect.
Seventy per cent of our trade—this year it is 65 per cent
but this is exceptional—is with the United States, and 30
per cent is with the rest of the world. The amount of
time, money and intelligence that I.T.C. put into the 30
per cent is without proportion. That fact should be
underlined because that is part of a Canadian political
decision, i.e. not to put all our eggs in one basket, to try
to multiply the baskets. This has to be taken into account
also when we balance the advantages and disadvantages
of having a trade commissioner here or there.

Senator Cameron: Let me hasten to say that I am very
anxious to see many more Canadians go and do their
own searching, so I tie the two together.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes. The point I am trying to make is
that the efforts that have been made recently through
CIDA, through the EDC, and those that will be made
through my department in the coming days, to make it
easier for Canadian businessmen and consultants to go
out and hunt for the jobs, should be underlined.

Senator Macnaughton: Mr. Chairman, my questions, on
account of the slippage of time, will be slightly schizo-
phrenic, I am afraid.

The Chairman: They are nonetheless accepted, senator.

Senator Macnaughton: I should like to compliment the
minister on his trade commissioner service. Over many
years I have found them completely outstanding in the
various countries. I will not go so far as to say...

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I will send an “engrossed” copy of
yours and Senator Cameron’s remarks to them.

Senator Macnaughton: ...that the other services are
not good, but when it comes to the crunch the trade
commissioner is usually the best man that you can get in
his particular function. As Senator Cameron said, let us
increase their number as much as we can within the
limits of our capability.

In dealing first with Japan I should say that I do not
pretend to be an expert just because I was there about
three weeks ago, but there is no doubt of our tremendous
success. The selling job that was done at Osaka through
the Canadian pavilion was to such a degree that the
impression we have created in Japan is fantastic. They
are almost our blood brothers in sentimental feeling, and
they do want to trade with us. It was urged on me from
all sides that now is the time for a crash program to get
into the Japanese market, even if we have to sort of
relegate other necessary things to the side and concen-
trate on capitalizing on the great impression we have
made. I was told that in the future our chief competi-
tors—certainly one of them—will be Australia, which
may or may not be selling similar commodities.
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It is almost theoretical, but it might be useful and
interesting if the minister could speak of the method of
co-operation in Japan between the Japanese Government
and industry. They seem to have worked out a very
happy, associated and aggressive policy of financing and
promoting business, which I presume we cannot follow in
this country. The reason why I ask this question is that it
would appear that the Japanese are great purchasers of
our resources, and I ask: What exports, and to what
degree, can we export to Japan, in particular? It is all
right to be a resource supplier, but surely we cannot go
on forever. The minister has already referred to the
competitive action of the Japanese in getting their base
resources from several competing countries.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I find that the co-operation that exists
between Japanese businesses and industries and the
Japanese Government is most intimate. This is well
known, and you said it very well. I might add that it is
not only between government and industry, but it is
between industries themselves. If one industry is being
attacked by any country of the world, all the other
industries line up behind it and they all exercise the
necessary action abroad and in Japan. They work togeth-
er extremely well.

Your question is as to whether such a system might
be good for Canada. I suspect that you would find a lot of
opposition on the part of Canadian business to a similar
arrangement being put into effect in Canada. I have
always been very keen to say that there is a need for
much greater cohesion and co-operation between industry
and government in Canada. And it is coming. Even in my
two years as Minister of Industry, Trade and Commerce I
have observed the change of mood. I think businessmen
in Canada are realizing better than ever what they stand
to gain from making use of government services and
programs. So, I think the intimacy is growing in
Canada too. It has not reached the degree it has reached
in Japan, but I suspect that most of the Canadian popula-
tion may not want that, irrespective of the fact that it
has proved very successful in Japan.

Perhaps there are factors making this possible in
Japan that do not exist in Canada. There is a collective
psychology in Japan that makes this easier than it would
be here. The discipline and the tradition of government
authority are stronger there than here.

That was a good question, Senator Macnaughton. I am
sorry the answer is not as good.

Senator Macnaughton: I am sorry to call attention to it
because, as you know, the world trading patterns are
changing rapidly with the multi-national companies and
all the rest of it. At least we could look and see what our
competitors are doing. Perhaps there is something to be
drawn from it.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I think there is a lot being drawn
from it.

Senator Macnaughton: I was hoping that the Govern-
ment in turn might be sympathetic.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: In Canada you still see some nine-
teenth century behaviour on the part of some business-

men. The other day we had a good example of that.
There is Company X—I shall not name it, of course—los-
ing money. The departmental people go to see the plant,
analyze the operation, and say, “There is a possible
immediate saving of $250,000 a year in this plant”. We
inform the company; we offer to pay for consultants to
corroborate that fact. The owner does not want it.

Senator Grosari: He wants to lose money.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: So it would appear, or he does not
want the Government to meddle in his affairs, or he has
become so used to running his own show that he does not
want anyone to come in and tell him that he is not
operating efficiently.

Senator Macnaughion: Let us be fair. There is the
reverse situation, I imagine, where the business com-
munity could suggest one or two improvements in gov-
ernmental activities which would save considerable
amounts of money.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Sure, I get that message every time
we meet with business men.

Senator Macnaughion: There is no restriction so far as
I know, Mr. Minister, on investment in Japanese stocks,
except from the Japanese end. Is that so?

Mr. V. J. Macklin, General Director, Office of Econom-
ics, Deparment of Indusiry, Trade and Commerce: Do
you mean in respect of Canadian investment?

Senator Macnaughton: Canadians can purchase stocks
on the Japanese stock market—Japanese stocks—can
they not?

Mr. Macklin: That is true.

Senator Macnaughion: This is subject to Japanese
Governement limitations.

Mr. Macklin: Yes, that is right. There is a temporary
restraint, but that has to do with our being free from
mandatory restrictions in the United States. We have
undertaken to exercise some element of restraint in
terms of the amounts of money that flow to overseas
countries, but this is a voluntary restraint and generally
money does not move to Japan and other countries quite
freely.

The Chairman: But is that an overall restraint or is it
a specific restrain directed to Japan?

Mr. Macklin: It is an overall restraint.

Senator Macnaughton: It is to prevent a flow-through
from upsetting American law.

Mr. Macklin: Yes.

Senator Macnaughton: I have one simple question:
What type of goods are we exporting to Japan at the
moment, outside of coal and wheat?

Mr. Burns: Those tend to be so large as to almost
overwhelm everything else. The first 80 per cent of our
exports consist of copper ore, wheat, pulp, aluminum,
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lumber, rapeseed, iron ore, newsprint, asbestos, flax seed,
potash, and nickel ores.

There are increasingly small and interesting shipments
of manufactured goods. For example, there are one or
two electronic companies in Canada that are selling
successfully in Japan specialized electronic equipment that
meets a gap in Japanese industry, and we are moving
more manufactured food products but they have not
reached anything like the volumes of those traditional
products.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: You might observe that coal is not in
the top category yet, but coal will get there very rapidly.
I understand that by 1975 Canada will be exporting $250
million-worth of coal to Japan.

If you look at this table you will realize the speed at
which our exports to Japan are growing. They amounted
to $316 million in 1965 and to $624 million in 1969. From
January to July, 1970 they amounted to $477 million, as
opposed to $370 million, during the same period of time
last year. That is an increase of more than $100 million
in six months of 1970 over six months of 1969. That’s
fast!

Their exports to Canada are similarly growing very
rapidly. The figures are: 1965, $230 million; 1969, $495
million; and the first six months of 1970, $324 million as
opposed to $265 million for the same period last year.
Exports from both countries are increasing very, very
rapidly.

Senator Grosari: Senator Macnaughton, may I ask a
supplementary question?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: If I may interrupt again, senator Mac-
naughion, the question that you raised re manufactured
exports to Japan and to the whole of the Pacific Rim,
will be answered in a paper we will submit to you the
next time we meet.

Senator Grosari: Mr. Chairman, my supplementary
question is on the so-called liberalization, or lifting or
easing, of Japanese restrictions on Canadian equity
investment in Japan. The distinguished Japanese ambas-
sador, Mr. Kondo, said recently that it was a misconcep-
tion that Japan still has a closed door policy concerning
foreign investors and entrepreneurs, and “the door is ajar
now and swinging open at a quite rapid pace”. Would the
minister and the department agree?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Are you talking about investments or
exports?

Senator Grosart: The words he used are “foreign
investors and entrepreneurs”. I am speaking largely of
investment now—taking an equity position in existing
Japanese industry.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Mr. Macklin might answer that.

Mr. Macklin: I think this is another question. The
Japanese have designated a large number of industries in
which foreigners can participate on an equity basis. How-
ever, there are also industries in which foreigners cannot
participate. An examination of the list of industries in
which they can participate indicates that many rapid

growth industries are not included. I think it should be
understood also that all participation is still subject to
approval. It is not an open door. The door is ajar, but any
new industry wanting to establish in Japan does require
approval of the authorities to do so.

Senator Grosari: Then, would you say, Mr. Minister, it
might be a contradiction of your previous statement
about our open door—that we might be going in one
direction in respect to access to our equity market, and
going in an opposite direction to the Japanese in our own
Canadian policy?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: The question is not too clear to me.
Three situations have been defined now. The first one has
to do with the possibility of stock investment in Japan.
The second one with the possibility of equity investment
in Japan. Mr. Macklin has answered that.

The third aspect is the limitation of imports, one way
or another, in Japan. Japan is now down to 100 items of
restricted imports, and this is still coming down. When I
arrived in the department it was 120. By now they have
liberalized 20 more. They have a program for continued
liberalization. The name of the game as far as Canada is
concerned is to try and convince them to liberate faster.

Mr. Burns: “Timing and tempo”!

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Mr. Burns is alluding to a conversa-
tion we had at the time of the last ministerial committee
meeting with the then Minister of Trade of Japan. He
said to us that it was just a matter of timing and tempo,
so I kept almost harassing him with the phrase “timing
and tempo.” Everything became a matter of “timing and
tempo,” we thought that their timing and their tempo
were a bit too slow.

Included in these 100 items still unliberalized are some
items of particular importance to Canada—whiskey being
only one.

Senator Macnaughton: Is the minister in a position to
say anything about whether or not we have succeeded in
the sale of an atomic reactor to the Australian
government?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: At last information negotiations were
very much on. When I was in Australia, the Australians
were very open, saying that all seemed to lead them to a
purchase in Canada. Among other things was the fact
that our CANDU system seemed to fit their particular
situation. They also have uranium. But, as you know,
nuclear reactors is a very competitive business, where
everything counts, where the balance of trade picture
between countries is brought in, as it was in the case of
Argentina, where accidents of domestic economies influ-
ence the decision, as recently happened in Rumania. You
never know if you have made a sale until both parties
sign at the bottom of the contract.

Senator Macnaughton: I have heard that the U.S.A. is
quite interested.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Every country is. I am quite sure the
Germans are; I am quite sure the British are using all
their influence.
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Senator Macnaughton: There will be a great deal of
pressure, actually, of course. Is it a fair question to ask
whether you are in a position to explain how, for the
sake of argument, 20 years ago Australia was in a very
precarious economic condition and yet today there is no
unemployment? Were there any particular trade mea-
sures that were taken, or any particular policies that took
the country by the bootstraps and made it into a prosper-
ous country—outside of the mining development—which
seems to have saved the situation?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Obviously, Australia, like Canada, has
tremendous resources, and these resources are now
exploited to a much greater extent than in the recent
past. There is a boom. But the question is really more to
the point than that: How is it that with a somewhat
similar base to the Canadian base with respect to
resources, they have managed to do without unemploy-
ment? Let me think!

Senator Grosari: They have just found them.

Senator Macnaughton: Perhaps that could be another
paper.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: On the manufacturing side they have
taken a much more protectionist approach than we have,
and on the short term that helps keeping jobs.

I was talking a moment ago with a Member of Parlia-
ment and, because some negative comment had been
made, I remarked to him about the fact that 1.35 million
dozen shirts will have come into Canada this year. If you
wanted to protect employment in Canada, bearing in
mind that just two or three years ago we used to have
3,000 more employees in the shirt business than we have
today, one way of keeping 3,000 jobs would have been to
prevent shirts coming into Canada. If you want two to
four thousand jobs tomorrow you just have to apply the
subsidy system for the construction of ships for domestic
consumption to exports. If you want to have a few thou-
sand jobs you just have to limit the import of textiles
into Canada. There are ways in which you can find these
jobs. How good the way is is another matter.

However, as you well know, Canada is vulnerable to a
tremendous extent in international trade, because we
depend on sales of a great number of things, in the
greatest possible number of countries. We are vulnerable
to any pressure exercised, we are susceptible to pressure
exercised by almost any country of the world. You know
how it works. The Ambassador of Rumania was in my
office the other day trying to get approval for a few
thousand dozen more shirts. He was doing his job. I took
an hour to explain to him that if we did more for
Rumania on the shirt side, ther would be 17 countries at
the door the next morning to ask for equivalent treat-
ment. Jamaica, Trinidad and Tobago, Hong Kong, Japan,
South Korea, Singapore, Malaysia—every shirt exporter
would be at the door saying, “How is it you have done it
for Rumania, a newcomer, and not doing it for old
friends of Canada? We have our plights also; we have
our floods; we have our problems. If you need a flood, we
will set one up.” These problems are all due to the fact
that Canada is a world trader in many commodities. We

have coal, wheat, nuclear reactors,
uranium—all kinds of things to sell.

flight simulators,

Senator MacNaughton: What was the last one—urani-
um?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes.

Senator Macnaughton: I was just kidding you.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Yes, I know. I understand the allusion.
The Chairman: Do you appreciate the joke?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Let me give you an amusing anecdote
I used the other day in a speech. The Ambassador of the
Soviet Union, who is a very distinguished diplomat as
you know, was saying to me, “It is much easier to be
Minister of Trade in the Soviet Union than it is to be the
Miniter of Industry, Trade and Commerce in Canada.” I
agreed with him, even before having any explanation of
what he had in mind! He went on to say, “When we have
a surplus of a certain commodity in the Soviet Union, we
usually use it for domestic consumption.” In Canada we
cannot do that; we have to export. Their market and the
U.S. market are ten times or more ours. Exporting is
the only way Canada can remain competitive in terms of
developing the economies of scale and specialization. If
we do not export, we are finished. We export to a great
number of countries, and they all tell us, “If you want to
export to us you have to let us export to Canada.” We
are in a very difficult bargaining position.

The most important fact is probably that we have a
domestic market of only 20 million people. Most of the
leading trading countries of the world now can rely on a
base of 100 million or more. The United Kingdom does
not believe that 50 million is enough, and that is why
they are joining the European Community. We are trying
to do well with a domestic market of only 20 million
people. We could not if we were not next door to the
United States. We are not in a common market with the
United States, but because of their tremendous purchas-
ing capacity we have some of the advantages of being
in a common market with them.

Senator Macnaughton: Mr. Minister, I would now like
to turn to New Zealand, and include with it the meat
problem of Australia. You mentioned yourself the possi-
bility that Great Britain may make the European
Common Market in due course. Needless to say, as you so
well know, the New Zealanders are extremely upset.
Here is their assured market which may be in jeopardy.

Is Canada considering possibly stepping into the shoes
of Great Britain and stepping up the importation of lamb
from New Zealand and meat from Australia, on three
grounds: firstly, we need a secondary source of cheaper
meat than fillet mignon every day; secondly, it would be
very helpful to the concept of the Commonwealth; and,
thirdly, Great Britain has to, as you have so wisely said,
consider a market of 300 million and not a market of 50
million, which it has at the moment. Where does Canada
stand vis-a-vis the greater import volume of lamb from
New Zealand?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I am pleased to tell you that this has
already taken place. Mr. Burns might explain.
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Mr. Burns: Mr. Chairman, the Canadian tariff on meats
from Australia and New Zealand is a very low one, of
the order of a quarter or a half a cent a pound, depend-
ing on the variety of meat.

There has been a very sharp increase in meat exports
both from Australia and New Zealand in the last 18
months. In 1969, for example, we imported $30 million-
worth of lamb and beef from Australia, $30 million-worth
of beef from New Zealand, and a good deal less, $2.1
million, of lamb and mutton from New Zealand. So in
1969 we were buying from the two countries concerned
something over $60 million-worth of meat. This is all
coming in without restriction and en the basis of a very
low preferential tariff.

Senator Macnaughion: There has been an embargo
during the last few months put on by the U.S.A.?

Mr. Burns: The United States has a voluntary export
control system on meat with its principal meat suppliers,
which include Australia and New Zealand, and that
keeps them at a certain ceiling level in the United States.
Canada has not adopted anything of a similar nature.

Senator Macnaughton: I do not want to over-emphasize
it, but has Canada considered stepping up its purchase of
New Zealand meat—Ilet us say, lamb and mutton—for the
Canadian market, over and above the recent treaty?

Mr. Burns: This is in the hands of Canadian business-
men. There are no government restrictions, that I am
aware of, that would prevent the movement of Australi-
an or New Zealand meat into Canada, other than the low
tarift.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: The “embargo” last year was a very
temporary one. It was due to the changes of policies on
this matter taking place in the United States at that time.
Huge quantities of meat were coming into Canada. The
other reason was the sanitary condition of some plants in
Australia. So, it was a very temporary thing.

Senator Macnaughton: Mr. Chairman, I think I have
taken enough time.

Senator McElman: Regarding that $60 million you
speak of, in increased inports from Australia and New
Zealand, would you relate it to what it was a year or two
years previously?

Mr. Burns: I do not have the figures here, but it was a
great deal smaller. We can supply those figures. I just
happen to have the 1969 figures before me.

Senator McElman: Would it be in the order of a 50 per
cent increase?

Mr. Burns: Yes, something of that order. I think per-
haps it would be higher.

Mr. Petrie: Mr. Chairman, I have the figures for 1969
for New Zealand. The figure was $3.2 million in 1969, and
skyrocketed to $29.8 million in 1970.

Senator Macnaughton:
trans-shipped?

Mr. Petrie: Yes, trans-shipped to the United States.

But much of that was

The Chairman: Do you have a factor figure on the
trans-shipment?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: That is quite difficult to assess.

Mr. Burns: There has been a net increase in our con-
sumption of Australia and New Zealand meat.

y Senator Macnaughton: My basic question, Mr. Minister,
is: Is it possible for your department to stimulate the
consumption of more mutton and lamb in Canada?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: I eat as much as I can myself! We
cannot force people to do that. As Mr. Burns was saying,
Canadian importers are usually very active and very
imaginative.

The Chairman: Are there any further questions? If not
I shall ask the minister if there are any loose ends that
he would like to tidy up.

Mr. Minister, we have had you here for two hours,
which is one hour more than we anticipated, and we are
extremely grateful. Are there any other matters upon
which you would like to comment?

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Mr. Chairman, our relations with
Japan are obviously the central aspect of our trade with
the Pacific Rim. Japan is to the area what dear old
England was to Europe and to the world in the nine-
teenth century. It is the big ship navigating off the shores
of the Pacific. It is the big manufacturer that takes in the
raw materials and grinds them up, and produces the
manufactured products that are then distributed all over
the area. There is no doubt that Japan will play a greater
and greater role in Canadian trade in future years.

Relations between Canada and Japan are generally
friendly. They are difficult at times. When the subject is
their quota limitations on our textiles they become a bit
more difficult, but we agree to disagree. There is no
doubt that a lot of attention will have to be devoted to
Canada-Japan trade relations in the coming years by
governments, business, and public alike.

When I was in Japan recently the minister said to me:
“You have observed the tremendous gap between our
exports to Canada and your exports to Japan... $660
million as compared to $490 million.” I said yes I had
observed that, and when he asked me if I could do
something about it, I said: “I will trade with you. I will
take your exports to Canada and you will take our
exports to Japan in return” as you know, their exports to
Canada have a high manufactured content while our
exports there are of the raw or semi-processed type. This
is a typical fase of where asking for balance of trade
between two countries is obviously not logical or accepta-
ble. After I made that offer the Japanese minister burst
into a big smile—he knew better than that.

This is a point we shall have to stress all the time, that
we take from Japan manufactured goods such as elec-
tronic goods, highly sophisticated stuff, while they take
from us—and we are very pleased about it—coal, wheat,
barley, rapeseed, and minerals .

Senator Grosart: Did you obtain Premier Bennett’s
consent to the making of that offer?
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Hon. Mr. Pepin: No, but I could make it very securely
because I knew that it would not be accepted! The Japa-
nese Minister of Trade is very intelligent.

Another aspect of this is that provincial governments
tend to want to develop their own trade commissioner
service around the world, particularly in Japan. As you
know, Ontario has opened an office in Tokyo. This is not
a straight duplication because provinces are more inter-
ested in investment than in trade, although our trade
commissioners are under instructions now to be interest-
ed also in investment.

Senator Grosari: Both ways?
Mr. Burns: Yes, both ways.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Here I must publicly compliment Mr.
Skillings, the Minister of Trade and Industry of British
Columbia, for not opening an office in Japan! He and I
have a working arrangement. If he ever finds that the
Canadian Government trade commissioner service is not
giving British Columbia satisfaction he will consult me
before he decides to open an office. This is very rational.
I hate to think that all the provinces of Canada will have
a trade commissioner service, because that is a really
unnecessary expenditure of funds.

The Ontario trade commissioner in Tokyo is probably a
most distinguished and intelligent gentleman, but I sug-

gest that it will take him two or three years to obtain
half of the experience that the Canadian Government
trade commissioner service in Japan has accumulated
over the past decades. I suggest also that he will be
dependent upon the services of the Canadian trade com-
missioner for much of the business he will develop.
Perhaps it would have been wiser to have had an extra
Canadian Government trade commissioner there. How-
ever, this is just a general position that I am taking.

Senator Grosari: Mr. Sharp would agree with you.

Senator Cameron: You had better telephone Premier
Strom right away.

Hon. Mr. Pepin: Is he thinking of doing this?
Senator Cameron: Yes.
Hon. Mr. Pepin: Then I will.

The Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Minister, for your
appearance here this afternoon, and for the demonstra-
tion of the energy and enthusiasm you expend on this
whole area. I speak for the committee when I say that we
are very impressed by what you have said, and also by
the answers that have been given by your very compe-
tent officiels.

The committee adjourned.

Queen’s Printer for Canada, Ottawa, 1970
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Orders of Reference

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Thursday, October 8, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to examine and report to the
Senate from time to time on any matter relating to
reign and Commonwealth affairs generally, on any
matter assigned to the said Committee by the Rules
of the Senate, and, in particular, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, on any matter concerning
the Pacific area with particular emphasis on the
position set out in the policy paper “Foreign Policy
for Canadians: Pacific”;

That the said Committee be empowered to engage
the services of such counsel and technical, clerical
and other personnel as may be required for the
foregoing purposes, at such rates of remuneration
and reimbursement as the Committee may deter-
mine, and to compensate witnesses by reimburse-
ment of travelling and living expenses, if required,
in such amount as the Committee may determine;
and

That the Committee, before assuming any financial
obligations in connection with the said examination
and report, submit to the Standing Committee on
Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts a budget
for approval setting forth in reasonable detail the
forecast of expenses to be incurred.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Tuesday, November 10, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Grosart moved, seconded
by the Honourable Senator O’Leary:

That Rule 76 (4) be suspended in relation to the
Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs and
that the Committee have power to sit while the
Senate is sitting today.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Robert Fortier,
Clerk of the Senate.
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Minutes of Proceedings

Tuesday, November 10, 1970.
(4)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Standing
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at 4:00 p.m.
this day.

Present: The Honourable Senators Grosart (Deputy
Chairman), Carter, Connolly, Eudes, Gouin, Lang, Mac-
naughton, Quart, O’Leary (Carleton), Pearson and
Yuzyk—(11).

Present, but mot of the Committee: The Honourable
Senator McNamara—(1).

In attendance: Mr. Bernard Wood, Special Assistant to
the Committee.

The Committee continued study of the Pacific Area.
The Deputy-Chairman (Senator Grosart) introduced
the witness:

Mr. R. W. Bonner,

Executive Vice-President, Administration,
MacMillan & Bloedel Limited,
Vancouver, British Columbia.

The witness was thanked for his contribution to the
Committee’s work.

At 6:00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chairman.

ATTEST:

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committee.




The Standing Senate Committee on

Foreing Affairs

Evidence

Ottawa, Tuesday, November 10, 1970

[Text]
The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs
met this day at 4 p.m.

Senator Allister Grosart (Deputy Chairman) in the
Chair.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, I regret to
say that the chairman of this committee, Senator Aird, is
not able to be here today. He is unavoidably absent due
to an indisposition which, I am glad to say, is in no way
serious.

Our witness today, Mr. Robert Bonner, is known to
many honourable senators. I find it difficult not to call
him the Honourable Robert Bonner but, under our
strange system, former provincial ministers do not carry
the appellation “honourable”—which is something that
should be corrected in due course.

Robert Bonner was a member of the British Columbia
legislature from 1952 and held the portfolio of Attorney-
General for 16 years. He held other portfolios in that
government. He was Minister for Industrial Development,
Trade and Commerce from 1957 to 1964, a department
which has been very active in all aspects of economic
relations of British Columbia and western Canada gener-
ally with the Pacific countries which are the current
subject of our discussions in this committee.

He retired from the government in 1968 and is at the
moment the Executive Vice-President, Administration, of
the MacMillian Bloedel Company, which is closely
associated with the Pacific area.

We are very fortunate as a committee to have Mr.
Bonner with us. I might say that I had the privilege only
last week end of being with him at the meeting of the
Canadian Economic Policy Committee in Vancouver
which zeroed in on more or less the same topic as that
which concerns our committee, namely, Canadian-Pacific
relations.

Mr. Bonner has provided us with a precis of his
remarks which have been distributed to members of the
committee. Without further ado, I will ask Mr. Bonner to
present his views, comments and his evidence to the
committee.

Mr. R. W. Bonner, Vice-President, Administration,
MacMillan Bloedel Lid.: Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators, I am delighted to have the opportunity of being
heard today on the subject of the Pacific Rim, because I
feel so strongly that our recognition of this part of the
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world as a trading area has been overdue and now that it
is a formal part of our national policy to recognize this
area, as has been the case for a number of recent years
past, I believe that we require to learn more about the
area in all its variety of detail and concert policy in that
direction if we are not to lose by default the realization
of many of the opportunities which exist there.

I should say, first, Mr. Chairman, that I am not in the
habit of distributing copies of my own speeches but the
invitation to appear before your committee is of com-
paratively recent date and I did not have the opportunity
in the intervening space of time to prepare more formal
remarks. However, the remarks which I delivered on
May 25 last, of which I understand copies have been
circulated, represent views which I had developed at that
time and which are essentially unaltered today.

However, I share in what I imagine to be the chief
problem of the committee, the difficulty of getting into
this general subject which is a very broad and complicat-
ed subject, easily and in detail. In that connection, I
thought I should draw to your committee’s attention, Mr.
Chairman, the publication of a number of items of refer-
ence which I found very helpful and which members of
your committee might care to examine at their leisure.

There is, for example, a publication of the Government
of British Columbia, the Department of Industrial Devel-
opment, Trade and Commerce, entitled “The Pacific Rim,
an Evaluation of British Columbia Trade Opportunities”.
This is a publication of very recent date, having been
distributed only during September althouth its
imprimatur bears the date of July 7. It will be found in
this document that there are compilations based on
United Nations data, some of the less well-known publi-
cations of federal departments, data from American
sources, such diverse summations as midyear populations
and crude birth rates of Pacific rim countries, the latest
available figures on external trade of Pacific Rim coun-
tries, the estimates of total and per capita gross national
product of Pacific rim countries. There is also the best
summation that I have seen of export through the British
Columbia customs ports to the Pacific rim countries
showing, in 42 categories, those things which we send out
of the west coast to the United States, to Pacific Latin
America, to Japan, to the territories comprising Oceania,
to other countries in the far east and, as well, exports to
the U.S.S.R. and the People’s Republic of China which
has been recently recognized diplomatically by our
country.

I know that copies of this publication are available
from the provincial government and I would suggest,

SutD
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with deference, that the committee might find it useful to
have this material called for, so as to form part of your
committee’s record in these proceedings.

I would like next to relate to the meeting which you,
Mr. Chairman, attended with me on the west coast, in
reference to papers which are in preparation by the
private body known as the Canadian Economic Policy
Committee. I do not know if it is widely recognized that
there is at Carleton University Professor K.A.J. Hay, no
doubt personally known to many here, who has written
in a very penetrating way concerning Japan in the next
decade.

I have come quickly in discussion of the Pacific rim to
discussion to the kingdom of Japan because of one con-
clusion which is in my printed remarks, namely that the
Pacific rim opportunities are in large measure made in
Japan at the present time.

In a publication of the Canada-Japan Council in May
of this year, Professor Hay published a Canadian view on
this subject and I am sure that your staff can call on this
document, which in my personal opinion is one of the
best insights which anyone can bring to this committee,
as to Canada’s view of this part of the world in the
immediate future.

Senator Macnaughton: Will you give us the reference,
sir,

Mr. Bonner: Yes, the reference is to the Canada-Japan
Trade Council Monthly Bulletin and I believe it is for
May, 1970.

. I do not want to take a lot of time in an opening
statement, except to refer to two or three of these things
which can be pursued privately, and I would like to draw
the attention of the committee to a speech given by
Tadayoshi Yamada Permanent Executive Counsel of the
Nipeon Steel Corporation who was the invited guest at a
British Columbia Natural Resources Conference at a
meeting held in Vancouver in April, 1970. I have had the
opportunity of knowing Mr. Yamada for a number of
years and was instrumental in having him invited to this
particular meeting. He in turn delivered a very detailed
address under the title of “The Pacific Horizon is
Bright”. And in the course of this he delivered a modern
Japanese viewpoint on Canadian-Japanese relationship,
which is best examined in its original text rather than to
hear me give a version of it. I refer to this background
material, Professor Hays’ remarks and Mr. Yamada’s
speech because of what I personally perceive to be a
great deficiency in our approach to the Pacific rim,
namely, a lack of just everyday knowledge of what the
Pacific rim comprises. We think very readily of relation-
ships continentally with the United States because we
have so much history and so many institutions in
common, and we know almost instinctively how to deal
in the North American continent even without an inti-
mate detailed knowledge of a local problem which might
be approached. To a lesser extent, but nevertheless to a
very real extent, this is also true of Europe. Our condi-
tioning from our various European heritages in this
country makes it very easy and there is no psychological
Varrier in the way of any Canadian businessman going to

any part of western Europe, and even although he may
not be personally or intimately acquainted with the com-
munity, he can find his way in very quickly.

This is not so readily true among the Pacific rim
countries off the north and South American continent,
and I take out of that context, of course, Australia and
New Zealand with which we have automatic rapport.
But, for example, when you seek to do business with
Japan or when you seek to do business in Malaysia or
the countries of Oceania, there is an immediate cultural
lack of familiarity which represents a very real and
practical psychological barrier against the otherwise com-
monplace task of doing business. In other words, you
have to spend a lot of time finding your way in.

Senator Pearson: Has language anything to do with
this?

Mr. Bonner: Language of course is a problem, but that
is not the most complicated problem to which I refer. The
ordinary structure of many of the societies involved, the
resort or non-resort to local government or national gov-
ernment are all features which have to be individually
explored and experienced. For example, quite a different
approach is required in Malaysia as distinct from Japan
and so on. I do not offer these views out of extensive
personal experience, but on the basis, in one instance, of
personal experience but more than that on the experi-
ence of others who have been there and who have shared
their experiences with me.

In other words, the approach to the Pacific is not to be
viewed as being other than a complicated question of
culture, of language and of unfamiliar history and insti-
tutions, and it would be unwise to overlook these facts as
an obstacle to easy penetration of the Pacific excluding
the western hemisphere countries of the Pacific and
excluding, of course, Australia and New Zealand.

The scope of my distributed remarks identified or
sought to identify the expectations generally amongst the
OECD countries for the seventies, and I endeavoured in
those remarks to single out in the Pacific rim countries
Japan as having the prime moving role in widening the
horizons of active trade in that part of the world.

I shall not trespass on the committee’s time by refer-
ring in detail to those printed remarks, but at the risk of
oversimplifying what is involved in the Japanese expec-
tations, I think it is fair to say now that the per capita
GNP of Japan is equal to or possibly slightly ahead of
the per capita GNP attributed, say, to the Maritime
provinces. At the expected rate of growth in which I
have some confidence of their achievement, Japan’s per
capita GNP should equal that of Canada by the mid-
1970s, and on the basis of these general expectations for
which there is a good deal of history which would give
one confidence that they will be attained, the Japanese
GNP by the end of the 1980’s will have surpassed that of
all of the western European countries and become a close
challenger to the expected GNP of the United States
itself at that time.
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I put those views forward conscious of all the limita-
tions that can be associated with that type of projection.
But the Japanese have displayed great ingenuity and
great insight into their capacity for attainment. In 1965,
which I regret is rather a long time ago now, as part of a
provincial delegation to Japan as a guest of the National
Government I had the opportunity to see a number of the
factories which had been recently brought on the line.
For example, the Yawata Steel Company was occupying
a new site created out of the sea at Kansai, outside
Osaka, and having seen similiar installations in Germany,
in the United Kingdom and in the United States previ-
ously, I think it is fair to say that the Yawata Steel
Works that I viewed were the most modern which at that
time could be seen. I don’t know how many metres of
plant were involved, but there was scarcely a workman
in view and the steel was racing through there at 30 or
40 miles an hour from ingot to shape in a fascinating
manner. Later, if we get into it, I can give references to
Japanese expectations in steel. At their present rate of
growth and development they estimate they will be the
prime steel producers in the world by 1973. That will be
quite an achievement even if they are delayed a year or
two in realizing their expectations.

The second thing about all of this achievement is, of
course, the Japaneses dependence on material from
abroad, and in this regard I think that your committee’s
attention, Mr. Chairman, would be well directed to a
white paper on trade published by the Japanese Ministry
of International Trade and Industry earlier this year. It is
referred to in the Canada-Japan Trade Council News
Letter of October, 1970. With your permission I would
like to refer in paraphrase to a portion of the summation
of the Ministry’s statement:

Japan now ranks second in the free world in her
consumption of natural resources. In 1969 she was
45.4 per cent dependent on overseas sources of
supply, and at the present time her ratio of import to
total demand in crude oil, for example, is 99.5 per
cent, iron ore 99.1 per cent, coking coal 74.7 per cent,
copper 51.1 per cent, zinc 54.3 per cent, and nickel
100 per cent.

An examination of Canadian exports to that part of the
Pacific shows how our supply and the Japanese require-
ments are intimately linked, and this is equally true of
Australia, our Commonwealth cousin, in the Pacific. But
more than Japan’s dependence on raw supply is the
subtle transformation which its burgeoning economy has
produced in the profile of Japanese life. In years gone by
it was possible to refer to Japanese industry which, in
many aspects, was labour intensive. However, there has
been a two or three phase transformation of Japanese
industry with the result that there has been within Japan
a deliberate phasing out of labour-intensive activity, so
much so that there is now in the ministry’s own state-
ment an acknowledged labour shortage, and correspond-
ingly a need within Japan to concentrate on technology-
intensive products.

This produces a tripartite obligation on Japanese
domestic policy. They are urgently now required to

increase productivity in low productivity industries by
reorganization and rationalization, and in some cases
shifting the industry out of the country entirely, as in the
case of textiles to Taiwan, or as in the case of a portion
of shipbuilding which has gone to Singapore. There is a
very intensive domestic program of the introduction of
modern labour saving methods, and correspondingly to
assist domestic policy there is an increasing emphasis on
dealing with developing countries by investment and by
exporting know-how, and by avoiding direct competition
with the products of those developing countries.

It is this labour-intensive transformation which in my
view holds out great opportunity to countries such as
Canada, because many of the raw stuffs which are sent
off-shore require to be transformed in industries which in
Japan are still labour-intensive, and, more than that, in
industries which are heavy consumers of energy.

It occurs to me to suggest that a portion of Canadian
policy with respect to Japan would properly concern
itself with a rationalization of trade between the two
countries, of which the Canadian-American pact on
automobile production might be an example of applica-
tion. In other words, where Japanese energy is expensive
and difficult of obtaining, Canada with domestic energy
surpluses could increasingly upgrade the nature of its
exports while still maintaining its service relationship to
a growing Japanese industry.

The unhappy fact that we have labour surpluses within
this country also lends itself to a rationalization along
these lines as well.

I put this out as a prospect which deserves more
detailed national study, because having become a
dependable, responsible, and large-scale supplier of many
Japanese raw material requirements over the years we
can interpose the legitimate viewpoint that we ought to
be upgrading the quality of those exports to Japan in
every possible way.

When I had something to do with this subject as a
matter of public policy, these points were touched upon
with various Japanese delegations with whom I met.
There was not at that time any resistance to this idea,
any more than there was any resistance to the suggestion
that Japanese interest in this country should properly
take the form of joint ventures in which Canadian indus-
try and Japanese industry could join in a proper and
profitable partnership for our own advantage as well as
that of Japan itself.

So I think that there is on the Japanese side frank
recognition of legitimate aspirations of this sort which
might be properly voiced on our side, and I put that
forward as a matter which this committee might take
into account as its deliberations proceed.

Mr. Chairman, I have unfortunately perhaps dwelt too
much on Japan in connction with the Pacific rim, but I
do so because of its undoubted importance in the present,
and its even greater importance inthe future. To speak of
the Pacific rim in terms of Japan, of course, is not to
view the situation in a complete perspective. I referred a
little while ago to the British Columbia publication, and I
return to it to point out that many of the Pacific Rim
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countries have absolutely unacceptable per capita
GNP’s—that is, unacceptable in terms of their long term
contentment with their lot. Cambodia, for example, has a
per capita GNP estimated currently to be $150; Taiwan,
$322; Indonesia, $97; South Korea, $212; Laos, $72; and
Malaysia, $344. Figures of this sort—and I understand
our discussions do not touch on the Western hemisphere
at all—indicate to me that there cannot be in fchose
quarters of the Pacific—and those quarters to which I
have made reference are essentially in the southeast
part—other than a fertile hunting ground for doctrines
that promise uplift. Indeed, one of the complications, as I
read it, of the Vietnamese activity is the complication of
the interest of Mainland China. The North Vietnamese
forces are contending for the future of that unhap.py
country faced with the prospect of its development with
a North American philosophy as represented essentially
by the United States and, to some lesser extent, by
Australia which is also represented in that action. In
other words, West and East meet very forcibly at that
point in a situation in which per capita GNP in a very
low level of material attainment must bedevil and frus-
trate the life of most of the inhabitants of that country.

It is perhaps a dramatic identification, but nevertheless
it is a typical one of that part of the world, and I refer to
it in my distributed remarks in the context that among
the five leading actors in the Pacific—the United States,
Japan, Australia, New Zealand and Canada, and the bal-
ance of whom I have described as the strugglers—there
has to be a disinclination for the strugglers to accept
their lot. Correspondingly, there is thrown upon the lead-
ing actors in the Pacific some responsibility to be of
assistance in enabling these struggling people to improve
their material standards of attainment.

This particular aspect brings us quickly into a view of
Canadian aid programs abroad, as well as those of Japan
and the United States in the same area. I think there is a
role that Canada can discharge in this area, but it must
be recognized that the immensity of the problem is such
that we cannot be expected to save the day single
handed. Indeed, our own capacity to be useful in this
regard is severely limited by the fact of our population
and by the fact of our sluggish growth in our own GNP.

However, I think our country has done very well in the
efforts it has expended to date. If there was one choice
we had to make between training Ph.D.’s, however, and
training foremen, I think we should be frank to recognize
that a brigade of foremen would be worth a division of
Ph.D.s in almost any country of Southeast Asia, because
there the problem is not one of dispensing higher educa-
tion. Our problem in that area is one of disseminating
common industrial competence at the millwright level, so
that they can deal with the material that comes into their
hands, whether it be a plough drawn by a tractor for the
first time, or whether it be a sawmill which they are
starting for the first time, or whatever it may be. Their
requirement is in common industrial knowledge, it would
appear to me, rather than there being a case for extreme
academic attainment.

Mr. Chairman, perhaps I have delivered myself of
enough general views and exposed myself sufficiently

that some questions might be asked. I therefore suggest
that questioning might be more appropriate, if it would
meet with your committee’s wish.

The Deputy Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr.
Bonner. I said that members of the committee had a
précis of Mr. Bonner’s remarks. You will note that it is
dated May 25, 1970, so I presume it was prepared for
another purpose. However, I think honourable senators
will agree that we have had a remarkable verbal presen-
tation from Mr. Bonner, which indicates, happily I think,
that there are in Canada businessmen with a background
of knowledge of the relations between Canada and the
Pacific rim, which augurs well for future policy-making,
from both the public and the private sector.

Following the custom of this committee, the meeting is
now open for questions from members of the committee.
I will start with Senator Lang, who will be followed by
Senator McNamara, Senator O’Leary, Senator Carter,
Senator Macnaughton, Senator Pearson, and any others
who wish to indicate as we go along.

Senator Lang: The questions that I will direct to Mr.
Bonner are rather a hodgepodge and arise in the reverse
order to some of the remarks he made this afternoon.
They are not so much questions as requests for amplifica-
tion of his own personal views on the matters he raised.

Latterly, Mr. Bonner, you mentioned the rather violent
confrontation between East and West in Vietnam. How
would you view the effect of the trade patterns in South-
east Asia as between the other Pacific rim countries,
including Canada, and Vietnam in the event of a United
States withdrawal of its armed forces from that country?
Would we have an opportunity to exploit a trade and
technological initiative in that area under those circum-
stanes, or would we be hampered by our identification,
perhaps indirectly, with the United States because of our
geographic location, and probably our association in the
Commonwealth with Australia?

Mr. Bonner: I think I would have to make an assump-
tion in attempting to answer your question. That assump-
tion would be that in the cessation of hostilities in Viet-
nam free access by the rest of the world to that country
was an implicit condition. In other words, withdrawal of
the United States could not be succeeded by an
impressed government, say from the north, which I
would view as likely to exclude western countries from
that part of the world.

Assuming that kind of a peace can be achieved in
Vietnam, leaving the country free in its external relation-
ships, I see no reason why Canada and the United States
might not have a proper role to play. Frankly, I would
think the United States’ opportunity would be greater
than Canada’s, because of her presence in that part of
the world in a major way for a number of years. My
conclusion is based in part on the experience that fol-
lowed the cessation of hostilities in Korea, where the
United States, although at that time joined by Canada
and a number of other countries in the western world,
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nevertheless remained the dominant presence in Korea as
hostilities stopped.

I would anticipate, just from the momentum of con-
tinuing interest, that the United States would be there.
But, as in the case of South Korea, and on the limited
contacts I have had with that country, I am aware too
that there is most likely to be in Vietnam, as there has
been in South Korea, a desire on the part of the govern-
ment and community of that country not to be wholly
associated with any western country. There have been
explorations by Korean business people and civil authori-
ties to interest Canadians in dealing more fully with
South Korea. It is an extremely difficult area to reach in
terms of doing business, and I think South Vietnam
would be an extremely difficult area from that standpoint
too.

However, what Canada is doing elsewhere in Southeast
Asia is described better by the September edition of
Foreign Trade than any words of mine could furnish,
because the Department of Trade and Industry has
brought together a series of articles on Southeast Asia,
Malaysia, Thailand, Burma, Singapore and so on, which
shows what Canadians are doing there now. I would say
that anything we are doing in southeast Asia presently
we can duplicate in South Vietnam, or with the Viet-
namese nation entirely if is freed after the cessation of
hostilities.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Do you think that
either North or South Vietnam, Mr. Bonner—and we are
old friends, Mr. Chairman, under other circumstances—
or both countries if they come together, would be a
major place for development of activities?

Mr. Bonner: No, not major, senator. We spread our-
selves as 21 million people pretty thin when we get into
the Pacific. I think you can probably number on the
fingers of two hands the people who are successful par-
ticipators in terms of corporation activity in the Pacific
today. I would be tempted to encourage them to expand
on proven success, rather than to try a shotgun approach
to that area. That is another point.

Senator Connolly: Thank you.

Senator O’Leary: Mr. Bonner, you dealt in a penetrat-
ing and interesting way with Japan. What about China?
If we go on selling wheat and other things to China, how
is China going to pay us back? What do we buy or can
we buy from China to redress the balance of trade?

Mr. Bonner: Senator O’Leary, I cannot give you a
reliable answer to that question. China has been a closed
book for so long that the prospects of business are more
to be imagined than predicted at this moment. I think
there are businessmen in Canada who have, over recent
years, journeyed to Peking for the purposes of trading.
And those men, I think, would more properly be able to
offer an answer than I can.

The real impediment to doing business with China is
implicit in your question, their ability to earn hard cur-
rency abroad. They earn a considerable amount of cur-

rency abroad now through their trade conducted through
Hong Kong, as you know. The exact amount which flows
into China I do not think has ever been determined, and I
think this was their main source of hard exchange at this
time. In doing business with China, following the recogni-
tion of this regime diplomatically, it will be incumbent
on Canada to organize a series of trade missions just to
scout out the ground, because with the passage of time it
is no longer familiar territory.

Senator O'Leary: Are there any reliable figures at all
about the industrial growth in modern China?

Mr. Bonner: I am not possessed of such information,
senator, and I would not want to guess on it in reply.

Senator McNamara: I wonder if I might interject a
remark here. I was quite surprised at the presentation by
Mr. Bonner of the possibilities in the Pacific rim, concen-
trating so much on Japan and the unknown market. It
seems to me that China is a future in this area and,
having had some experience there myself, it seems to me
that the climate that Canada now has to go into that
country and develop trade, is enormous. We are compet-
ing very seriously at this stage with the Americans on
the bounds of the Pacific rim, but I am sure we would
have an “in” at this time. I am wondering if private
business, as we have it today, does not share my view
that we have a wonderful opportunity now, with the
recognition. I know it is the feeling of a great number of
people I have talked with, who have a feeling of great
friendship with Canada. I am not concerned about the
potential balance of payments position, which I think is
better than most countries of the western world. Know-
ing as I know from previous experience of the difficulties,
I know they pay in sterling. I know from figures and
from people there that their earning capacity in sterling
in other Pacific rim countries is enormous. I was sur-
prised in your approach to this and I am in almost
complete agreement with all the remarks about China
and the possibility that the potential of the Pacific rim
and China has been overlooked. As Canadians, this is the
time for us to move fast. Somebody made reference to
Korea. I don’t think the situation is the same there at all,
because the Americans still dominate South Korea. But
after Vietnam I think you are going to find that China is
going to dominate that country. It will be wise enough to
see that the rest of the industrial world moves into those
markets and it would much prefer to help Canada get
established in that area, because Australia or the United
States are regarded as potential enemies. Are you think-
ing about China as expanding in your own firm, for
example?

Mr. Bonner: Mr. Chairman, may I say to Senator
McNamara that I carefully carried out an assumption
when answering the Vietnamese questions posed by Sena-
tor Lang, because I would not argue that there is not a
very strong possibility that the Chinese will emerge or
seek to emerge as a dominant force in Vietnam if the
United States does withdraw. That is what the confronta-
tion is all about and that is why I said that I was
answering on the assumption that the cessation of hostili-



3:10

Foreign Affairs

10-11-1970

ties will achieve an open Vietnam. If it is not going to be
an open one, then it is going to be closed and closed
against us. I am speaking about North America in
general.

I dwelt on the expectations associated with Japan out
of recognition of that country’s proven track record.
Japan, in achieving the results so far achieved, has not
had to tear itself apart with the cultural revolution. It
has not gone through a period in which businessmen in
Peking found it difficult to return from Peking because
they were quoting the wrong price in their order offers
and things of this sort. In other words, I don’t think
Canadians know enough about internal China at the
moment to speculate about its future. I would share your
optimism about China by recognition of the sheer poten-
tial of six or seven hundred million highly intelligent,
hard-working people. I would hope that we would be
clever enough to move in and establish this type of
relationship which we used to enjoy with that country.

I think I suggested, in answer to Senator O’Leary’s
question, that the obligation on Canadians now that
diplomatic recognition has been given will be to organize
trade missions to that country to scout out ground. I
would also suggest that this be done as an important
national priority. Short of learning the new rules I sug-
gest that much of the hope associated with the recogni-
tion of China falls into speculation. I don’t disassociate
myself from hopeful speculation. I merely say as a matter
of doing hard business that we have got to scout out the
ground. After all there are no sales made until the order
is signed. The question is how do we learn to get those
orders signed. I don’t think we are apart, but just the
question of the intervening steps.

Senator Connolly: Senator O’Leary’s problem still
remains, although Senator McNamara has indicated they
are not sure of foreign exchange. What do we buy from
them?

The Deputy Chairman: I wonder, Senator Connolly, if I
may suggest that we carry on with Senator Lang’s ques-
tion and come to this whole question of Canada, perhaps
later.

Mr. Bonner: I would like to take out a caveat at this
point to say that I doubt very much that I am a China
expert.

Senator Macnaughton: Not yet.

Senator Lang: Mr. Bonner, reverting to some of your
previous remarks, you mention that Canadians must
recognize the greatest problems we are faced with in
dealing with Japan and Oceania generally. There are
probably psychological problems in understanding their
forms and ways of doing business and their relationship
between enterprise and government. I would assume that
the Japanese suffer the same psychological disadvantages
in dealing with us as Canadians.

Mr. Bonner: Yes.

Senator Lang: And today I would say probably, or
certainly, there is no other country in the world that
would come close to Japan in terms of developing trade
abroad, but obviously suffering under the same disadvan-
tages that we must contend with. To what do you attrib-
ute her basic success in this area as against what I would
put as our relative lack of success? )

Mr. Bonner: In my view the Japanese in dealing with
the west recognized this problem at the outset, and a
tactic was developed to cope with it in a deliberate way.
There is no major industrial city in North America or in
western Europe—and you can think of your own travels
to bear out what I now propose to say—that does not
have as an almost every-week occurrence the appearance
of some fact-finding Japanese committee on some aspect
of trade information.

For a number of years in the early 1960s, for example,
a great many official and semi-official delegations
appeared in Victoria to make themselves known to
inquire in a very general way about the province and to
some extent about the country. It was very interesting to
me at least to see that in addition to the questions which
were very much to the point there was a current briefing
behind those guestions, which bespoke a long and delib-
erate look at the meeting and at the community before
they arrived. In other words, there was no casual, “I am
off the plane, what do we do next boys?” sort of thing:
They had an agenda which was worked out. They knew
what questions required asking in order to fill gaps in
their personal knowledge, and on the conclusion of the
delegates’ business they got up quickly and politely and
took their leave. In other words, they were on a mission.

I do not want to attribute too much to this sort of
thing, but my impression is that they made the western
cultural gap the object of deliberate study and the object
of deliberate closure, which is a perfectly proper
approach for them to have taken.

What I say with respect to Japan on our behalf is that
we have not, as a national policy, done the same thing. In
many cases not even as a matter of private policy have
too many Canadian concerns done the same thing.

In short, if we are going to achieve a companion type
of success in Japan or in the Pacific Rim we have to send
people out on the ground, well briefed in advance and
with more or less specific missions of closing knowledge
gaps as the object of those missions.

I know a number of companies which are doing that in
terms of their own efforts abroad—that is, their export
efforts. But all I am saying with respect to the Pacific
Rim is that because it is such a fantastically complicated
problem we have to be more active and more deliberate
in this way than we have been in the past, if we are
going to make our presence felt.

We should take a page out of the Japanese book, is
what I am really saying.

Senator Macnaughton: Is your point that the federal
and provincial governments could step in and put some
of the taxpayers’ money towards this form of education?
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It is too much to expect only the large corporations to do
all this development work. What about small
corporations?

Mr. Bonner: Well, I am not certain that the capacity of
small corporations—and I am not sure that we agree on
what “small” might be—but I am not certain that small
Canadian business can necessarily go abroad with expec-
tations of success. The sheer reach required is first of all
an initial obstacle. Secondly, the volumes of business
available very often exceed their capacity to undertake
as is the case between Canada and the United States. It is
the same sort of problem except that it has a different
flavour when you go across the Pacific. It would be
almost better to identify, say, 50 or 100 Canadian busi-
nesses with a capacity and will to go abroad and make
them the cutting edge of national policy at the outset
than to engage in a shotgun program which I infer might
be implied in the observation “public education”. I would
sooner make the shots count.

Senator Macnaughton: I did not mean ‘“public” is that
sense; I meant the cost of exploration.

Mr. Bonner: I appreciate that, senator.

Senator O’Leary: Mr. Bonner, the Japanese produce
reasonably good textiles. Can you conceive of a trade
delegation of Canadian textile manufacturers going to
China to see how many more Chinese textiles we should
buy? In international trade, I think, everybody wants to
sell.

Mr. Bonner: I think that textiles might not be the best
example of our thrust abroad. I cannot imagine that as
an example, I must admit.

Senator Lang: Just one very broad sweeping question.
I can envisage the development of our trade with Japan
as somewhat following historically the development of
our trade and relations with the United States, and par-
ticularly Japan may shortly reach the GNP level of the
United States. Is there something we may benefit from in
our own historical relations with the United States in
developing relations with Japan so that we could avoid
some of what we consider to be the less favourable
aspects of our Canada-U.S. relationship, and I think in
particular of foreign ownership—the suppliers of hewers
of wood and drawers of water to our industrial trade
partner—aspects like that that we are very much con-
cerned with on the north-south axis today.

Mr. Bonner: Well, I don’t share the view currently
being expressed about foreign ownership. I think sooner
or later Canadians are going to have to ask themselves is
it better to have 51 per cent of a local Canadian under-
taking selling abroad, or would it be better to have a
lesser percentage of the head office wherever it is locat-
ed? I think this is the type of question that has to come
to the fore. I recognize that I am running against a
considerable emotional tide in this regard, but we must
ask ourselves whether we must commence to reinvent the
nineteenth century by some of these emotional views

which are being expressed about owning our own coun-
try or buying it back, or whether we should acknowledge
and try to carry out the spirit of international rationali-
zation of trade which is frankly implicit in the European
Common Market. And frankly, I think the example of the
European Common Market with all its implicit interna-
tional relationships and the freeing of capital and the
mobility of labour promises more for this country both
between Canada and the United States and probably
among other trading partners than any restrictive notion
about owning our own branch plants within Canada. The
ownership of a small plant dealing for merchant account
in a free world situation is much more parlous than that
of a plant which is integrated in a rational organization
of international trade. Our participation in our own
affairs in this regard might be well satisfied by our
current tax policies. There are very few shareholders
getting as great a cut of corporate profit as is the tax
department these days.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, I am sure
that we in the Senate and in this committee are very
happy that, having ventured on this great subject of
Canadian Pacific rim relations, we have with us one who
has been described as an old China hand.

Senator McNamara: I find myself in almost complete
agreement with Mr. Bonner’s remarks and the possibili-
ties in this respect. Certainly as far as western Canada is
concerned I have always felt that this was our special
field for an expanding market.

I was somewhat surprised at the concentration on the
Japanese in really competitive markets. We have a won-
derful opportunity to take advantage of this and the
feeling which I know exists in China. I have been there
on many occasions and sympathize with them because
they live so close to “big brother”.

Based on my own experience in dealing with these
people, I believe they generally like Canadians, which
gives us a wonderful opportunity. I certainly agree with
Mr. Bonner’s suggestion that now is the time to have
missions go over there. I do not believe that they should
be necessarily confined to government organizations.
They have to be specialists with certain trades and the
idea of just looking at their own stack of cards and what
they have to sell.

I have another comment, rather than a question, if you
will forgive me. On several occasions when the Chinese
were negotiating with the Canadian Wheat Board, discus-
sions with respect to textile imports and so on took place
because there was nobody else available in this
connection.

Although they do not actually have these commodities,
they talk about them. However, I think that for the
immediate future it is almost a oneway street for Canada
as far as what we have to sell is concerned. Naturally, we
will have to import from them and textiles loom largely
in their thinking. This country of ours has a really won-
derful opportunity now to get into this Chinese market
ahead of the Americans and Australians.
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I am very much impressed by Mr. Bonner’s statements
today. I am sure he shares my view of the prospects for
the future in the Pacific rim as far as Canadian expan-
sion is concerned.

The Deputy Chairman: To make it a question I will a;k
Mr. Bonner if we really have a chance now to get in
ahead of the Americans?

Mr. Bonner: I am afraid I would have to speculate by
way of reply, Senator Grosart. The Americans have had
a presence in that part of the Pacific for many, many
years and a competence which I think we would be hard
pressed to match. It is true that they are a little out of
favour with the Chinese Government. However, I never
under-rate our American cousins.

Senator Carter: Mr. Bonner, we had Mr. Lorne Kavic
before us. We also read his article in which he criticizes
the reluctance of Canadian businessmen to exploit the
trade potential of the Pacific rim.

He says in this article:

“Canadian salesmen in South East Asia just don’t
exist...I’'ve never seen a Canadian salesman there.
I've seen buyers though and bank officials. But no
one actively selling Canadian products...It’s a
booming market...Everyone knows this except
Canada it seems.”

Then further on he says that a failure to exploit the
potential of the Pacific rim aggressively will restrict
Canada’s own development.

I would like to have your view, Mr. Bonner, as to why
Canadian businessmen have been so slow, and have not
been sufficiently aggressive in selling in these countries.
Is it because of these psychological factors that you men-
tioned at the beginning? Is that the sole explanation, or
are there other explanations?

Mr. Bonner: I think in addition to the psychological
problem which anyone would have in going to many
countries in the Pacific, there is the physical limitation
associated with our business community. Our business
community is really not all that large, and successful
Canadian business at the moment is pretty fully occupied
with what it is now doing.

To go into what for most Canadian business would be
a totally new area requires a completely over-and-above
effort, and I think with deference to the author’s remarks
in this regard, he may not have acknowledged the very
real physical limitations which exist in going out into
unfamiliar territory in almost a speculative way as to
what you might expect to secure.

I think once again one of the lessons we should not be
too proud to accept from the Japanese is in the technique
they have of a Canadian associate. Your finding an
appropriate business associate in Malaysia might very
well be your first task before you get into doing a lot of
business there. The matter of having a good local partner
even in Australia is a very important consideration, and
one of the better ways of going into business even in our
sister dominion, if that expression is still acceptable.

Senator Macnaughton: It is our Commonwealth sister.

Mr. Bonner: Certainly in doing business in the Far
East it is highly desirable to have a good Hong Kong
partner, so to speak. It may well be that these considera-
tions have not been to the fore in the minds of many
business people, and it might be part and parcel of what
I think I hinted at in my earlier remarks, that we have
got to get people out on the ground, not necessarily so
much with something specific in mind as with the object
in view of their learning to be familiar and at ease in
unfamiliar situations. I think we need more trade mis-
sions abroad with those views, as the Japanese had with
us in years gone by.

Senator Carter: Would you go so far as to agree with
Mr. Kavic, when he says:

The cause of this neglect by the Canadian manu-
facturer would seem to lie in a comfortable prefer-
ence for concentrating upon traditional markets in
the United States and Europe, and a tendency to rely
upon the Canadian trade service to drum up business
for them in less familiar markets.

Would you go along with that statement?

Mr. Bonner: I certainly could not reject that statement
out of hand. I do not know from a quantitative point of
view how much actual business our foreign service has
developed abroad. I know they are excellent sources of
information, but it is my impression that most business is
accomplished by businessmen going abroad and on the
ground and signing people up. I do not think there is any
other way of doing business. If it is a fact that business
people in any large number are depending upon the
foreign service of our national Government to do busi-
ness for them then, of course, they are mistaken. I cannot
suggest from my experience that this is the fact.

Senator Carter: Assuming that there is something in
Mr. Kavic’s criticism, can you give the committee any
ideas as to what action the Government might take to
remedy that?

Mr. Bonner: Certainly in going abroad it is useful to
have a government official head a delegation. It opens
doors that are not ordinarily opened, and it has quite an
assisting factor to the business delegation. I had the
privilege of heading such a delegation in November of
1963 from our timber industry to the United Kingdom
when we were endeavouring to bolster our trade there in
lumber and plywood.

I learned a very great deal in the course of that. The
industry people present had a highly organized and very
well informed group who were prepared and did meet
with all elements of the British trade. Additionally, the
fact I was heading the delegation brought those business
people perhaps into some contacts they might otherwise
not have easily achieved. I think that combination of
approach was a useful one. I think it is the sort of thing
which should be duplicated in many lines of Canadian
activity today.
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Senator Carter: I was interested in what you said
about Japan moving certain industries, labour-intensive
industries out to other countries, such as textiles to
Taiwan and shipbuilding to Singapore.

Mr. Bonner: Yes, those were just two examples.

Senator Carter: I can see it is good business because
they have a labour shortage at the moment, but would
you think there is a longer range plan involved there
whereby they plan to set up a co-prosperity sphere in
Asia?

Mr. Bonner: Your reference to the co-prosperity sphere
has an old ring to it, one which I recognize. The Japanese
have commercially occupied the old area of the co-pros-
perity sphere far more successfully today than they ever
succeeded in doing in the past. Of course, commercially
speaking the area is completely contiguous to the Japa-
nese homeland, and from the Japanese point of view it is
a completely logical development.

I do not think their efforts can be faulted on that
account. The Japanese have done in this century what
the English did in the last century. With very limited
home resources and nothing but intelligence and an abili-
ty to work hard, they have picked themselves out of the
ashes of the Second World War and are now the second
leading industrial nation in the non-communist world.
This has been done purely by intelligence, education and
sweat. They have done a remarkable thing as a result.

Senator Pearson: Were they not supported by the
Americans?

Mr. Bonner: Initially, yes.

Senator O’Leary: Mr. Bonner, getting down to specifics,
is there a market in Japan for forest products?

Mr. Bonner: Yes.

Senator O‘Leary: The Japanese are the greatest news-
paper readers in the world. From where do they get their
newsprint?

Mr. Bonner: Some from Canada and some from the
United States. They have set up some factories abroad, of
course. They are producing fibre from a variety of
sources in the south-east Pacific area. Japan has consid-
erable domestic forestry which was cut down during the
Second World War and this has left them in terms of
many local supplies, deficient for years to come. They
have set out to make up their fibre supply by contractual
relationships with most of the countries in the Pacific
rim, including our own.

However, the Japanese go beyond the day of natural
fibre dependency and have reportedly invested a very
large sum of money in petrochemical research, with the
objective of producing a synthetic paper out of some of
the byproducts of the petrochemical industry. Such a
paper has now been produced. It happens to be of a very
high grade and is currently very expensive, so that it
does not come into popular competition. But with the

success achieved so far in this aspect of fibre substitution,
and given their determination to do better, I think we
should look for keen competition in this respect in the
future. All of North America should.

Senator O‘Leary: How much effect has transportation
on growing trade with these Pacific rim countries?

Mr. Bonner: As a cost item?
Senator O’Leary: Yes.

Mr. Bonner: I do not think I can give you a generalized
figure. It is an important consideration. It is one that is so
important that the Japanese have succeeded in using
ocean transport under their flag as a means of assisting
their export policy. I am advised that in their negotia-
tions they can give you shading on the commodity price,
or the product price, or the shipping price. By reason of
the closely integrated nature of their economy they have
a certain flexibility in all aspects of getting the product
from Japan to your doorstep, so that once again judging
by the Japanese resort to shipping I would say it is a
very important factor in their success, and could be in
ours.

Senator Carter: If we are going to trade with the small
Southeast Asia countries, are we not more likely to sell
them manufactured goods? Is that where the trade lies,
rather than in raw materials?

Mr. Bonner: I acknowledge that there is a considerable
potential for manufactured goods in those areas. In fact,
the Foreign Trade article that I referred to discusses this
in considerable detail, and with deference I would refer
this article to your attention for a better reply than I can
give. But also in Southeast Asia there are natural
resources awaiting development. There are, for example,
logging and sawmilling opportunities of which Canadian
companies can take advantage in Malaysia and Indonesia,
and some companies have done so. Therefore, although
trade is unquestionably in its conventional sense an
opportunity to which we should be alive, the opportunity
for investment there and engaging in primary and there-
after secondary industry is equally an opportunity open
to us.

Senator Carter: I was in Japan a little over a year ago,
and what surprised me was the high price of their manu-
factured goods compared with the relatively low price for
the same goods that they export. It seems that they must
have a two-price system. Is that the case?

Mr. Bonner: I cannot answer authoritatively, but cer-
tainly they have been accused of maintaining one. In the
March, 1970, Bank of Nova Scotia Newsletter which it
calls its monthly review, refers to this in a chart on page
2 entitled, “Costs and Prices”. In the article it refers to
some of this type of thing. I believe it is correct that
some of the important market for Japanese industry is
the domestic market, and it is a little higher than export
price.

Senator Carter: If Japan has a policy of subsidizing the
export of manufactured goods at the price of excessive
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prices at home, in her preferred position how can a
western country compete anywhere in 'Southeast Asia
with Japan on manufactures? Is it possible?

Mr. Bonner: I do not think Canada could do so in a
wide range of articles, but we might very well compfete
successfully in, for example, logging equipment, of which
we have a particular expertise. This is the type of exam-
ple where we might have some success; perhaps in oil
drilling, with rigs and things of this sort.

Senator Carter: Specialized?
Mr. Bonner: Yes, specialized.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): There has been some
of that too.

Mr. Bonner: Yes, there has been.
Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): In the islands.
Mr. Bonner: Yes.

Senator Macnaughton: Mr. Chairman, in the interest-
ing speech which our guest made on May 25, he raises
some very interesting questions. There is one question I
would like to ask him immediately. You referred to the
fact that we should consider joint venture deals with the
Japanese. You spoke of upgrading of raw materials in
Canada. You mentioned import restrictions in Japan.
Would you elaborate on the type of joint venture deal
that you think we might consider, and what you mean by
it?

Mr. Bonner: I think I had in mind joint ventures in
Canada primarily. There is a very useful summary, for
example, of Canadian mineral development, entitled
“Canadian Minerals and the Japanese Market”, produced
under the auspices of the Canada-Japan Trade Council. It
summarizes in that particular industry what has taken
place in mining development. On page 7 there is a refer-
ence to Japanese interests in Canadian copper producers,
for example, and “joint interest”—which is a very loose
term and I had difficulty with it because it is difficult to
give it precision anyway—has taken a variety of forms
from an equity interest to advances against production or
just outright loans.

It was in that area of activity that I used the expres-
sion “joint venture,” although I must say that in my own
semantic I used “joint venture” as a joint equity venture
of some description, with the security of the Japanese
requirement as the promise of the success of the venture.
I think that is the way our developments ought to go.

Senator Macnaughton: There are several of those
developments going on at the present time in different
industries.

Mr. Bonner: Yes.

Senator Macnaughion: And the result is exactly as you
say. The people who invest, let us say a foreign investor,

wants the security of supply. We on the other hand are
very happy to have an assured market in return and we
split the cost. Is that what you had in mind?

Mr. Bonner: Yes, that is right, exactly.

Senator Macnaughton: Do you feel that this gives us a
certain degree of control? It is a joint effort, a joint
venture.

Mr. Bonner: It is a joint venture. I am not certain what
control is really implied in a supplier-consumer relation-
ship. It seems to me that the customer has a considerable
control. But the joint venture proposal, which was origi-
nally encouraged by the government to which I belonged,
had as its long range objective the day when the raw
product development might be taken to a higher degree of
development, so that the producing of, say, ore concen-
trate would go to the producing of, say, copper blister, or
the production of ingot iron or something of that sort.

Senator Pearson: What about Sherritt-Gordon?
Mr. Bonner: I am sorry, I am not familiar with that.
Senator Macnaughton: Or the production of pulp.

Mr. Bonner: The difficulty of getting in on the Japa-
nese end with the consumers of pulp is pretty complicat-
ed. I must admit we have not done it so far.

Senator Macnaughton: Under the heading of trade pro-
motion by Canada, we do have the Export Development
Corporation. What about the B.C. programs? I under-
stand that British Columbia has been very aggressive in
development programs, or trade promotion.

Mr. Bonner: Trade promotion, rather than development
programs. There are no programs in the conventional
sense of the word in British Columbia. There was enact-
ed a Copper Smelter Bounty Act, of which no one so far
has taken advantage. That remains on the statute books
in British Columbia and that is about the only exception
to my general remarks. However, British Columbia has
been very active in encouraging delegations into the
Pacific area, notably to Japan. By reason of the extensive
Japanese-Canadian-British  Columbia trade, British
Columbia did, as did Ontario and Quebec, put up a
separate pavilion at Expo 70. In 1965, the Government of
British Columbia, headed by the premier, did have a
six-man official delegation in Japan operating at govern-
ment level, scouting out opportunities.

Senator Macnaughton: I do not know whether we
should ask this question or not, but we are all friends:
Do you feel that the federal authorities are serving the
needs of the western provinces in their trade activities—
promotion activities, vis a vis, the Pacific rim?

Mr. Bonner: It is a general question. To be specific, the
Export Development Corporation, by encouraging exports
and providing other services, performs an excellent func-
tion and has served Canadian business generally and
western business specifically in very large measure. I
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think it would be useful for a study to be made of the
comparative trade incentive programs with which we
compete. I happen to be a director of the Canadian
Export Association, with which many of you are person-
ally familiar, and at a recent annual meeting of directors
the association undertook to update a study in this area
which it had done a number of years ago.

I believe the national Government has also interested
itself in this problem. It becomes very important that our
encouragement of exports in any particular line not fall
short of those things which our competitors receive. It is
easier to say that then to implement it, and I recognize
the limitations of that assertion. Some countries are very
aggressive in encouraging their nationals abroad. I think
we should have a program of comparability of encour-
agement wherever we encounter serious trade competi-
tion. National programs are excellent as far as they go,
but I think it might be useful for your committee to be
advised specifically to what extent, if at all, we have a
shortfall in comparability. If that shortfall is sufficiently
identified I think we should see if we cannot correct it.

Senator Macnaughton: Under the general heading of
need for great investment in Japan, as you so well know,
it is said that the restrictions are easing a little bit and,
to quote, “a foot in the door” or “the door is ajar”. Do
you feel that that is, in fact, taking place or is it just
verbiage?

Mr. Bonner: I have read on the subject that formal
barriers have been removed. It is, however, one thing to
free up an opportunity and another thing to seize it. The
practical difficulty of negotiating with an attractive pros-
pective Japanese partner for the purpose of doing busi-
ness in Japan is a fascinating and frustrating experience.

Senator Macnaughton: That is the point I was trying to
make. Are you in a position to say anything about Japa-
nese investments becoming predominant in the Pacific
rim?

Mr. Bonner: Well, I do not have personal knowledge of
what has taken place elsewhere. Referring only to our
own experience on the west coast, I would say that there
is no evidence of any thrusting in by investments. Invest-
ment, so far as I have observed it, has been of a very
limited nature and, so far as I can judge, completely in
accordance with Canadian sensibilities on the subject. I
recognize that recently Ambassador Shinichi Kondo has
taken a rather broader line in the speech given in Cal-
gary on October 14 last, but the line which he took at
that point does not seem to be borne out by previous
experience. I think it may be a negotiating point more
than a practical one.

Senator Macnaughton: Personally, you are not con-
cerned about the size and increasing amount of Japanese
investment in Canada.

Mr. Bonner: No. I think we need a little more of it.
Senator Macnaughton: Or the form it is taking?

Mr. Bonner: I think so far
acceptable.

it has been highly

Senator Macnaughton: Equity or loans? Either way?
Mr. Bonner: We are capital deficient.

Senator Macnaughton: What is your view of the Five
Nation Pacific Basic Economic Co-operative Council? Are
we doing enough or is it doing enough?

Mr. Bonner: I have come only recently into practical
relationship with that body. I find myself as chairman
organizing the May meeting at Vancouver. On the basis
of very limited experience it appears to me that there
has been a great deal of discussion, and I am not certain
at this point what tangible result has come from that
discussion. The Canadian delegation suggested at a recent
meeting in Honolulu, and I think this has become policy,
although I have not so far been advised of it, that the
next meeting should concern itself with identifying
attainable objectives in the Pacific in, say, the next five
or ten years of time. So that the discussion would cease
concerning itself with generalities and would get down to
cases of what we can really do. As a forum for the
exchange of views by responsible people I think it is
good. If they can agree as a forum on objectives to be
atlained, then perhaps greater official action will be re-
quired for the attainment of those identifiable objectives.

Senator Macnaughton: Like Senator Carter, I was in
Japan a few weeks ago and I had the privilege of attend-
ing and seeing the Canadian pavilion at Osaka. On all
sides it seemed to b quite evident that we had outdrawn
everybody else. Canada, from B.C. to P.Q., made a
tremendous impact on the Japanese, and the Canadians
who live in Japan were altogether of the view that now
was the time for a very forceful drive on the part of
Canada against perhaps our chief competitor, Australia
which leads me to question again: what new effort do
you feel that the Canadian businessman should take? I
am coming back to the same question: what technique
should he use? Who foots the bill? The cost? How much
control should the federal and provincial governments
have in their endeavour to underwrite an effort by the
Canadian businessman? How do you get Canadians out
on the ground seeing for themselves, and who pays?

Mr. Bonner: The most obvious example that I can see
immediately of how to go about this is the device of the
trade mission. The trade mission requires careful selec-
tion; requires ordinarily a minister to be in attendance
and to give some leadership in diplomatic encounters and
so on; but the trade mission is, however, only the first
thrust of the effort. Thereafter, whatever encouragement
need be extended at the provincial or national level
should be given for business people to go back to exploit
the contacts and the acquaintances they have made on
the rather more formal tour. I think, for example,
Australia would welcome more Canadian interest in their
development. It seems paradoxical having said a little
while ago in response to one of your questions that we
are capital-deficient, Australia is too. Nevertheless there
are things that we do in this country that are being done
there for the first time and it is a country which is very
rich in resources. Our mining people, for example, have
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recognized this fact and are present in some degree there.
Pulp and paper present opportunities, although the cost
of producing pulp in a new plant is something to ma}{e
you turn pale. It is a matter of identifying opport}lnmes
in limited geographical situations and simply going on
the ground to explore them, and this in view of our
limited physical capacity to be everywhere at once might
be best initiated at government level. I am sure that
business leaders in the country will respond in a very
positive way and collaborate with official efforts in this
regard. I do not think we have sufficiently called upon
business-government collaboration as a means of achiev-
ing national objectives in this country, unlike the Japa-
nese. I think it is time we did so.

Senator Pearson: If our raw materials are mostly what
Japan needs and uses, is there any reason why we should
have to buy manufactured goods from there? They have
use of the raw material and it gives them employment ‘to
a greater extent than we are giving to our own people in
producing that same raw material.

Mr. Bonner: The Japanese presence in the marketplace
has been won by value and acceptance. I don’t think
anyone has extended any real favours to the Japanese in
the expansion of their trade.

Senator Pearson: We don’t ask for a return in the
selling of their stuff?

Mr. Bonner: Well, I have heard the suggestion made,
but it is a free market economy, and price and quality
are determining factors. There is some pain between our
two countries in the matter of textiles, for example, but
that is a problem about which I do not presume to
comment. The Japanese have been very respectful of
suggested gentlemen’s agreements on exports into many
countries including our own, and they are aware that a
totally free market would perhaps permit them to domi-
nate in a way which would be quickly politically unac-
ceptable, so that they are not insensitive to the question.
They have not asked for any unnatural privileges to be
extended to them.

Senator Pearson: Speaking about manufacturing, have
any business people on the west coast had any thought of
getting up their plants in Indonesia or Malaysia and
using the labour there?

Mr. Bonner: Yes. There have been ventures explored
and I don’t know how many have been set up, but I know
one or two that have been set up.

Senator Pearson: I would imagine the Australians
would move into that area very quickly if we don’t do it.

Mr. Bonner: The Australians are in there now in large
measure. However, it is a vast region and the market-
place of south-east Asia is equated to that of western
Europe in dollar volume annually. So there is much
opportunity there.

Senator O’Leary: Mr. Bonner, how much importance in
this drive for Canadian trade anywhere abroad do you

attach to our Canadian Trade Commissions? Should we
increase their status, be more careful in selecting them or
concentrate all our efforts on the young gentlemen on the
cocktail curcuit?

Mr. Bonner: I think you have carefully led me into a
question which is loaded. I think, Senator O’Leary, that
you are having a little fun with me. But my personal
experience with Canadian Trade Commssioners abroad
from some years ago was at the official level, and I found
their efforts in assisting provincial promotions abroad to
be excellent. I do not presume to know that much about
the external affairs commercial consular relationship to
come down on either side of the question. However, on
the whole I think our people abroad are fundamentally
very well qualified. My impression is, however, that they
are insufficiently called upon by business and are possi-
bly somewhat removed from the commercial scene on
that account.

In my limited experience, which I emphasize, I never
found their services to be deficient. Beyond certain initial
points, however, business has to be carried by business-
men and cannot look to government.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): First of all I wish to
say how encouraged I am to hear Mr. Bonner speak the
way he does with regard to the importance for the devel-
opment of commercial relations for Canada in the Pacific
of the work which should be done in the private sector.

Aid is one thing, but when it comes to the continuation
of aid, the follow-up of it, the emphasis that you have
put upon the importance of the private sector, the busi-
ness community and the investing people being in this
operation is something that I would like to hear preached
from the housetops all over this country.

We have really two sets of countries in the Pacific rim;
this is an over-simplication, but there are the developed
countries such as Japan, Australia and the United States,
and there are also the very much underdeveloped coun-
tries. You illustrated that by reference to the low GNP
rate in some South East Asian countries, which does not
amount to even a weekly wage here but still represents
annual, and average at that, earning per capita.

However, you said or implied that there is a potential
opportunity there for Canada, not only in the developed
but also in the developing and very much in the under-
developed countries. What assurance would a Canadian
investor have, or you as a Canadian businessman, in
going into an underdeveloped country, either alone or in
conjunction with some of their own people, and there
may be some in some of these countries, to develop an
enterprise? Would you be concerned that as their politi-
cal and social establishments become sophisticated they
might say “We do not want this foreign investment here,
we do not want this foreign ownership here,” and the
result would be discouraging for us?

Mr. Bonner: I think that possibility is certainly present
in unfamiliar territory. However, the present services of
the nationl Government in the Export Development Cor-
poration and in some of the aspects of it which involve
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essentially insurance of investment abroad or assurance
with respect to the payment of contracts abroad, relieved
much of this risk from private capital which might be so
venturesome as to go into a completely unfamiliar situa-
tion such as you describe, with all of the potential of
local pull-back.

If in the survey of comparative incentives that I dwelt
on some moments ago it were found that our backup for
venture capital abroad was a great deal less than that of
others, I think this would be the type of catch-up policy
we should engage in. In the long run it will be very
important that we do have investments abroad and from
the standpoint of their long range success, the sooner
they get abroad the better.

We are in many respects beginners in foreign invest-
ment venture capital placement and in trading with
unfamiliar people. So that for a time as we make our
trade even more international than it presently is I think
it would be a legitimate call on public effort to back up
private ventures of this sort.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): We are increasing the
amount of our foreign investment. Ten years ago it was
perhaps $6 billion, and I think it is $9 or $10 billion at
the present time. It is growing at that rate. But, the
amount of trade...

The Deputy Chairman: To what are you referring,
Senator Connolly?

Mr. Bonner: Are you referring to private investment
abroad?

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): Yes, I am referring to
private investment abroad. The amount of our trade with
the Pacific is perhaps on the lower rung of the ladder.
Our trade with the Americans both ways is tremendous.
Our trade with Europe and with the United Kingdom is
quite large, and our trade with Japan is still a relatively
small percentage of the total, but with the rest of the
Pacific our trade is rather minimal. Do you think that
Canadian foreign investment beamed towards the Pacific
can be productive if some priority or some empahsis is
given to it by the business community that is interested
in developing it?

Mr. Bonner: On the theory that you cannot do every-
thing I think it would be highly desirable to concentrate
in a few areas where success is more predictable than in
others. For example, Australia is a shining example of
opportunity for any capital seeking to locate. It is more
difficult to do so in Japan, but certainly on the expecta-
tions of their projections a great number of American
businesses, for example, have decided they want to be in
on the domestic development of Japan, and they are
doing so.

There are, comparatively speaking, very many fewer
Canadian businesses that can make similar decisions, but
I think they should be encouraged to do so in Japan and
in Australia.

In short, despite the fact that we have an awful lot to
do to develop our own country, I think we need to

diversify our interests as well, because one of the difficul-
ties with Canadian life is that we under-employ our
people, and if we are content merely to develop ourselves
domestically we will not have the opportunity to send
people abroad and do complicated things in strange ter-
rain that other people are doing with great success. I
would say with respect to our country that anything that
anybody else can do we can do just as well if we decide
to do it.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): I would like to ask a
great many questions, but I shall ask just one more and
then I shall be finished. Do you feel, in other words, that
so far as the Pacific rim is concerned it would be more
desirable to go to the developed countries first because,
as I understand it, going into an empire like Mainland
China puts you in a different kind of ball game, where
the rules are completely different. The philosophy of
government is different. The economic situation is com-
pletely different from the free market we have here, or
that they have in many of the OECD countries. In that
case you would be really venturing into unknown territo-
ry, would you not?

Mr. Bonner: Yes, and I am not certain that we would
have an opportunity to do so in any event. I do not think
there are many examples of western business being
received in communist countries. Fiat in Russia is one
example that comes to mind, and I have immediately run
out of examples. So, our opportunity to do business in
China in a conventional sense may not be implicit in the
diplomatic procedures which are now taking place.
Rather than do a difficult thing in unfamiliar terrain, I
think we should do a difficult thing where there is some
reasonable expectation of a good reception and success.

Senator Carter: Is there a direct relationship between
Canadian investment capital and Canadian exports to a
country where the capital is invested, or is that a long-
term problem?

Mr. Bonner: I do not think there is a relationship or an
inference that can be drawn. I think Canadian invest-
ment abroad is usually directed towards trade other than
back to Canada.

Senator Lang: I just wondered if I might be permitted,
Mr. Chairman, to interject a remark, mainly for the
record. Originally, it arises out of some statements made
by Mr. Bonner in connection with foreign trade missions.
It also relates to the question raised by Senator Mac-
naughton, as to ways and means; and it relates to the
free-enterprise concept espoused by Senator Connolly.

I was interested to learn recently that in the United
States there are private groups that sponsor trade mis-
sions abroad. Generally, they are ex-personnel of govern-
ment trade departments. They set up a company which,
in essence, is a travel agency. They explore an area of
potential interest. They then organize the potential busi-
nessmen whose interests should lie there and try to get
them to form a group. They then make the contacts
abroad. The individual members participating pay their
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own shot on a normal fare basis, but going on a group
basis there is a profit which goes to the promoters of the
scheme. Then they go and get, as you suggested, a suita-
ble public figure to head the delegation and who goes at
the expense of the group as a whole. This has been
eminently successful.

This is an example of private enterprise initiative pro-
ducing a trade mission abroad that has been much more
successful than the government-sponsored trade missions.
In a sense the operation is not unlike Peter Dobell’s
operation, ex-External Affairs, in supplying information
and personnel assistance to parliamentary committees.

In a limited way I have tried to encourage some
departmental people here in Ottawa to defect on this
idea, but I have not had any takers as yet. However, I
think it is an area where private enterprise can move in
and perform a very real service in terms of trade promo-
tion, at a profit.

The Deputy Chairman: Without mentioning any names,
I think we have been doing it in Canada for quite a
while.

Senator Lang: I do not know of any specific organiza-
tions like the ones I could name in the States.

Senator Macnaughion: We have heard nothing but
praise of Japan. I was just going to ask: Are there not
any problems the Japanese have? I recall the problems of
population, wages and growing demands and the possibil-
ity of war, and all sorts of other things. I wanted to raise
some time, though we raised it at the last meeting, the
fine co-operation between the Government, the banks
and business in Japan which, to me, is very exciting and
something we should investigate fully in this country. In
other words, we would have a little more co-operation.

Mr. Bonner: This phenomenon to which you have just
made reference is something which our entire financial
community should view with complete objectivity. Japa-
nese industry benefits, of course, from a very high sav-
ings rate by the Japanese people. I think it is better than

25 per cent, which I think is the highest rate in the
non-communist world. Additionally, industry is heavily
levered; anywhere from 15 to 20 per cent is the total
hard equity in the venture. I should not say this is
typical, but I understand there are many examples in
which 15 to 20 per cent is the total equity position, and
the balance is provided by domestic credits of a great
variety of sources and applications. I can think of very
few situations in Canada which would exist with 15 per
cent equity. Our banking it notable for its lack of failure
as banks, but I am not certain it is equally distinguished
for this type of venture. I do not want to repeat an
argument I had many years ago on a totally different
subject.

Senator Lang: On a long summer afternoon!

Mr. Bonner: However, I do feel that if we are going to
set out at any time to emulate that type of 10 to 12 per
cent annual increase in our GNP, we will have to do so
with different financial equipment than we presently fur-
nish ourselves.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, I see it is
almost six o’clock. I am sure I can say to Mr. Bonner that
the level of the questioning and the continuing attend-
ance till this late hour by members of the committee
indicates the committee’s appreciation and admiration of
the assistance you have given us in the task we have set
ourselves. I think we can say that the questions have
been penetrating, and certainly the answers have been
very enlightening. We take note of the bibliographical
references you have given us, and I am quite sure our
staff will bring them to our attention if they are not
already in our dossier.

On behalf of the chairman, who is unavoidly absent,
and on behalf of the members of the committee, I extend
our sincere thanks to you, Mr. Bonner, for taking the
time to come here and giving us this excellent exerpt
from your vast experience in this important field.

Mr. Bonner: Thank you.
The committee adjourned.

Queen’s Printer for Canada, Ottawa, 1970
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Orders of Reference

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Thursday, October 8, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to examine and report to the
Senate from time to time on any matter relating to
foreign and Commonwealth affairs generally, on any
matter assigned to the said Committee by the Rules
of the Senate, and, in particular, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, on any matter concerning
the Pacific area with particular emphasis on the
position set out in the policy paper “Foreign Policy
for Canadians: Pacific”;

That the said Committee be empowered to engage
the services of such counsel and technical, clerical
and other personnel as may be required for the
foregoing purposes, at such rates of remuneration
and reimbursement as the Committee may deter-
mine, and to compensate witnesses by reimburse-
ment of travelling and living expenses, if required,
in such amount as the Committee may determine;
and

That the Committee, before assuming any financial
obligations in connection with the said examination
and report, submit to the Standing Committee on
Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts a budget
for approval setting forth in reasonable detail the
forecast of expenses to be incurred.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Tuesday, November 17, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved, second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Langlois:

That the name of the Honourable Senator
McNamara be added to the list of Senators serving
on the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.

Robert Fortier
Clerk of the Senate
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Minutes of Proceedings

Tuesday, November 24, 1970.
(5)

Pursuant to adjournment and notice, the Standing
Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs met at 3:00 p.m.
this day.

Present: The Honourable Senators Aird (Chairman),
Cameron, Carter, Connolly, Croll, Eudes, Fergusson,
Grosart (Deputy Chairman), Laird, McElman, McNamara,
Quart, Robichaud, Sparrow and Yuzyk—(15).

Present but mot of the committee: The Honourable
Senators Heath, Lafond, McDonald (Moosomin) and
Smith—(4).

In attendance: Mr. Bernard Wood, Special Assistant to
the Committee.

The Committee continued its study of the Pacific Area.
Witnesses heard:
Representing ALCAN Aluminium Limited:
Mr. R. A. Gentles, Planning Co-ordinator;
Mr. Karel C. Bala, Assistant Secretary;
Mr. R. F. Allen, Assistant to the Vice-President
(Finance) of ALCAN International.
Representing the International Nickel Company of
Canada:
Mr. K. H. J. Clarke, Assistant Vice-President.
Representing the Canadian National Committee,
Pacific Basin Economic Cooperation Council:
Mr. K. H. J. Clarke, Chairman.

Agreed, that the prepared statements submitted by the
respective organizations, be printed as Appendices “A”,
“B” and “C” to these proceedings.

During his testimony, Mr. Gentles tabled a document
respecting certain operations of the Export-Import Bank
of the United States. (Identified as Exhibit “I”).

The witnesses were thanked by the Chairman.

At 5:22 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chairman.

ATTEST:

E. W. Innes,
Clerk of the Committe.




The Standing Senate Committee on

Foreign Affairs
Evidence

Ottawa, Tuesday, November 24, 1970.

The Standing Senate Committee on Foreign Affairs
met this day at 3 p.m.

Senator John B. Aird (Chaiman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I see a quorum
present and therefore declare the meeting regularly
constituted.

Today it is my very pleasant privilege to welcome
Senator Heath to this hearing. Not being a member of
this committee, this is the first time she has attended one
of our meetings. I am sure I speak on behalf of all the
members of the committee when I say that you are most
welcome, Senator Heath.

Senator Heath: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Our meeting today relates to the activi-
ties of two major Canadian corporations with operations
in the Pacific region.

Proceeding alphabetically—I thought perhaps that was
the safest way of doing it—I plan to call first on the
representatives of Alcan Aluminium Ltd., and then the
spokesman for the International Nickel Company of
Canada.

Alcan is represented here today by Mr. R. A. Gentles,
who is Planning Co-ordinator for Alcan Aluminium, the
international company. I might say in passing that Mr.
Gentles suffers from the disability of having known me
for some 35 years. We went to school together in Toronto
and we were together in the navy, but I have not seen
him for 27 years, so it is a great personal pleasure for me
to welcome him here today.

Mr. Gentles is accompanied by a number of officials
from the company with special responsibilities for opera-
tions in the Pacific region.

Mr. Gentles, would you introduce your colleagues?

Mr. R. A. Gentles, Planning Co-Ordinator,
Aluminium Lid.: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Honourable senators, on my immediate right is Mr.
Richard Allen who is in our financial department. Next
to him is Dr. Karel C. Bala, who is Assistant Secretary of
our parent company, Alcan Aluminium Ltd., and also
Vice-President of Alcan Secretariat. Also accompanying
me is Mr. Vaillancourt, who is manager of our local office
in Ottawa.

Alcan

The Chairman: Thank you very much.

Also at this time I would like to introduce Mr. Kenneth
H. J. Clarke, who is INCO’s Assistant Vice-President for
Canadian sales. Mr. Clarke will be taking the stand later
in the meeting.

All our committee members have received copies of the
brief entitled “Alcan in the Pacific.” I might comment
that it is a substantial document, although not a lengthy
one. It is clear from the contents that Alcan has a long-
standing and extensive involvement in many countries in
the Pacific. For evidence of this, I would simply refer you
to the statement on page 3 that in 1969 Alcan was
responsible for some 10 per cent of Canada’s exports to
the Pacific countries, so we are obviously talking this
afternoon about a major factor in Canada’s whole rela-
tionship with the Pacific region.

On behalf of the whole committee, therefore, Mr. Gen-
tles, I would like to thank you for this very informative
brief and invite you to make your opening statement.

I would also say that I have asked Senator Carter to
lead the questioning. In the interests of equal time, we
will try for about one hour and 15 minutes from you and
perhaps one hour and 15 minutes, in due course, from
Mr. Clarke. So, if you would all be guided by those loose
rules of procedure, I would ask Mr. Gentles to proceed.
He has indicated that he would like to speak to his brief
for about 15 or 20 minutes and then proceed with the
questions.

Mr. Gentles: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Henourable senators, I can assure you that Alcan is
honoured and pleased to be invited to appear before this
committee for the second time. As you will recall, we
presented a brief when you were studying a similar
situation in the Caribbean. Because of the circumstances,
I apologize for our not being able to put the desired
time and thought into the preparation of the brief that
we submitted to Mr. Dobell last Thursday, but we hope
that it will give you a fairly good idea of what our
commercial relationships are in the Pacific basin
countries.

Since each of you have a copy of that brief, I do not
think there is much point in my going through it in
detail. However, I will try in these, what I hope will be,
relatively brief remarks to summarize the highlights in
it.

Firstly, at the risk of repeating some facts with which
most of you may be familiar, I should like to ensure that
you have a reasonably clear picture of who Alcan is. As
you may know, Alcan is a Canadian corporation that is
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publicly owned by some 7,500 preferred shareholders and
about 72,000 common shareholders. Almost all of its 1,-
500,000 convertible shares, and close to 40 per cent of its
almost 33,000,000 common shares are held by Canadians.
In terms of current market value, the Canadian holding
represents just about $300 million, and I would think it is
probably one of the largest equity investments held by
Canadians in a public enterprise.

Alcan’s consolidated subsidiaries employ some 62,000
pecple throughout the world, about 19,000 of which are
located in Canada, primarily in Quebec, Ontario, and
British Columbia.

In 1969 the value of the goods and services purchased
by Alcan in Canada was about $114 million, while pay-
rolls totalled about $161 million. Federal and provincial
taxes amounted to $64 million, and Canadians received
some $19 million in dividends.

I trust that these figures confirm the impression that
you probably already have, namely, that Alcan has pro-
vided a substantial contribution to the growth of the
Canadian economy.

Altogether Alcan subsidiary and related companies
have bauxite holdings in nine countries, and we smelt
primary aluminum in nine countries. We fabricate alumi-
num in 33 countries, and we have sales outlets in more
than 100 countries.

Last year our consolidated sales and operating reve-
nues amounted to just about $1.225 billion. Our subsidi-
aries and related companies produced about 1,700,000
tons of aluminum. Nearly half of the aluminum that
moved across international boundaries was Alcan alumi-
num, but nevertheless our share of the total market in
the Western world is less than 20 per cent. At the end of
last year our gross assets had risen to about $3.1 billion,
and our net assets to about $2 billion.

I record these facts and figures merely in an attempt to
indicate to you that apart from being a major participant
in the Canadian industrial scene, Alcan is also a very
important factor in the international aluminum business.
We are truly a multinational company, and the composi-
tion of our management reflects this fact. The role we
play in Canada is made possible, and, in fact, is com-
pletely dependent upon, the success of our international
activities.

To get directly to the main purpose of this meeting I
shall now try to describe our activities in the Pacific
basin countries which are subdivided basically into two
principal categories, firstly, the sale of aluminum prod-
ucts principally made in Canada in these countries, and,
secondly, our direct investment in aluminum enterprises
in those countries.

Last year we sold 158,000 tons of metal or aluminum
products in the Pacific basin countries, most of which
was in the form of aluminum ingots exported from
Canada. To give you some idea of the importance of the
Pacific basin as a market to us it might be worth men-
tioning that in the same year—that is last year—we
supplied 399,000 short tons to our largest single market

which was the United States, 191,000 short tons to the
United Kingdom, 158,000 short tons—the same amount
that we supplied to the Pacific basin countries—to the
EEC, and 152,000 short tons were sold here in Canada.
Japan, New Zealand and Hong Kong were our major
customers in the Pacific basin area. At this point I think
it may be worth emphasizing that for a number of rea-
sons, such as tariff barriers, transportation costs and
relatively low added value, there is relatively little move-
ment of aluminum across international boundaries in
other than primary ingot form, and in our view this
situation is not likely to change much in the future.

Moreover, during the past 15 years the economics of
the primary aluminum and smelting business have
undergone some rather fundamental changes, particularly
in regard to electric power requirements and power costs.
These changes have understandably encouraged the
establishment of domestic smelters in some of our off-
shore markets, which had previously imported aluminum
from Canada, and this has tended to affect adversely the
international competitive situation of Alcan in the inter-
national aluminum market.

In some of these situations to encourage domestic
smelters there have also been instances of import
embargoes and/or relatively high tariffs, and/or govern-
ment assistance in the form of grants, special financing
and tax benefits. Therefore, as far as Alcan’s future is
concerned with maintaining and hopefully increasing the
export of Canadian ingots, it is essential for us to have
the support and co-operation of the Canadian Govern-
ment in minimizing the adverse competitive conditions
with which Canadian aluminum is being faced.

To get to the second category of our activities, namely,
direct investment, I should mention that Alcan’s alumi-
num industrial investments in the Pacific basin are in
Japan, Australia, New Zealand, Malaysia, and Thailand.
Our investments in Japan and Australia are by far the
largest and, in those terms to us at this moment of time,
the most important. By far our largest investment is in
Japan, and is in two companies in which we are 50:50
partners. In these two companies our combined share of
the gross assets is $235 million, and of the total sales $100
million. By 1975 we expect that these participations will
increase to about $500 million and $200 million respec-
tively with most of the required financing for the
increased assets being provided locally in Japan.

In Australia and New Zealand where we have 70 per
cent participations in two aluminum companies, and in
the case of Australia a 21 per cent share of an alumina
company, our share of the combined value of the gross
assets is $US136 million, which we expect to rise to about
$US200 million by 1975. Our respective share of the total
sales revenue of these companies is $US52 million which
we think will rise to approximately $US100 million over
the next five years.

In 1969 our parent company received $3.5 million in
dividends and technical fees from our investments in the
Pacific basin area. We expect these revenues to increase
over the future at least proportionately to the rise in our
investment in this area.
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With respect to our investments in these and other
countries, Alcan has followed a policy of trying to devel-
op as quickly as possible local management, and many of
these managers have risen to managerial posts outside of
their own countries.

Our subsidiaries and affiliates have access to our
group’s Canadian research and development facilities in
Kingston, Ontario and, Arvida, Quebec, and reciprocally
our Canadian affiliates have access to the technological
advances that are developed in our foreign subsidiaries.

In regard to ownership and management I might say
that in Japan Alcan is involved in a 50:50 partnership in
both of its associated companies there, and both we and
our Japanese partners have found this relationship to be
working very satisfactorily. However, as a general rule
we prefer to have management control of our foreign
subsidiaries and preferably to retain the right to supply
them with their metal requirements, although we do
welcome local participation in share ownership.

We believe that the Pacific basin will continue to be an
important outlet for Canadian metal, despite the develop-
ment in some countries of indigenous sources of supply.
Also, we believe that the economies and aluminum con-
sumption of the countries in the Pacific basin will proba-
bly grow at a faster rate in the future than the rate at
which aluminum consumption will increase in some of
our more developed markets. Therefore, since we are in a
good position to expand our operation in this area, we
intend to take advantage of any opportunities to carry
out such expansions as they occur.

However, the development of these countries is accom-
panied, understandably, by changes in the regulations
regarding foreign investment. In our opinion it is impor-
tant, if not essential that the nature of intergovernmental
agreements between Canada and these Pacific basin
countries change in step with the relative economic
development of the countries concerned. As an example,
whereas investor confidence in Australia was originally
attached to the Commonwealth relationship of that coun-
try, the investor must more and more now look to the
multi-lateral treaties for such confidence.

Also, as a company we have always been advocates of
free trade. In practice, however, we realize that some-
thing less than the absolute tends to be the rule rather
than the exception. However, to the extent that
embargoes or excessive tariff barriers exist or are erected
in Pacific basin countries they reduce the opportunities
for the export of Alcan metal, or for any other Canadian
goods for that matter.

The growth of Canada’s exports has been impressive.
This can be attributed in no small part to an improve-
ment in the Export Development Corporation’s long term
financing arrangement as well as to the insurance scheme
that is now offered.

We would like to suggest that in light of our experi-
ence in using these facilities they could further be
improved by providing a rediscount facility for export
paper which results from such export transactions, as
well as a selective market insurance coverage.

Also, we share the concern of all those engaged in
international trade regarding the proposal of the U.S.
Treasury to up a new tax-free export incentive through
the vehicle of the Domestic International Sales Corpora-
tion, sometimes referred to as DISC. This proposal is
aimed at giving U.S. exports an advantage over those of
other countries and would adversely affect Canada’s
exports.

When one reflects on these far-reaching developments,
the need for closer communication between governments
becomes all the more imperative. To some extent this
development is inevitable as multi-national corporations
continue to expand their spheres of activity and become
major factors in the economies of countries other than
their original home base.

If Canada decides that it wishes to further encourage
the development of Canadian-based multi-national com-
panies, then a favourable environment must be created
for the growth of such enterprises. This environment
should incorporate new tax regulations to encourage
exports and to encourage Canadian-based multi-nationals
te raise capital abroad and channel the funds to subsidi-
aries overseas without attracting Canadian tax.

As one of the world’s major trading nations Canada is
in a position to play a very active role in fostering
intergovernmental co-operation and in helping to shape
the progress of its Pacific neighbours, whose fortunes will
increasingly affect those of Canada itself.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Gentles;
you were 15 minutes almost to the second. We will turn
to the question period. As I have indicated, Senator
Carter will lead the questioning and I will take notice
from other senators, I have an indication from Senator
Grosart, but I will pick up other names as we go along.

Senator Carter: Mr. Gentles, as I read your brief there
seemed to be two dominant notes. One was challenge and
the other opportunity. Now, the challenge as I take it, lay
in meeting the competition which is going to increase as
you foresee it from Australia, New Zealand, and even
from the U.S.A. with regard to manufactured products.

In this competition which you foresee what are the
main advantages of your competitors? Do they have an
advantage in operating expenses, in distance to the mar-
kets or import-export incentives in the countries where
they are established?

Mr. Gentles: Senator Carter, in the case of the Pacific
basin countries we have orbits from which increased
competition is developing. One is from Australia and
shortly New Zealand will be added. Here you have two
companies, Comalco and Alcoa, both with local partner-
ships, who were able primarily to get their start by some
fairly strong assistance in the form of embargo from the
Australian Government. They are now to some extent at
a logistical advantage for servicing the Pacific basin area,
particularly on what I would call an incremental basis.

In other words, they have a fairly good load for their
smelters in Australia, with an increment remaining
which they can endeavour to sell on the export market.
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Recently they have been giving us extremely stiff com-
petition from a price standpoint. They have been offering
substantial discounts on what we call the published price
for an extended period of time, for instance up to two
years firm with an extended credit.

In the case of Japan, the Americans are also now
becoming very active in that market. Some of their
activity again is based on their Australian operations.
For instance, I believe that last year Alcoa sold about
15,000 tons from Australia into Japan. This will probably
increase to about 30,000 tons by 1971.

Senator Carter: You were established in Australia
when Comalco went into New Zealand. Did they beat
you there? How was it that you did not get in there?

Mr. Gentles: We had been established in Australia as a
fabricator for a great number of years but we were not
anxious to get into smelting there because we were
basing our metal needs on Alcan metal in Canada. So
Alcoa, apart from Comalco, went into Australia.

We were approached with regard to the Bluff smelter
in New Zealand but again we were reluctant to install
additional smelting capacity there which would in effect
detract from the export markets which we had been
building up hopefully for Canadian metal.

Senator Carter: But in the meantime they came in and
increased their over capacity, and now they have got to
compete.

Mr. Geniles: They have to compete. In New Zealand the
Bluff smelter will be coming into production, I believe,
late next year or early 1972. It will have about 100,000
tons of metal when it gets up to capacity, of which
maybe 15 or 20 per cent will be used locally; the rest will
come out on the export market.

Senator Carter: Do these companies have a protected
domestic market in New Zealand and Australia?

Mr. Gentles: In Australia they do. In Australia they
have a complete embargo which goes through until the
end of 1971, when I think it is up for review. In New
Zealand we have an undertaking at this moment, because
when we went in there in our fabricating investment we
received a written undertaking from the government that
we could import all our aluminum from Canada until
such time as they had their own aluminum smelter in
New Zealand, after which time we were then given the
right to import 50 per cent of our own requirements for
five years.

Senator Carter: I gather the distance is not a big factor
at all.

Mr. Gentles: Not a big factor, no.

Senator Carter: Are the export incentives of Australia
and New Zealand better than Canada’s?

Mr. Gentles: I would like to refer to my colleagues
here, but my impression is that apart from the embargo
and/or tariffs, which enables you to maintain a fairly

strong healthy domestic price, which in a sense can then
be, if you will, a floor from which you can do the
incremental export business, there is very little
difference.

Senator Carter: It operates almost like a subsidy.
Mr. Gentles: That is right.

Senator Carter: In your paper you mentioned two
things that I did not quite understand. You spoke about
the rediscount facility for export paper. You also men-
tioned the need for Canada to take a firm stand with
Australia on taxation. Can you elaborate on this?

Mr. Geniles: Yes, I can, sir. Your first reference is to
the mention we made of the rediscount facility.

The Chairman: Just for the benefit of the committee,
this is on page 13 of the brief, at the bottom of the page.

Mr. Geniles: I thought there might be a question on
that reference, so I brought with me a release from the
Export-Import Bank of United States, dated November
12, interestingly enough, which was actually after I think
we had prepared our brief. In that document they
announce that they are now providing to the United
Stated financial institutions an increased liquidity for
export financing in the form of a discount loan facility.
This is all described here. I do not think you would want
me to read out all of the announcement.

Senator Carter: No. Perhaps we could table that.

Mr. Gentles: I would be pleased to.
(Document tabled—Identified as Exhibit “1°?)

The Chairman: Thank you very much. I think perhaps
Senator Carter is asking: “what are the mechanics of this
procedure?” What do you end up with? What happens
to your piece of paper when it gets into your hands?

Mr. Gentles: As I understand it, you get the piece of
paper from your export sale; then you go and rediscount
it through your bank, who then does it through the, in
this case, Export-Import Bank, where it will ultimately
end up.

The Chairman: Your bank?
Mr. Gentles: I presume so.

Mr. R. F. Allen, Assistant to Vice-President (Finance),
Alcan International Limited: Yes. it is backed up essen-
tially by guarantees, I think, from the Export-Import
Bank. To put it simply, I think it just facilitates it as a
source of capital, an additional source of capital.

Senator Grosari: Whose money do you get?

Mr. Gentles: In this case, as I understand it, you get
your bank’s money, who then can go, if they so desire, and
discount it with the Export-Import Bank, and ultimately
of course the customer presumably pays. I think in this
case the Export-Import Bank does not accept the credit
risk; I am not sure.
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Senator Carter: Why would’nt they? Why do you need
the bank as an intermediary here when the Export
Credit Corporation is set up to provide that?

Mr. Gentles: I am not sure I can answer that, sir; I just
means of contributing financing to international business.
One of the problems with all business today, I guess with
everybody, is the shortage of working capital. One of the
big inducements of selling, unfortunately, in international
business markets particularly, is extended credit terms. I
think that one of the means countries are adopting for
competing in international markets is providing extended
credit terms.

Senator Grosart: Would this be a case where the credit
term was too long for a bank to handle, and therefore
would require a guarantee from the Export Credit
Corporation?

Mr. Gentles: I am not sure I can answer that, sir; I just
don’t know.

Senator Grosari: We have been very interested in this
aspect in this committee, to what extent these various
government bodies do make a real contribution in money
rather than in mere guarantees.

Mr. Gentles: I think there are probably two distinct
facets to this. Maybe we are combining them, and per-
haps they should not be combined. The first facet is a
financing facility in the form of rediscount. The second
facet is what I would call credit insurance, which pro-
tects the supplier in taking an extended and what he
might consider undue risk. What I was referring to in the
first instance in our brief was both of these facets. On the
one hand there is the rediscount facility, which you
might quite well employ if it is available without having
recourse in every instance to insurance.

But there are other types of transactions. One that
jumps to mind is aluminum cable for electric high power
transmission, which is a commodity that is sold in sub-
stantial quantities, particularly to some of the more
developing countries, quite often with relatively unstable
political circumstances, where you might hear of tenders
having credit terms of up to three, four and five years.
On this type of sale, the only way that I think an
industrial company can enter into a transaction of that
kind is if it has some type of governmental insurance,
under the circumstances I have described. As you know,
in Canada we have such an agency that provides this
type of insurance. One of the problems, however, is that
in the past we have generally found that they will only
make it available on what I call a blanket basis, rather
than on a selective basis. Where we only want to insure
where we think we have a serious risk, they say, “We
want to take the good with the bad”, and this gets a little
bit costly.

Senator Laird: Do they charge you for that insurance?
Mr. Gentles: Oh, yes. You mean the insurance through

CGIC, or something like that? Oh yes, there is a fee for
that.

Senator Connolly (Oitawa West): Is there any element
of subsidy in it?

Mr. Gentles: I guess to the extent that they are really
picking up a risk that we are taking on.

Senator Connolly (Ottawa West): But only in respect of
risk?

Mr. Gentles: Only risk.
Senator Connolly (Oitawa West): Not in respect of rate.
Mr. Gentiles: Oh no.

Senator Connolly (Oitawa West): Not in respect of
terms?

Mr. Gentles: I cannot say I am too knowledgeable on
insurance, but my impression is that the fees I have
heard charged are, I think, one half of one per cent. This
is a fee I have heard mentioned in one instance. I think
this is a fairly good and reasonable fee for that type of
service, but I am no judge of that.

Senator Grosari: Are you disappointed that the official
Government insurance has now been withdrawn in rela-
tion to political instability? You mentioned the phrase.

Mr. Gentles: To be honest with you, honourable sena-
tor, the bulk of our business has been in the primary side
of the business and this is our bread and butter. This is
what really is important to us and this type of business
really does not get too much involved in that type of
transaction. There have been occasions in the past, for in-
stance in years gone by when we used to do some busi-
ness in the Middle East where this was a factor.

Senator Grosart: And in mainland China?

Mr. Gentles: Yes, but we have never been too con-
cerned about that, because generally business with
regard to primary aluminum is done on a relatively
short-term basis.

Senator McNamara: What is the period of this extend-
ed credit?

Mr. Gentles: It varies with types of products. In the
case of a conductor, which I referred to, I believe I heard
where there was a tender which went close to five years.
That was insured I think by the French and it was a
French government facility. I am not 100 per cent sure
on that, but I can find out for you.

Senator McNamara: I would like to know something
about Australia, because I heard that they were very
reluctant to go beyond the commercial 90 days and that
they now wanted three years. I wonder if there is a limit
on this.

Mr. Gentles: We are only in competition in the export
market with Australian goods in the form of primary
aluminum. They are not, to my knowledge, getting any
government type of insurance on their terms. They are
offering what we think are fairly extended terms in the
trade and that is 180 days.
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Senator Cameron: Did I understand you to say that
when you got this piece of paper for the transaction that
you took it to your own bank and the bank in turn went
to the export?

Mr. Gentles: This is how I understood this particular
facility and how the Export-Import Plan is intended to
function.

The Chairman: This is in the United States, Senator
Cameron.

Senator Cameron: All I was trying to get at is fchat it
would not be possible to go directly to the export-import
bank.

Mr. Gentles: I think they probably want the commer-
cial bank in between them and the person who is asking
for the facility.

The Chairman: I think there is a time lag that becomes
operative at this stage of the game and the insertion of
the commercial bank at this stage certainly would over-
come the time lag. I presume there would be a reference
from the commercial bank to the export-import bank.

Senator Cameron: Wouldn’t this have an effect of
increasing the cost?

The Chairman: Yes, I think it does increase the cost,
but on the other hand the increased costs may be over-
come by whatever the loss was in the time lag by not
having the funds in hand. I think this is the point in the
United States whereby the company gains capital at the
time of its request.

Senator Grosart: If I may, in view of the importance
and interest in this question of capital funding in the
export markets and other areas, to suggest that it would
be advisable to have the committee call some responsible
officials who could explain exactly what the present
status of Government is in regard to capital assistance
and insurance in the export business. We are never quite
clear.

The Chairman: Not only should we call a witness on
this, but I think we should have it in memorandum form.
Unfortunately, I think you were absent at the hearing we
had with the Minister at which time he had one of his
colleagues here from the Export Development Corpora-
tion and he did endeavour to answer this question. I am
not so sure, having read the transcript, that it is very
clear to me. I agree with your conclusion that we should
have it on the record by way of a memorandum.

Senator McNamara: On the question of insurance is
my understanding correct that if you want to insure you
have to insure over the whole world market and you
cannot pick selective markets and get insurance on that.
In other words you have to take a general policy?

Mr. Gentles: No, Senator McNamara. If I gave that
impression it is incorrect. What you have to do is insure
for an area. It gets down to a geographic basis. According
to my understanding you cannot just go and ask for
insurance in order to cover a particular order.

Senator McNamara: Isn’t this a limitation on your abil-
ity to take chances, because it makes your insurance that
much more costly? It is my understanding that there
actually never has been a loss, but actually the extra
premiums which were picked up by reliable people have
offset any losses they took. I question the value of this
policy because a business like yours has to insure 100 per
cent and if you have to get into a new and developing
market it makes the insurance expensive.

The Chairman: Do you have an example of an area?

Mr. Geniles: I can remember going back a few years
ago when we were very anxious to compete for some
business in Egypt. The only way we could see whereby
we could adjust to the risks that were associated with that
particular business at that time was through getting
insurance and we were unable to do so because of this
blanket policy. On another occasion in Ghana we finally
ended up doing it through a facility in the UK. The
company in Ghana fabricated aluminum roofing and we
had to ship aluminum sheet coil from which they made
this roofing. The only way that we found we could get it
insured was by shipping it from the UK instead of to
Canada. I think we did find that it was not possible
under the Canadian provisions of the insurance. I believe
it was our own subsidiary which knocked us out.

Senator McNamara: The first illustration of a country
you spoke about kind of weakens my argument and
strengthens the position of the Government.

Senator Grosari: How do we maintain the total high
risk area criterion in view of the Government’s response
to the objection to areas being labelled high risk areas?
Surely there is contradiction if the Government says that
you must include a whole area as a high risk area when
the Government itself has repudiated this concept.

The Chairman: I think it would be interesting to see an
example of the perimeters of a high risk area. Australia
presumably is not such an area and in Indonesia you
would have a different set of problems. Where are the
lines drawn, geographically?

Mr. Gentles: In this particular area we are not as
involved in supplying manufactured goods as other
exporters in Canada therefore this is probably not as big
a problem to us as it would be to some of the other
countries in that category.

Senator Carter: I will just ask one more question with
regard to where you said Canada should take a firm
stand with Australia. Will you elaborate on that point?

Mr. Gentles: We felt that possibly the Government
might have been able to give us more support or have
taken a stronger stand in the early days of the negotia-
tions between Australia and Canada with respect to the
embargo that was going on with regard to aluminum.
This was just a further point. We are already into some
tax problems in Australia because we do not have any
reciprocal treaties. I referred there to this participation
we have in an Australian Alumina Company in which we
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have a 21 per cent interest and I believe now that there
is a controversey between Canada and Australia re our
tax liability connected with that participation.

Senator Grosari: Mr. Gentles, may I refer you to page
3 of the brief, speaking of Japan, particularly. You refer
to “operating through national subsidiaries” and then
again to a 50-50 partnership. What are the political re-
strictions on your own equity participation in these
partnerships?

Mr. Gentles: In Japan we are restricted to 50-50 part-
nership. We cannot have greater than 50-30.

Senator Grosart: Can you give us a rough idea
of the perimeters of this restriction? Does it include all
exports in the same general category as primary
aluminum?

Mr. Gentles: I am not sure if I understand the question
correctly, but I am saying that we cannot hold a greater
equity participation in a Japanese aluminum company
than 50 per cent.

Senator Grosari: Yes; and does this apply, say, to
steel, or is that an exception?

Dr. Karel C. Bala, Assistant Secretary Alcan Alumini-
um Limited: There are various categories in various
industries. The Japanese Government just introduced
aluminum as a field in which foreigners can invest up to
50 per cent. However, ALCAN was an exception since
1952 and we were operating under a special Japanese law
which permitted us to invest up to 50 per cent in our
main subsidiary, Nippon Light Metal Company Limited.
In our other company, that is, Toyo Aluminium KK,
which is a foil mill, we were 50 per cent partners before
the war. Our shares were sequestrated during the war
and then returned to us to the extent we were sharehold-
ers before the war, that is, to 50 per cent. As far as steel
is concerned, I am not quite sure, but I think that steel
also is a field in which foreigners now can invest up to 50
per cent. I do not think that any foreign company would
by very much induced to invest in Japanese steel mills.
The main field which was introduced now are motor car
companies because this is the field where the American
motor car producers tried very hard to enter Japan and
they are permitted now to invest up to 50 per cent.

Senator Grosart: What I am getting at, Mr. Chairman,
is to try to find out whether the Japanese are using these
equity participation restrictions as a form of tariff.

Dr. Bala: Not in the form of tariff, but very much
as a limitation of foreign participation and foreign influ-
ence on Japanese industry.

Senator Grosari: But this can be a way of raising a
tariff. For example, if you cannot participate, you are not
going to be very much interested in exporting there. Are
they using it this way?

Dr. Bala: Aluminum industry in Japan is not an
exporting industry, it is an industry the products of
which are used mainly in Japan. But, say, the motor car
industry is an industry which exports to a great extent.

Senator Grosart: Perhaps I am not making my question
clear. Let me try again. On the same page, you say that
you like to retain management control and control of the
imports of aluminum. Let us say that the Japanese say
you cannot have 50-50 participation, what happens?

Mr. Gentles: In the case of Japan, I do not know
whether it would have a great impact on our relationship
or not, because with the 50-50 we do not have manage-
ment control. We do not strive to manage the company,
that is all done by our partners. They buy their alumi-
num from us, when they need to buy import aluminum.
But we have no prior right other than the fact that
because we are partners they give us that privilege of
being the first to try and compete to supply it.

Senator Grosari: Excuse me, but you say that Alcan
prefers to retain. What is the significance of “prefers”?

Mr. Gentles: I think we also mentioned, Senator Gro-
sart, that Japan is an exception. Generally speaking, in
our foreign subsidiaries throughout the world we prefer
to have management control. Japan is definitely an
exception to that preference.

Senator Grosart: But you would still prefer it, in
Japan?

Mr. Gentles: To be honest with you, sir—this is an
interesting question, I am sure you have probably visited
Japan...

Senator Grosart: Yes.

Mr. Gentles: And I am sure you have had experience
of doing business with Japan. I personally would not like
to try to run a company in Japan, because the whole way
of doing business is so different to anything to which I
have been exposed. I think this is true of most western-
ers. I think it would be very difficult to manage a Japa-
nese company effectively.

Senator Grosart: Would this apply, would you say, to
all the non-English speaking countries in the Pacific?

Mr. Gentles: We are operating a company in Malaya. I
do not think we encounter the same type of problem
there.

Dr. Bala: And Thailand.

Mr. Gentles: And in Thailand. We have a trading
company in Hong Kong. We have not hesitated in other
areas. In the context that I have been mentioning or
describing, I think Japan is unique in that area.

The Chairman: May I ask a supplementary question,
Senator Grosart? I would like to refer you, Mr. Gentles,
to page 7. Perhaps the committee would look at the
second last paragraph there. The sentence begins:

Should the Japanese aluminum markets develop as
currently projected, NKK has flexible plans which
would involve substantial capital expenditures over
the next five years, to be mainly financed locally.
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I think this brings Senator Grosart’s question right into
focus. I presume that is not by way of equity, I presume
that is by way of Japanese banks. Am I right?

Mr. Gentles: That is right.

Dr. Bala: And by help of the Japanese Government,
since the NKK main expansion is on the Hokkaido
Island, at Tomakomai, which is considered a distressed
area, and the company receives loans at a preferred rate
of interest.

The Chairman: I see.

Senator Connolly: What was that last phrase—receives
loans and...

Dr. Bala: At a preferred rate of interest.
Senator Connolly: Subsidized by government?
Dr. Bala: By the Japanese Government.

Senator Connolly: So there is a subsidy then on the
question of rate.

Mr. Gentles: That is right, in Japan, in a “distressed
area”.

Senaior Connolly: It is in their discretion to say what
is “distressed” and what is not?

Dr. Bala: The Japanese Government is quite concerned
with overpopulation of the southern part of the main
island of Honshu and they are trying to promote indus-
trial activities in the outlying areas. The Hokkaido
Island, which is the northernmost island of Japan, is one
of the main areas, because it is underpopulated and very
little industrialized, and therefore our subsidiary decided
to build their new plant there and count on the help of
the Japanese Government, which provides loans at a low
rate of interest, and other facilities.

Senator Grosari: I think I understood you to say that
aluminum ingots were the main item of international
trade in this field. Could you possibly break down by
broad percentages the whole process starting from baux-
ite, for example, and going right on through? I would
like a rough idea of what percentage of the money and
the employment stays in Canada.

Mr. Gentles: You start with the raw material, which is
out of the mine, called bauxite. Bauxite for making
aluminum has a value to the person who wants to treat it
into metal in its crude form, just mined, and what we
call dried, of, say, in the neighbourhood of between $6 or
$7 a ton. Then you take roughly two tons of that bauxite
to make one ton of alumina; the market price for alumi-
na is somewhere around $60 a ton. Then you take two
tons of alumina and you make one ton of aluminum, and
the price of aluminum is $570 a ton.

Senator Grosart: That is the ingot.
Mr. Gentles: That is the ingot, yes.

That last price is on a delivered basis, whereas the two
other prices were probably on an f.o.b. basis.

Senator Grosari: What happens to it from there? Let
us say it is in Japan and it has cost them $570 a ton.

Mr. Gentles: Then you can take that ingot and you can
make it into the large—

Senator Grosart: Hardware?

Mr. Gentles: What I am trying to say is that into large
categories of fabricated products, the main ones of which,
speaking from a tonnage standpoint, are sheet, extru-
sions, and cable. Generally speaking, to transform the
ingot into sheet we are talking, say, of an uplift over the
ingot price of 15 cents a pound, roughly, as being the
difference between the price of the ingot and the price of
what the bread and butter products of sheet will go for.
Fifteen to 20 cents a pound. It is in that range.

Senator Grosart: What does that make it per ton?

Mr. Gentles: That is about $300. Roughly $300 to $350
a ton is not a bad figure.

Senator Cameron: That would be roughly $900 per
rolled sheet?

Mr. Gentles: Roughly. Sometimes it is a little less and
sometimes it is more, depending on the nature of the
product. At the present time the industry is realizing
little benefit of scale, because even though we can put in
big mills to do a scale job, the orders come in in small
lots and our distribution system has not really been
brought up to keep up with the type of mills we can put
in for the type of tonnage consumption we are capable of
doing, except for a new commodity of a kind of sheet.
We are now seeing some of the benefits of scale as it
applies to that particular product, but it is'a very low-
priced product. It is somewhere around $150 a ton over
the ingot.

Senator Grosari: Would you go on a bit from there and
give us a few guesses as to what the per ton selling cost
might be in, say, foil or pots and pans? I just want to get
a rough idea.

Mr. Gentles: You realize, Senator, that if my colleagues
back in Montreal hear these figures they will probably
shoot me.

Senator Grosari: It is an impossible question, Mr. Gen-
tles, I know, but just roughly.

Mr. Gentles: In foil you are talking about a very great
variety of products, because you can start with what we
call white foil, which is the heavy type of foil that you
sell to what we call a “converter” who wants to make
Christmas paper with it or wants to make household foil.
Or you can take that white foil in its present form and
make milk bottle caps out of it. That white foil, which is
the simplest type of foil and therefore the least costly to
make—you see, I am running into quantity problems.

Senator Grosart: You do not really have to answer the
question.
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Mr. Geniles: I am going to get out of whack with some
of the prices I am giving you on sheet. Generally, you
sell foil in large quantities and you will find that there is
not a large difference between the price at which the
large customers are buying white foil and, for example,
the medium-size customers are buying certain simple
types of sheet products. I would say, roughly, that the
white foil is in about the $800 to $900 bracket. I would
say that when you start converting it you start adding a
great deal of value to it and you start going up to over
the $1,000 mark. You get into the thinner foil; you get
into the thin foil with perhaps eight colours on it.

The Chairman: Perhaps, Senator Grosart, in order to
protect Mr. Gentles from his superiors in Montreal, the
committee would be in agreement with having Mr. Gen-
tles submit a memorandum on this matter which could
be made part of the committee’s records and which we
could then examine in due course.

Mr. Gentles: If that would suffice, Mr. Chairman, the
easiest course for me to follow would be to give you a
price list of these types of products.

Senator Grosart: Mr. Gentles, what I really want to
find out is, first of all, what percentage of the total
financial return from a ton remains in Canada and,
secondly, how far you are going in your own participa-
tion in these companies beyond the $570 mark. What are
your plans? Are you really going to try to move into the
whole Japanese market so that you are participating in
every stage of the process onward from that $570 per ton

figure?

Mr. Gentles: Senator Grosart, this is a very hard ques-
tion to answer. We would prefer to sell ingot, because,
ideally, up until now, historically, if one could sell the
ingot that he made at the prices that were general in the
marketplace he could then make a good return out of it.
However, competitive circumstances have forced us and
other companies to integrate forward. So that, in effect,
in order to secure our outlets for our ingot we are
making an investment which, in fact to a degree, is break
even at best, in a great many cases, and to some extent is
even subsidized on the return that we get from the ingot,
the smelting portion of our investment, and/for back to
the alumina and bauxite side.

Senator Grosart: So that these subsidiary arrangements
you have in Japan and elsewhere are largely to obtain a
posture in the market and to protect your own marketing
interests?

Mr. Gentles: So far as integrating forward is concerned
that is a reasonable generalization.

Senator Grosari: You are not worried about Jamaica
deciding to integrate forward?

Mr. Gentles: Well, they are talking about it now. They
are talking about putting in a smelter and then they are
going to have to find an outlet for that metal. Whoever
has that outlet is going to have to make sure somebody
does not take it away from him.

Senator Cameron: Mr. Gentles, I was very interested in
your suggestion that in your management you always use
local management as much as possible. I am not thinking
of places like Australia or New Zealand, but of places
like Thailand and Malaysia. What is your process of
management training? Do you train them there or do you
bring them back here or do you do something of both?

Mr. Gentles: We do both, and it will vary from time to
time depending on the circumstances. In the case of
Malaya we started off with a relatively small sheet mill
and not a very complicated fabricating operation. We
first of all put in some expatriates. They could well have
been Canadians, but they were not Malaysians, at any
rate, and they have been there for about eight years.

Mr. Bala: Yes, I think it is about eight years, and we
have two expairiates, or rather, there are three expatri-
ates, one Indian and two non-Malaysians. But all the
others are Malaysians, either Malayans or local Chinese
and Indians.

Senator Cameron: Would the non-Malaysians be

Japanese?
Mr. Bala: No. In Malaya they would be Indian.

Senator Cameron: The reason I asked this question is
not so much in relation to your own company’s operation,
but thinking of developing countries generally and how
we develop managerial skills necessary to make viable
companies operate.

Mr. Gentiles: We are very proud of the efforts we have
made and the results achieved in this respect in India.
There we have a very, very large fully integrated compa-
ny from the mine right through to semi-fabricated prod-
ucts including foil. I do not know what the total number
of employees is there, but it must be in the vicinity of
4,000.

Mr. Bala: It is about 6,000 and we have two expatri-
ates, one the managing director and the other the chief
financial officer.

Senator Cameron: And you have been operating there
for how long?

Mr. Bala: We have been operating there since the war.

Mr. Gentles: This is an evolution over that period of
time, and we have very competent local management.

Senator Cameron: In other words, this might be a good
place to direct people who are looking for developed
skills in less developed countries.

Senator Laird: This might be a good place to interject
this question. These non-Canadians who have been
trained in your organization, have you by any chance
taken any of them in permanently to the head office here
in Canada?

Mr. Gentles: It is pretty hard to say when anybody is
permanent in our head office. I have often thought I was,
but I am not sure about that.
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Senator Laird: But they are there?

Mr. Geniles: They are there and I think I am right in
saying that among that 1,200 to 1,500 in Montreal we
have non-Canadians who have been there for many
years.

Senator Laird: Are there any of them in high execu-
tive positions?

Mr. Gentles: Let me think about that for a moment.
There is none at this moment in our very senior manage-
ment. One of the things we notice is that we bring
nationals from other countries over here for some form
of training or other, and when they get here, they like
it—and you have probably encountered this situation in
connection with the Caribbean as well—and the next
thing you know they are applying for citizenship and
they are here to stay.

The Chairman: I would like to direct your attention,
Mr. Gentles, to page 13 and the quite provocative state-
ment you make in the second-last paragraph where you
say:

Canada should not ignore the probability that China
will ultimately seek development capital in Europe
and North America and that Canada could be the
conduit for such capital.

I should like to hear your comments on that.
Senator Grosari: How can we get in on that?

Mr. Gentles: I don’t know if I have the answer. I think
it is an interesting question.

The Chairman: It is your statement.

Mr. Gentles: I think when we made it we had in mind
this type of thing; we find that as a company we tend to
be at a disadvantage when we look at our total tax
payment in relation to our competition. This is a cost of
doing business, as you are well aware, the same as any
other cost, and what you end up with for the shareholder
is the measure.

Now in the case of the United States at this moment
they pay a maximum of 48 per cent, I think, and if in
foreign trade or external trade they go through a West-
ern Hemisphere vehicle, I think they can get that figure
down to 34 per cent. It was this type of vehicle that I
think we had vaguely in mind when we made this state-
ment. Now is there some way that Canada could set up
an arrangement somewhere along the lines of the Western
Hemisphere approach that has been used south of the
border to accomplish this type of end? I don’t know the
answer, but I think it is well worth pondering.

Senator Grosart: Are you suggesting that you might be
permitted by domestic law to retain a larger percentage
of profit made in the export market than in the domestic
market?

Mr. Gentles: I would prefer, obviously, to be able to
keep just the same degree of profit in both and come out
on the same basis as my competition. All I am saying is

we are meeting competition where apparently in the case
of the western Hemisphere situation, the situation you
describe is what happens.

Senator Grosari: You are suggesting a particular tax
treatment for companies in the export market? Mind
you, I am not against you.

Mr. Gentles: Rather than suggesting, I think I am
pointing out a disadvantage that we are operating
under, which I think is affecting our ability to compete.
We are paying a significantly higher tax than most of our
competitors.

The Chairman: Therefore at the present time you do
not think that Canada will be a conduit?

Mr. Gentles: Not unless we can develop some means or
some vehicle for accomplishing the end, either by bring-
ing down the overall or by setting up a situation, as you
say, which means you are going to pay less tax on
certain types of business than on others.

Senator Laird: You mean something like the old export
business corporation under the Income Tax Act?

Mr. Gentles: I am sorry, senator, I am not familiar with
that.

Senator Laird: Perhaps Mr. Allen is.

Mr. Allen: I am sorry, senator, I am from England
originally.

Senator Grosari: Do I understand you correctly, Mr.
Gentles, that our relatively high rate of corporate taxa-
tion does and certainly will act as a deterrent to the
investment of foreign capital in Canadian firms in the
export market?

Mr. Gentles: That is right. By the way, Mr. Chairman,
I believe the man in charge of our tax affairs in the
company is preparing a presentation.

Mr. Allen: I think he is making it through the Canadi-
an Export Association.

Mr. Gentles: I think he is going to go into detail on
this. He has not finalized it yet, but I understand he has
some specific ideas as to how this can be accomplished. If
it is of any interest to you, we can forward you a copy.

Senator Grosari: Are some of your subsidiaries in
Japan, for example, exporting to other Pacific rim
countries?

Mr. Gentles: Yes.

Mr. Bala: Very little, senator, but one of our subsidiar-
ies, the foil subsidiary is now participating in another
small foil mill in Korea to the extent of about 50 per
cent.

Senator Carter: Dealing with the other theme of your
presentation, the opportunity and the challenge of assist-
ing in the development of countries around this area,
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could you give the committee your comments on what
Canada possibly might do, more than we are doing, to
facilitate companies like this in helping these under-
developed countries to get going?

Mr. Gentles: Senator, I don’t know how many specific
ideas we have on that. Certainly we try where we see an
opportunity to put a small facility into these countries
such as Malaya and Thailand. And Indonesia, I am sure,
is going to be a country which is going to come into its
own sooner rather than later. This is one and a most
direct method. If we can assist them in developing some
of their own skills and techniques, this also helps in that
area. I do not know whether I can give you any more
positive idea at this time.

Senator Grosart: What is the rate of corporate tax you
are paying on your subsidiaries in Japan or Australia?

Dr. Bala: In Japan our companies pay 52 per cent
effective corporate tax rate.

Senator Grosart: Then you are better off in Canada.
Dr. Bala: Our Japanese effective tax rate is 52 per cent.

The Chairman: Do you want the figure for Australia as
well?

Senator Grosart: Yes, Australia.

Mr. Allen: Australia is 46 per cent.

Senator Grosart: Then Japanese businessmen have the
same complaint as you have with respect to the conduit.

Mr. Gentiles: Yes, but, then again, my understanding—
and Dr. Bala will correct me if I am wrong—is that the
Government takes a very active role in all the offshore
work of the Japanese industry. Is that correct?

Dr. Bala: Yes.

Senator Grosart: Do they give you tax incentives for
retained profits or profits re-invested?

Dr. Bala: They do, but our subsidiary has very little
offshore activity because mostly their activities are con-
centrated in Japan, they are producing in Japan and they
are also selling in Japan.

Mr. Gentles: Senator Grosart is not so interested in the
circumstances related to our particular subsidiary. I think
he is asking about the general approach of Japanese
industry and government in this area.

Dr. Bala: Japanese industry is given tremendous help
by the government, both in credits and income taxes and
in organizing their exports. I think there is no country
that gives more help to their exporters than Japan.
Unfortunately, we do not know too much about it
because we are importing into Japan and our subsidiaries
do not export any considerable amount.

Senator Grosart: I was not speaking so much of their
exporting activities, but the question I was asking is: Are

there any tax incentives to retain profits in the Japanese
subsidiary, or to re-invest profits? We are always trying
to find out here the secret of Japan’s fantastic success.

Dr. Bala: It is not done directly, but indirectly by
various government organizations that are involved in
exporting. It is not done directly, so far as I know, but I
am not an expert on Japanese exports.

Mr. Gentles: I do not know whether it is pertinent or
not, but the Japanese government through the...

Dr. Bala:...the Ministry of Industry and Trade...

Mr. Gentles: ... has a tremendous influence on Japanese
industry. When they say they want to do something, it is
done.

Dr. Bala: Of course, the secrets of the Japanese econo-
my are many, but one is the organization of their trade
which is done by the so-called trading companies, which
is a factor absolutely specific to Japan and which consists
of huge organizations that both export from and import
into Japan, but which also give credit for all operations
that are done in Japan, so this is a very different thing
from any other country. The Japanese exporter who has
a firm contract gets practically all his money from these
trading companies which, in turn, get their credit from
the big banks, which, in turn again, are guaranteed by
the Japanese government.

The Chairman: I think in the interests of equal time,
honourable senators, we should move on to INCO.

In conclusion, Mr. Gentles, I would like to thank you
and your colleagues very much. It has been a great
pleasure to have you here today and to have you, in your
usual fashion, supply the material you have.

Mr. Gentles: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and honourable
senators.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we have with us
now Mr. Clarke.

Senator Grosari: We should point out that Mr. Clarke
was President of the Stratford Shakespearian Festival, in
its heyday.

The Chairman: I was certainly familiar with that fact,
and I think it is most appropriate to have it recorded.

I should say at the outset that Mr. Clarke is wearing
two hats here today. In addition to representing the
International Nickel Company, Mr. Clarke is Chairman of
the Canadian National Committee of the Pacific Basin
Economic Cooperation Council. He has prepared a sepa-
rate statement relating to that organization, and all mem-
bers have received copies. In other words, I believe you
all have before you two briefs, one for Inco and the other
for the PBECC.

Perhaps, Mr. Clarke, you would prefer that we ques-
tion you first in your Inco capacity, and then get into a
further discussion of PBECC later in the meeting.

I would like to thank you for both briefs, which I
understand were prepared at very short notice, and for
coming to this meeting today.
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We shall follow the procedure you observed we fol-
lowed with Alcan: after you have made a few introducto-
ry remarks and have spoken to your brief, I shall ask
Senator Robichaud to lead the questioning.

Mr. K. H. J. Clarke, Assistant Vice-Presideni, The
International Nickel Company of Canada Limited, and
Chairman, Canadian National Committee, Pacific Basin
Economic Cooperation Council: Mr. Chairman, thank you
very much for the honour of being asked to speak to you
today. I am greatly indebted also to the fact that in the
“Industrial ABC’s” “A” stands for “Alcan” and “I” for
Inco. It was very interesting to have the opportunity to
sit on the sidelines and listen to Alcan’s presentation.
Also the fact that all the hard questions have already
been answered by Alcan makes it even better.

I too have a personal relationship with this committee.
Senator Grosart was a neighbour of mine in the country
for many years and has been a close personal friend for
25 years, and I am very happy particularly to be here
with him.

Senator Grosari: That is not going to help you!

Mr. Clarke: I know. My sentence will not be lightened!

The Alcan representatives mentioned a few facts with
regard to their company, and I thought it might be of
interest to the senators to hear a little of our company.

At the end of last year we had a total of 34,321
employees in 18 countries, of which 24,434 were in
Canada, 4,591 in the United Kingdom, 3,893 in the United
States and 403 in other countries.

At the end of last year we had 4,459 employees who
had been with the company for 25 years or more. The
number of shareholders of record at that time was 84,219,
and that was an increase of over 8,600 during the year.
Our records indicate that 58 per cent of them have
addresses in Canada, 39 per cent in the United States,
and 3 per cent elsewhere. The Canadian residents held 31
per cent of the shares, the United States residents 55 per
cent, and residents of other countries 14 per -cent.
Numerically the 48,609 shareholders with addresses in
Canada—an increase of 7,454—was the highest on record
in the company for any year end.

There are about 75 million shares issued at a current
price of approximately $(Can)45, which amounts to $3.3
billion-odd, and with roughly 30 per cent owned by
Canadians there is a very substantial investment of about
$1 billion by Canadians in The International Nickel Com-
pany. In 1970 for the first time the companie’s sales will
exceed $1 billion.

I am very happy to have this opportunity of giving you
some idea of what we are doing in the Pacific. The policy
paper that was brought out on the Pacific was of extreme
interest. There is no question about the fact that for
geographic, economic and historic reasons, the future of
Canada is closely related to this area. In fact, the degree
to which this overall region achieves peace and stability,
in the face of the many forces of change, will fundamen-
tally influence the pattern of world history. The mean-
ingful proposals set forth in the policy paper implicitly

recognize the link between a proper development of the
region’s vast economic potential—people, mnatural
resources, and under-populated areas—and the establish-
ment of the social justice and quality of life upon which
peace and stability are based.

This economic growth has already started, partly
through the initiatives taken by the various countries
themselves, but to a considerable extent through the
efforts of Canadian and other overseas companies. We
feel that we have been a leader in this respect.

I would like to outline for you a little later some of the
circumstances that led us to participate in the Pacific
region, but before doing so I should say that we are
anxious to indicate that much of the Pacific area is
stable, and is being steadily developed. Some of the
countries are among the most politically stable in the
world, and here I have in mind Australia, New Zealand,
and New Caledonia as well as Japan, which is the second
largest economic power in the non-communist world. I
shall speak a little later on about our position in Japan,
because Japan is of great interest and concern to us.

As you know, up until the present time Canada has
been the world’s major source of nickel obtained from
sulphide ores in Ontario and Manitoba. The dramatic
growth in nickel demand over recent years, however, has
led producers and would-be producers to look toward the
development of other ore sources. The most common of
these are the lateritic ores. It is estimated that 80 per
cent of the world’s known nickel reserves are contained
in these lateritic ores, which are located in tropical or
subtropical areas. There is no question about the fact
that the great development in the future lies in the
development of these ore deposits.

The most important ones are in the countries of the
Pacific basin—Indonesia, the Philippines, Australia and,
of course, New Caledonia, where there are tremendous
reserves. It has been estimated that by 1975 New Cale-
donia could be producing 25 per cent of the world’s
nickel.

Canada’s production is expected to account for about
one-half of the non-communist world nickel supply in
1975, or about one-third of the entire world’s nickel
supply. This does not necessarily mean that production is
going to decrease in Canada. It is the relative effect of
bringing these lateritic ores into production.

We have long recognized that if we are going to
remain a major factor in the industry we must success-
fully participate in developing the laterites. Our own
studies have demonstrated that the laterites can be prof-
itably developed, and that they will be highly competi-
tive with production from sulphide ores. In addition to
the vast amount of research we have conducted on the
treatment of these ores, we have projects underway in
many areas of the Pacific. In the French territory of New
Caledonia we are a partner with a holding company of
French interests known as COFIMPAC. We recently pre-
sented a feasibility study to our partners based on the
production of 100 million pounds of nickel a year in the
form of carbonyl pellets. This project will represent an
investment of $481 million, and it could reach full pro-
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duction by 1975. Although our French partners have
considered it favourably, we have not yet received defi-
nite approval.

In Indonesia we have a subsidiary company which is
investigating nickel deposits on a 25,000-square mile area
in the island of Sulawesi. The results thus far have been
encouraging so far as ore is concerned, and we have
shipped large bulk samples to our Port Colborne pilot
plant for testing. We hope to be able to talk to the
Indonesian Government next year about a big project
there.

We are also working in the British Solomon Islands
protectorate.

In Australia, which has been very much in the news
with regard to nickel of late, we have been working for a
long, long period of time. Our major effort, together with
Broken Hill, our partner there, is in the Kalgoorlie region
of Western Australia. These efforts led to a discovery of
nickel sulphide mineralization which is of interest, and
we have started to put down a 1,000 foot shaft that will
permit exploration at depth. This is indicative of the
huge investment necessary just to explore these proper-
ties. we are also working on a lateritic deposit in
Australia.

An example of an apparently non-successful invest-
ment is found in another property which we investigated
with Southwestern Mining Limited, and our feasibility
study of that indicates that it is not an economic project
at this time.

We are very much interested in Australia because it is
a very fine place in which to operate, and we have high
hopes there for the future.

I should like to indicate that in addition to the ore
potential a very major factor in considering these huge
investments in places like Australia, New Zealand and
New Caledonia, is that they are dependent upon the
favourable conditions that the governments of these
countries bring about to encourage outside investment.
Their policies, while logically preserving conformity to
local conditions, recognize the risks involved in the vast
investments that these projects entail, as well as the
difficulties presented in building docks, towns, and infra-
structure of all kinds. The investment climate—and this
is a very important thing that has received much consid-
eration in the Pacific Basin Economic Co-operation Coun-
cil, and other organizations—while varying considerably
in detail is comparable to that climate in Canada, which
has proven very satisfactory over the long run, and
which has contributed greatly to Canada’s development
of its mineral industry.

Indonesia, which has, in our estimation, vast resources,
is also becoming quite stable politically, and we have
high hopes that we shall be able to be in operation in
Indonesia in the not too distant future.

However, the key to the Pacific undoubtedly is Japan.
The industrial expansion of that country has been phe-
nomenal. Their consumption of nickel in 1965 was 60
million pounds and this year it is estimated to be 190
million pounds. By 1975 it is estimated that Japan will be
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consuming over 300 million pounds of nickel. Although
Japan has no ores, it imports ores from New Caledonia,
Indonesia, Australia, and Canada. They have had a very
carefully protected market by means of quotas and
tariffs, and the result is that the Japanese nickel industry
has developed very rapidly.

It is the opinion of most people that Japan will contin-
ue to develop internally the bulk of her requirements.
Canada is participating in the country’s market to the
extent of only 10 per cent or 20 million pounds. In order
to attempt to obtain a foothold in this extremely large
market we joined with a Japanese company to form the
Tokyo Nickel Company, which is a relatively small
organization, to produce nickel oxide 75, which is in
direct competition with some of the products produced in
Japan.

We ship to this plant a refined nickel sulphide product
from which we make this oxide. We have been supplying
them to the extent of 10 million pounds a year. Nickel
has been in very short supply during the last three or
four years and by co-operation with the Ontario Govern-
ment, we have been able to arrange that we will increase
our feed by an additional rate of 15 million pounds
yearly.

Senator Carter: Is that 15 million pounds in addition to
the 10 million pounds?

Mr. Clarke: Yes. This is after very serious considera-
tion by the Ontario cabinet of all the facts submitted and
the problems with regard to the development of the
market. We feel that this is a very imaginative and
flexible policy on their part, which will certainly help us
broaden our foothold in the Japanese nickel industry.

By making it possible to participate on a larger scale,
not only are we given an opportunity to develop more
business, but the Japanese are given cause to rethink
their participation in other nickel producing operations.

Another example of our efforts to strengthen our pres-
ence in Japan is the fact that we are very active in
market development. We have technical market develop-
ment offices, staffed almost exclusively with locals, highly
trained metallurgical engineers, in Canada, the United
States, the United Kingdom, the European Comimon
Market countries and just about every other major
industrialized country in the world. We have a very
competent group of people in Japan, who are endeavour-
ing to develop the general market in the utilization of
nickel.

Recently Japan abolished the import quotas on nickel.
The duty now is 15 per cent, which will be reduced to
the extent of 1 per cent per year for five years. There is
no indication that there would be any reduction beyond
the 10 per cent level, but it is a much better arrangement
than when they just had quotas.

It is clear to us that the development of the nickel
potential in the developing countries in the Pacific area
offers a great challenge to the Canadian mining industry.
That industry possesses a very broad background of tech-
nical, financial and marketing know-how. It is also an
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opportunity to implement creatively and ‘with mutgal
benefit the very admirable goals contained in the foreign
policy paper.

There is no doubt that there will be a positive Canadi-
an presence in all these areas to which I have refer;'ta.d'. I
am confident that the same understanding and ﬂexxbxh'ty
shown by the federal and provincigl governments will
continue and that this presence is going to be very profit-
able for Canada.

Honourable senators, I am also the chairman of the
Canadian National Committee on the Pacific Basin Eco-
nomic Cooperation Council. This organization is an infor-
mal one of senior business executives from Australia,
Canada, Japan, New Zealand and the United States. It
operates entirely under private auspices. Its objects are
to strengthen economic and business relationships among
the five member nations and to generate greater econom-
ic and social progress in the Asian developing countries
of the Pacific basin.

This organization is relatively new, its first meeting
being held in Australia in May 1968. All members then
agreed on the basic objectives. There are many aspects of
the total inter-relationships between these countries, but
they were particularly concerned with the expansion of
trade, the economic aspects, the exchange of capital and
industrial technology, the promotion of tourism, exchange
of economic information and promotion of cultural and
scientific pursuits.

However, I think more importantly the attitude of
Japan and Australia, who are really the founding nations
of the organization, which is an outgrowth of the Aus-
tralian-Japanese businessmen’s committee, was that the
developing countries would be in a position to benefit
from the investment and technological know-how of the
more advanced countries.

From the point of view of Canada and the United
States joining the organization, unlike New Zealand
which was almost automatically in from the start, the
important factor was the awareness of the tremendous
potential of the Pacific basin countries, both as suppliers
of industrial raw materials and as tremendously growing
markets. If the per capita incomes of these various coun-
tries grow as the area becomes more industrialized, it can
provide one of the great new markets of the world.

The first president of the Pacific Basin Council was
Shigeo Nagano, who is Chairman of Nippon Steel Compa-
ny. Our PBECC meeting was in Kyoto this year and I
presented a paper on Canada-Japan trade at the Japa-
nese-Canadian Businessmen’s Meeting in Tokyo. Mr.
Nagano is an example of why I developed a very healthy
respect for the Japanese. He is chief officer of what is
now said to be the biggest steel mill in the world; he is
the chairman of the Japanese Chamber of Commerce; he
was Vice-President of Expo; he has just been appointed
chairman of the committee which will take over Okinawa;
he has his black belt in judo and he is 69 years old—a
remarkable man. The Japanese are very good business-
men and tough competitors. The current president is the
Honourable Sir Edward Warren of Australia.

An important point as far as Canada is concerned is
the fact that the next International meeting of PBECC
will be held in Vancouver in May 1971. There are five
international standing committees, one each in the fields
of economic development and trade, natural resources,
human resources, transportation and tourism. These com-
mittees have international chairmen and each country is
represented. The modus operandi is that between meet-
ings these committees correspond with each other and
attempt to develop programs which can be implemented.

There are two kinds of programs, those which have to
be implemented by governments and those which can be
implemented by the normal trade channels. It has been
our experience that we have had exceedingly fine co-
operation from the Canadian Government. I think the
experiences of the other countries have been the same.
Before these international meetings we have conferences
here in Ottawa with all the various government depart-
ments dealing with matters that will be involved in the
discussions, and at the conclusion of the meetings we
have another briefing session. The national committee is
sponsored by the Canadian Manufacturers’ Association
and the Canadian Chamber of Commerce. There is a very
wide representation of company presidents and vice pres-
idents of all kinds—resource industries, manufacturers,
banks, transportation companies, consulting engineers, a
large group of interested people.

We feel that these meetings bring about an active and
understanding rapport with some of the leading people in
these countries, and informal discussions certainly have
led to a much better understanding of the positions of
these various countries. Although it is a young organiza-
tion, some of us feel it has made a contribution, and will
make a much greater one, and it deserves our support
and that of the Government. Thank you very much.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Mr. Clarke, for
speaking to both your briefs. As I indicated, we will now
go on to the question period, and I will ask Senator
Robichaud if he will be kind enough to lead.

Senator Robichaud: Mr. Clarke, from reading your
brief, and particularly from listening to your statement
this afternoon, it is evident that your activities in the
Pacific region raise many issues that are quite similar to
those referred to us by the previous witness from Alcan.
In fact, so similar are your problems that I could almost
direct to you word for word the questions that were
directed to Mr. Gentles by the members of this commit-
tee. However, I will try to ask at least a few questions
that are somewhat different.

You stated in your brief that to operate successfully
companies must take account of the needs and policies of
their own governments as well as those of the Canadian
authorities. Further on, after mentioning the special
waivers given by the Ontario government to meet the
Japanese regulations, you said that you would like to
suggest that the willingness to accommeodate specific cir-
cumstances such as those in Japan by these governments
is to the long range advantage of Canada. My question is:
does this statement imply that eventually these countries,
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particularly Japan, will permit access to Canadian
exports at a higher level of processing or manufacturing?

Mr. Clarke: The question as I understand it is: will
co-operation at this stage, not interfering with the deliv-
eries to them of the raw materials they need, encourage
them by indicating this co-operation, will encourage them
to liberalize their trade and investment posture, which
has been one of considerable concern to all people? I
think that is true. In our discussions in Tokyo we pointed
this out to the Japanese, and of course a lot of other
people have been doing this. We pointed out that it is
very important to us to have access to their markets,
that non-tariff barriers in particular should be watched
very carefully, and eliminated to whatever extent possi-
ble. Our feeling is that the freer the trade the better it is
for all concerned. I sincerely believe this to be true.

Senator Robichaud: So you really believe that there is
a long range trend towards a more liberal policy on the
part of those countries?

Mr. Clarke: I think they recognize the advantages that
accrue to them by more liberal policies. In other words,
they have a very substantial percentage of their entire
economy tied up in the export field, such as we have
ourselves. It is really only by mutual trade that the long
term advantages accrue to both partners. I think they
recognize this.

Senator Robichaud: You also referred to the favoura-
ble conditions with which these countries have
encouraged outside investments. Could you elaborate on
that and give us some details of these conditions that
have been incentives for, say, a company like INCO to
invest in those countries?

Mr. Clarke: Of course, conditions vary tremendously
all over the place, but the basic concern is the ability to
eventually repatriate earnings and some part of the
investment made. There is no object in investing large
quantities of money in what you would consider to be
unstable situations, where the chances are that you might
not get your money back, let alone any profit that might
accrue from it. I think the most important consideration
is freedom of movement of funds, and the necessarily
favourable climate to make investments satisfactory and
relatively safe.

Senator Robichaud: From your experience, could you
tell us if INCO has utilized the export financing and
insurance services of the Export Development Corpora-
tion; if so, has it been of any advantage to your compa-
ny; and have you any suggestions for improving this
program?

Mr. Clarke: No, I have not any suggestions really. I am
not familiar with the details, and to my knowledge we
have not yet availed ourselves of the facility.

Senator Robichaud: Has INCO utilized these facilities?

Mr, Clarke: Not to my knowledge. However, you must
recognize that we are talking about very large invest-
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ments that have not yet been made., The $481 million we
are speaking about has not yet been authorized.

Senator Robichaud: It has not been fully approved as
yet?

Mr. Clarke: Most of our investments up to this point
have been considerable, but mostly in the form of
exploration.

The Chairman: Is it a fair question as a supplementary
to ask the size, the proportion, of INCO’s share in the
$481 million?

Mr. Clarke: It has been published. It is 60 per cent of
the cost, 40 per cent of the ownership.

The Chairman: 60 per cent of the cost would take you
to nearly $300 million.

Mr. Clarke: It is going to cost a total of $481 million,
including infrastructure, working capital, and interest
during construction, of which we will finance 60 pér cent
and our partners 40 per cent.

The Chairman: The reason I ask the question, of
course, is that this is a sizeable sum of money, and it
might very well occur to you that if the Export Develop-
ment Corporation does show some signs of providing a
useful contribution, and in fact the rediscount privileges
that we discussed with the previous witnesses come into
effect, this might be an avenue for International Nickel.

Mr. Clarke: Thank you, senator. I will certainly raise
the question with the proper people.

Senator Robichaud: At the beginning of your brief you
gave us some figures of the number of employees that
INCO has in 18 different countries, and also the Canadian
participation. I wonder if you could supply this commit-
tee at a later date with similar figures to those we have
had from Alcan showing the direct investment in the
Pacific region. We do not need them now, but would it be
possible to supply our committee with these figures?

Mr. Clarke: Yes, I shall try to get them.
Senator Robichaud: Thank you.

Senator Laird: I want to go to a new topic, which was
not covered by the previous witness. I want to ask you
this, Mr. Clarke, in your dual role. Have you an opinion
whether or not our recognition of China is likely to
improve our trade relations with that country.

Mr. Clarke: The best I have read on that subject is the
Foreign Trade magazine put out by the Department of
Industry, Trade and Commerce. I think that spells out the
position more clearly than I could. I presume. you have
read that issue?

Senator Laird: Yes, we have that distributed to us. You
know, of course, that Russia and China just finished
signing a trade agreement so would it not appear that
perhaps the Chinese will be actually operating if not by
political considerations by the straight hard trading
propositions when it comes to dealing with any country?
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Mr. Clarke: Certainly their trade with Russia got down
to a pretty low level of $28 million which is negligible
considering those tremendous areas. I would presume
China recognizes the fact that she is going to gain tre-
mendously by increased trade with the outside world.

Senator Robichaud: Was it down from originally $500
million?

Mr. Clarke: I believe so.

Senator Laird: Is INCO interested in increasing its
trade with China? Have you a specific interest in that
country?

Mr. Clarke: As I mentioned, nickel has been in very
short supply during the last three or four years, probably
aggravated by our strikes in 1966 and last year when we
were closed for four months. As we come into longer
supply we are going to be interested in markets any-
where.

The philosophy of the company is to increase produc-
tion parallel with an increase in markets. That is why we
spend millions of dollars every year in market develop-
ment, research and all such related activities. You will
perhaps recall that in 1921 the market for nickel was
depressed and it was at that period that Mr. Stanley, who
was president and chairman at the time, began a tremen-
dous activity of research and market development which
really resulted by 1929 in the market being greater than
it was at the peak of World War I. From this period came
the developments of alloy and stainless steels, and the
high nickel alloys. At the moment nickel is used in some
3,000 alloys. It has a very broad industrial base now. Our
philosophy is that we are very anxious to develop mar-
kets as we increase production.

Senator Laird: Including China?
Mr. Clarke: Any place, really.

Senator McNamara: Are there any restrictions on the
sale of nickel to China.

Mr. Clarke: I don’t believe so. Only the restrictions of a
normal commercial nature.

Senator McNamara: I was wondering if it could be
used for armaments and things like that.

Mr. Clarke: I don’t think their steel industry is very
large. I think their consumption is relatively small,
because China is not a highly industrialized nation such
as Russia or any of the big countries.

Senator Carter: Mr. Clarke, the technological progress
with respect to processing oxides is becoming a thing of
the future. Will that affect very much our Canadian
production which is based on sulphides?

Mr. Clarke: No, it is supplementary to it. The point is
that the lateritics were always considered very refracto-
ry. For one thing, you cannot concentrate them which is
of tremendous importance because you have to ship ore
containing say, 2 per cent nickel instead of concentrates.

This is the way the ore is shipped from New Caledonia to
Japan. The technology of treating lateritic ores in place
economically is a big factor. These ores occur in far away
places where, as I mentioned, infrastructure has to be put
in place and you have problems of all kinds in putting
new organizations into operation. This will supplement
nickel from the Canadian sulphides. They are not likely
to shrink in volume, but the new requirements of the
world are going to have to come largely from these
lateritic deposits.

Senator Carter: Are we leading in the technology and
processing? Can we protect our place in the world mar-
ket and world competition?

Mr. Clarke: That is exactly what we are trying to do.
We think we are well in the forefront of the technology
of treatment of these ores. We have been experimenting
with these ores for years trying to utilize our processes
for their treatment. We have every reason to believe that
we are in the forefront, but we recognize that we have to
get located there and start treating these ores in order to
maintain our position as a major factor in the market.

Senator Carter: Does this French company have any
expertise in ore?

Mr. Clarke: It is all our technical expertise.

Senator Carter: Where does the non-Communist world
get their nickel supplies?

Mr. Clarke: The Communist ones?
Senator Carter: The Communist ones.

Mr. Clarke: Cuba is in the nickel business. Cuba has
lateritic ores and they have a chemical leach process
which has been in operation for some considerable period
of time. The USSR produces a fair amount of nickel,
certainly sufficient for their own requirements.

Senator Carter: Are those oxides?

Mr. Clarke: Mostly sulphides. You perhaps will recall
the Petsamo mine which we were developing in northern
Finland which became Russian after one of the Finnish-
Russian wars. That was sulphide ore.

Senator Carter: You have a set-up with the Japanese
company and this is another 50-50 partnership. Alcan
told us that they found this very satisfactory and in fact
they would prefer not to manage a Japanese company
because the whole process is so different. Is that your
experience too?

Mr. Clarke: Yes.
Senator Grosart: First of all, is it 50-50?

Mr. Clarke: I am not exactly sure but I believe it is
40%.

Senator Grosart: What about the other subsidiaries?

Mr. Clarke: It is not a very large organization nor a
very big investment.
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Senator Grosart: In COFIMPEC you own 40 per cent.
Mr. Clarke: Yes.

Senator Grosart: Is all of the rest owned by the
French?

Mr. Clarke: The French companies, yes.
Senator Grosart: There is no domestic equity in that?
Mr. Clarke: No, French companies.

The Chairman: You will appreciate that Mr. Clarke
very well knows that New Caledonia is like a municipal-
ity of France and not in the terms of a colony at all.
They are represented in Paris.

Senator Grosart: Some people in New Caledonia would
dispute that they are not a colony.

Senator Carter: You make a big point in your brief
and I think the Alcan did too in their brief and that is
the importance of stability of governments for invest-
ment. Even in stable countries such as France there is
beginning to develop some concern about multinational
companies, because they become almost a law in them-
selves and no one government can control them. Do you
see that as a factor developing in the future?

Mr. Clarke: That is a pretty big question, multinational
companies. They had a meeting of the International
Chamber of Commerce in Istanbul last year in which
everybody in the world seemed to be there trying to
figure the answer to that question. I cannot presume to
answer it. It seems to me that any company, multination-
al or otherwise serves its own best business interests by
living up to all the rules and regulations and aspirations
of the host country. I do not see how you can operate in
any other way, than to employ as many nationals as you
can and to train as many as you can to take leadership
positions. That is certainly what we do.

Senator Carter: All companies like multinational com-
panies allege, some of them, that they do not live up to
these lofty ideals.

Mr. Clarke: I think we do. We certainly try.

Senator Carter: I am not casting any aspersions, but I
am raising a general proposition. This stability factor to
which you attach such importance in your brief—I was
just wondering how valid that was, because even in
stable countries you may run into trouble in the future.

Mr. Clarke: I do not know. “Trouble” is a big word,
which covers a lot of things. I do not think that any-
where you do not run into trouble of some sort. That is
what the mining business is all about—overcoming trou-
bles and problems and difficulties of all kinds. The main
thing is that you want to feel that if you put your money
and know-how and marketing expertise and other things
into the development of a property, that you can expect
that it is not going to be expropriated and that you will
be able to realize some profit for your trouble and
investment.

Senator Carter: You mentioned in your brief some-
thing about some sort of international agreement for
security of investment. What had you got in mind?

Mr. Clarke: In that respect, there was a great deal of
discussion at the Kyoto meeting and I think the Japanese
are probably as much interested as anyone else in this
matter. They realize they are going to be investing large
amounts of money themselves all over the place—Aus-
tralia, Canada, Indonesia, Taiwan, throughout the Pacific
basin and Latin America. They feel, too, that it is impor-
tant to them that their investments have some sort of
protection. This may be in the form of insurance guaran-
tees or all kinds of things. It is a very broad question.
What is happening with the Japanese is that they are
investing a lot of money in secondary industries, going to
areas where labour is more plentiful, because they are
now beginning to suffer from a labour shortage. Their
wage rates are going up. I think their labour increase this
year was 16 per cent and their productivity, maybe about
14 per cent. So, for the first time their productivity is not
as high as their labour rate increase. They are now
making very substantial investments at all stages of pro-
cessing throughout the Pacific and I think they feel that
they would like to see some guarantees themselves.

The Chairman: In effect, in the statement which is on
page 5 of your second brief, it does not refer to military
security in any way?

Mr. Clarke: No.

The Chairman: I think this is a very important ques-
tion that Senator Carter has raised. It goes back to
the questioning that we had with ALCAN and the Export
Development Corporation, and insurance against political
risks and so on. You say “some form of international
security against expropriation”. Those are very generic
words, too. Those are very difficult words, particularly
“expropriation”. Do you have any further comment on
that?

Mr. Clarke: Not really. So much has been said about it,
it is hard to add anything. It is one of the main concerns
of all these people who gather in international meetings,
regardless of where it is, whether it is the Pacific basin
or the International Chamber of Commerce or any of
these groups. It is the one thing which is beginning to
stand out, that you have huge corporations, multination-
al corporations, making investments in many areas of the
world and they hope for what they consider to be reason-
able political climates, so that the investments can be
protected and developed. I think that is about the least
they can expect, frankly.

Senator Grosart: Actually, it is not a new problem, it
has been a problem ever since the industrial revolution.

The Chairman: I do not think it is a new problem but I
think it is the primary one, perhaps, at this time. It is the
emergent problem.

Mr. Clarke: It is getting bigger, because after all the
only way the developing nations are going to start to
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close the technological gap at all is by industrialization
and the development of whatever their natural resources
happen to be. With the population explosion the way it
is, they are breeding people faster than they can build
their GNP per capita. The only way it can be done is by
industrialization. And the only way that can be done,
because they do not have enough capital formation inter-
nally in most of these places, is by somebody putting in
the money; and they do not like to put it in unless they
feel it is going to be protected.

Senator Grosart: What I am saying is that that is what
the British Empire was all about.

Mr. Clarke: But they had a little different attitude.

Senator Grosart: They sent the troops in. The Ameri-
cans sent the marines in. It is nothing new.

Mr. Clarke: That is not the same solution.

Senator Grosart: It is not the same solution, but the
problem is not a new one. I do not know why everyone
wants to put so much emphasis on it. Britain was all over
the world and had investments all over the world under
much more unstable political conditions than we have
today.

Senator Robichaud: This is the question I had in mind
to ask. My main reason for asking it is that I have just
returned from Chile. Having been able to see what the
situation is in that country, I thought that this was one of
the main reasons for making this statement, because
security against expropriation, where companies with
large investment were going to be nationalized and
expropriated, I think we had there probably the most
recent example of such action by a foreign government.

Senator Grosart: A few American companies feel the
same way about Canada right now.

Senator Robichaud: Maybe not to the same extent. I am
not so sure.

Senator Grosart: I was interested in the agreement of
the Ontario Government to relax some of its restrictions
to allow you to export that extra 15 million tons. What
are these restrictions that they relaxed? I understand

that they had to do with attempting to get more process-
ing in Ontario.

Mr. Clarke: I believe they have an act under which

you have to apply for permits for anything other than
fully processed material.

Senator Grosart: Does this apply to primary products,
mining?

par. Clarke: I believe it also applies to forest products. I
think that is where it started.

Senator Grosart: Going back about 25 or 30 years, it
was brought in then, and the forestry people, or the pulp
angl paper people, were given 10 years to reach a certain
point of domestic processing.

Mr. Clarke: I believe that it is under section 106 of the
Mining Act.

Senator Grosart: Would you read it?

Mr. Clarke: I do not have it here. I have just a
reference.

Senator Grosart: It requires an export permit, gener-
ally speaking, for primary industries?

Mr. Clarke: In this particular instance, this material is
almost fully refined, anyway. There is only one more
minor step that you would take to convert it into the
same marketable oxide. It still has to have some of the
sulphur in it so that it can be fully processed. That is a
relatively minor step. I think a half of one per cent might
be the added labour value. It is very small. In other
words it is not really as if it were non-processed material.

Senator Grosart: Then why would this restriction
apply?

Mr. Clarke: I guess it just happens to be taken in the
act. It is not in its final fullyy marketable state. It is not
exactly the same as would be directly usable in the steel
industry.

Senator Grosart: May I ask you the same question that
1 asked the previous witness? What percentage of the
actual processing is done in Canada? It is hard to get a
yardstick but, let us say, in dollars, per ton, again.

Mr. Clarke: The basic refined nickel product, that is
the material which is used directly by the steel industry,
is currently $1.33. It varies in accordance with the form,
but basically we can say it is $1.33.

Senator Grosart: For what?

Mr. Clarke: Per pound. There is a dilution factor in
nickel which does not exist to the same degree in alumi-
num or copper. In aluminum and copper these two
materials constitute to a much larger extent the value of
the finished product. Nickel is used to strengthen in
relatively small amounts steel and copper and other
metals. In the case of alloy steel, 1 per cent could be the
nickel content. Therefore, the dilution factor of the value
of the nickel is something which makes it entirely differ-
ent from aluminum wire and cable or copper products.
Now, stainless steel, which is the major utilization of
nickel, has in its best form 8 per cent nickel. Higher
nickel alloys such as those used in jet blades, and high-
temperature uses might run as high as 30 per cent, but
for the most part the large volume of nickel is consumed
in relatively minor quantities. The value of, say, stainless
steel could be in the neighbourhood of maybe 80 cents a
pound, but the value of the nickel in it would constitute
only 8 per cent of the total weight. So it is not something
which you can compare directly. The final finished prod-
uct, which is utilized all over the world, is refined nickel.
From that point on it has to be melted or in some way
processed further. So there is no way in which you can
get a direct relationship. The big utilization of labour and
supplies and power, and all of these costs, is in the
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production of the refined product, all of which is done in
Canada.

Senator Grosart: So that you are exporting practically
a finished product.

Mr. Clarke: Yes.

Senator Grosart: Therefore your subsidiary interests
are all in exploration and mining, are they?

Mr. Clarke: With the exception of two rolling mills,
one in Birmingham, England, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary and another in Huntington, West Virginia,
which is also a wholly-owned subsidiary. These two
organizations take nickel from us and melt it and make it
into very highly-specialized alloys, of which there are
hundreds of varieties and hundreds of shapes and sizes.

Senator Grosart: Is there any such activity such as
rolling mills in the Pacific rim?

Mr. Clarke: Japan produces almost all these alloys.
They have a very sophisticated steel and alloy industry,
as you know, and can produce just about anything they
want to. But we do not have such a facility in the Pacific
basin countries.

Senator Grosart: You have spoken of the marvellous
record of International Nickel in innovating new uses.
Where is most of that research done?

Mr. Clarke: There are different kinds of research. We
have very extensive research operations. The major one
here in Canada is process research which is our facility
at Sheridan Park. All the process research for the entire
company is done at Sheridan Park outside Oakville.

Our product research—that is, our alloy steel research
and that sort of thing—is done in two laboratories. One is
in New Jersey and the other is in Birmingham, England.
The rolling mills themselves do a certain amount of
indigenous research for themselves, acting just like
another customer, as, for example, a steel mill would do
research. But those are our three basic research projects
with the exception of our pilot plant research. That is a

very extensive and very large facility at Port Colborne,
Ontario.

Senator Grosart: What type of research would you do
in attempting, as you are, to increase your share of the
Japanese market? Would you do any process research
there on the type of ores that the Japanese have?

Mr. Clarke: No, we bring those ores into Port Colborne
and we do all of the process research there. If it is lab
research, we do it at Sheridan Park. If it is pilot plant
research, as is the case with Indonesian ores, we would
do that at Port Colborne.

Senator Grosart: I suppose market research would be
done on the spot.

Mr. Clarke: It is a combination of things. The market
research is not just the research you do yourself, which
is trying to find new alloys or new inventions or improve
old ones, but is also the research which you do with your
customer, which is to help your customer. You give him
the latest technology, you know about and he can give
you plenty of information in return. It is not a one-way
street by any stretch of the imagination. But a lot of that
sort of thing is done by the market development engi-
neers that I spoke of right with the companies involved.

Senator Grosart: It is rather interesting that in both
submissions you speak very highly of the co-operation
you have had from the federal and provincial govern-
ments. That is rather unusual evidence for us to have in
a Senate committee. Are you an exception in that
respect? Do you get on better with governments than
others do?

Mr. Clarke: I would certainly hope not, but it is a
possibility.

Senator Grosart: On that high and optimistic note I
will pass, Mr. Chairman.

The Chairman: Well, sir, on behalf of the committee let
me thank you very much indeed.

The committee adjourned.
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1.

Alcan Aluminium Limited

Alcan Aluminium Limited (Alcan) is a Canadian company with headquarters in
Montreal engaged, through subsidiary and related comparies, in all phases
of the aluminum business on an international scale, The Company is
independent of, and operateé in competition with, all other major world
aluminum producers,

Alcan is publicly owned, It has some 7,500 preferred shareholders and
about 72,000 common shareholders, mainly in Canada and the United States,
Almost all of its 1,5 million convertible preferred shares and close to
40 percent of its 32,9 million outstanding common shares are held in
Canada as of 31 March 1970, representing, in terms of market value, one
of the largest investments by the Canadian public in any industrial
enterprise, The remaining 607% of the Alcan common shares are held iz the
U,S.A, and other countries,

The Company's consolidated subsidiaries employ about 62,000 persons around
the world, of which 19,000 are in Canada, In 1969 the value of goods and
services purchased by Alcan in Canada was about Can,$114 million, payrolls
in Canada totalled $161 million, taxes paid to Federal and Provincial
Governments amounted to $64 million and dividends paid to Canadiarstotalled
some $19 million,

Alcan's subsidiary and related companies have bauxite holdings in nine
countries, smelt primary aluminum in nine, fabricate aluminum in 33 and
have sales outlets in more than 100, Management is international in
composition, consistent with the Company's world-wide activities,

In 1969y Alcan's subsidiary and related companies produced :

Primary aluminum - 1,692,900 tons. Of this quantity,

968,700 tons were produced in Canada.

Semi-fabricated and finished products - 885,0Q0 tors.

Alumina, or aluminum oxide, the powdery substance from

which aluminum is extracted - 4,400,000 tons,

Bauxite, the ore from which alumina is refined - 7,800,000 tors.
Calcined bauxite, for uses other than metal production -
644,000 tons,

Nearly half the aluminum which moved in 1969 across the international
boundaries of the free world was Alcan metal,

Consolidated sales and operating revenues in 1969 amounted to a record
U.S,.$1,227 million,

Culminating a decade of substantial investment in and aggressive develop-
ment of world-wide aluminum fabricating operations primarily to protect
out™Canadian ingot outlets,consolidated sales of fabricated products, at
621,400 tons, in 1969 were more than triple the tonnage sold in 1958 and
accounted for just under two-thirds of total aluminum product dollar sales,

At year end, gross assets had risen to U,S,$3,115 million, net assets to
U,S,$2,044 million,
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The Company's most important single market in 1969 was, as in the previous
seven years, the United States, which accounted for 399,000 tons of the
Company's aluminum product sales, The Canadian market accounted for
152,000 tons, the U,K, for 191,000 tons, the Common Market countries for
158,000 tons, and the Pacific Basin countries also for 158,000 tors,
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2,

Alcan in the Pacific

(1) Introduction

The Alcan Group has conducted business in the Pacific area since the 1930's,
the first direct investment being made in Japan in 1931, followed by an
investment in Australia in 1939, Today, the Alcan Group's share of the
assets of those operations in which it has an ownership amounts to

U,.S.%$392 million, and corresponding sales revenues total U,S,$238 million,
By 1975, it is currently estimated that the share of gross assets and sales
revenues of these operations could increase to U,S,$737 million and U,S,
$424 million respectively, with a large part of this expansion taking place
in Japan and Australia,

For comparison with total Group operations, the Pacific area in 1969
absorbed about 15% of all Alcan metal exported from Canada, and accounted
for approximately 107 of Alcan's consolidated sales revenues and over 57
of dividend revenues from world-wide subsidiaries and affiliates, Alcan
was responsible for some 10% of Canada's exports to the Pacific countries
in 1969. By any of these measurements, the Pacific Basin is composed of
a very important group of countries to Alcan,

The tables and map included in this presentation provide a summary reference
for Alcan's direct investments in and export sales to the Pacific nationms,
as well as indicating dividend revenues and service fees received from Group
companies in these countries,

Alcan has followed a policy of operating through national subsidiaries in
these countries, and of hiring, training and developing a local maragement
group as rapidly as possible, All of our operating companies in the Pacific
area are managed almost entirely by local personnel; many of these employees
have reached managerial positions in other than their native countries,
These management development programmes are dependent upon frequeant recipro-
cal visits between the personnel of these companieg and headquarters in
Montreal, which also serve to broaden mutual understanding between Canada
and the Pacific nations, Alcan's subsidiaries and affiliates in the Pacific
have access to the Group's Canadian research facilities located at Kingston
and Arvida, and in addition draw on the world-wide technical experience of
the Alcan Group,

With the important exception of Japan, where we are well satisfied with our
50/50 partnerships, Alcan welcomes local equity participation but prefers
to retain management control and if possible the right to supply metal
requirements,

We believe that the Pacific Basin will continue to be an important outlet
for Canadian metal, despite the development in some countries of indigenous
sources of supply. Since Alcan is in a sound position to expand its
operations in the Pacific Basin countries, we plan to continue to partici-
pate in their growth,
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Japan
Japan

Japan

Hong Kong

Malaysia
Thailand
Malaysia

Australia

Australia

New Zealand

Company

Nippon Light Metal Co, Ltd.
Toyo Aluminium K, K.

Alcan Asia Ltd,

Alcan Southeast Asia Ltd.

Alcan Malaysia Berhad

Alcan Thai Co, Ltd.

Southeast Asia Bauxites Ltd.

Alcan Australia Ltd,

Queensland Alumina Ltd,
Alcan New Zealand Ltd,

Totals: u.

Alcan Group Direct Investment in the Pacific

Alcan %
share-

holding
50
50

100

100

51
50
24t

70

21
70

S. $ million

Total Assets

Sales Revenue

U,S.$ million

U.S, $ million

1970-(est. )-1975

(Scaled down to percentage shareholding)

Fully Integrated
Aluminum Production
Aluminum Fabrication
Imports 6f Aluminum
largely from Canada
to Japan

Imports of Aluminum
from Canada to
Southeast Asia
Aluminum Fabrication
Aluminum Fabrication
Bauxite Mining

Aluminum Smelting
and Fabrication

Alumina Production

Aluminum Fabrication

1970-(est, )-1975
215 485
23 35
8 9
4 6
2 3
x 2
3 S
63 88
65 95
N ) et
392 737

85
18

70

24
18
10

238

185

40

80

15

45
38
11

426

0LBT-TI-%2

sitegy ugpioq

62 %



Foreign Affairs 24-11-1970

Alcan's Exports from Canada
to Pacific Countries, 1969,

Short Tons
Country Association Product U,S.$ million '000
Japan Affiliates Ingot 19.3 41.5
Japan Third Parties b 42,5 91.8
Hong Kong Third Parties " 3 T2
Malaysia Subsidiary Ly 1.1 &2
Thailand Affiliate L 0.7 L3
New Zealand Subsidiary s 4,6 8.3
New Zealand Third Parties ¢ 0,1 0.1
Other Third Parties o _0.5 ikl
70.1 153.5
New Zealand Affiliate Rod w20 5 _4.0
2.8 157.3
Dividends and Fees Received by Alcan
from Pacific Area in 1969
U,S.$ 000

Dividends Fees Total

Japan 2,270 260 2,530
Malaysia 600 - 600
Australia 44 360 404
New Zealand - £25 25

2,914 645 3,559
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(ii) Far East
Trading Activities :

Alcan Asia Ltd., Osaka, is the trading company for Alcan products in Japan,
India and Pakistan, whose major business is the import of aluminum ingot
mainly from Canada. Alcan has long-term metal and technical assistance
contracts with a number of major Japanese companies. Looking to the future,
Alcanasia expects to maintain metal sales in the Far East at current levels,
whilst diversifying its activities into other commercial products., With its
long experience and broad distribution facilities, the Alcan trading organi-
zation is well placed to act as agent in the Pacific area for other Canadian
exports,

Japan :

The dramatic post-war economic growth in Japan has resulted in the develop-
ment of the second largest aluminum market in the free world, The growth

of aluminum demand has recently outpaced general economic expansion, In 1969,
GNP increased by 13% and aluminum demand by 26%, by comparison with an

increase in U,S, GNP of about 3% and a growth of aluminum demand of 67,

Over the medium term, forecasts indicate an average annual GNP growth of
10-11%, with a corresponding increase in aluminum demand of 17%. The potential
for continued expansion in Japan towards an advanced economy is indicated by
the fact that in terms of GNP, Japan ranks second among the free world
countries, but is 16th in terms of per capita income, The government is
expected to provide, in addition to social overhead capital, strong incen-
tives to develop technique intensive domestic industry, and to foster the
trend towards import substitution and increased exports of secondary manufactures,

The Nippon Light Metal Company Ltd, (NKK) is the largest primary aluminum pro-
ducer in Japan, Founded in 1938 and affiliated with Alcan since 1952 through
a 50% equity interest, this company's metal production has grown with the
industry, NKK now accounts for almost 30% of total Japanese production and,
including sales of metal imported largely from Canada, for over 25% of the
total domestic primary aluminum market, The largest portion of NKK's metal
sales are made to established customers under long standing arrangements and
the balance is sold to subsidiary and affiliated fabricating companies which
have become major factors in the aluminum sheet products, wire rod, window
sash and extrusions markets, Should the Japanese aluminum markets develop

as currently projected, NKK has flexible plans which would involve substantial
capital expenditures over the next five years, to be mainly financed locally,
Such outlays could more than double NKK's asset base, NKK is collaborating
with other Japanese producers in establishing an aluminum smelter in Okinawa,
and it is possible that NKK may be asked to participate with other Japanese
companies in joint ventures in other countries in the area.

Alcan also has a 50% participation in Toyo Aluminium KK (Toyal), obtained in
1931, Toyal is a leading manufacturer of aluminum foil in Japan, with a current
market share of over 307%, Toyal also participates in joint fabricating ventures
with Ecko Products Ltd, in Japan, and with Sam-A Aluminum in South Korea,
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Japan is becoming an expanding field of activity for most major international
aluminum companies, so that Alcan is likely to face more extensive competi-
tion in the future, Alcan was the first of the major international aluminum
producers to enter and expand the Japanese domestic market, both in aluminum
fabricating and smelting, and the commercial arrangements whicth were then
negotiated are now being emulated by other multinational companies who are
becoming aware of the potential in the Japanese market, Reynolds is a
partner in a leading Japanese rolling mill - Mitsubishi Reynolds; Kaiser,
together with another Japanese aluminum producer, Showa Denko, and a

leading steel producer, Yawata Steel, form a fabricating company - SKY,
Alcoa is a partner in Furukawa Aluminum, a rolling mill operation, and
lately received from the Ryukyu Government on Okinawa a licence for an
aluminum smelter to be constructed on that island, which will revert to
Japan in 1972,
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(iii) Southeast Asia

The Alcan name has had a long association with Southeast Asian countries,
and in particular with the Malaysia/Singapore area, where, through agents
and resident representatives, Alcan Aluminium products have been marketed
for almost four decades, and the Alcan Group pioneered in exploring bauxite
deposits in the State of Johore over 25 years ago.

Trading Activities :

Alcan Southeast Asia Ltd,, Hong Kong, is the trading company for Alcan
products mainly in Hong Kong, the Philippines, Malaysia, Thailand and
China, Alcan Southeast Asia's sales revenue is expected to double by
1975 as a result of increased usage of aluminum in the developing
countries to which it exports,

Malaysia :

In 1960, Alcan Malayan Aluminium Company Sdn,Berhad (Alcanmalay) was
formed by the Alcan Group in partnership with Diethelm & Co., a long
established Swiss trading company distributiag imported metal in Malaysia
and Singapore, Alcanmalay's objective was to meet the needs of Malaysian
manufacturers for aluminum rolled products which were being imported,
This enterprise was created through the co-operation of the Malaysian
Government who provided inducement under the Pioneer Industries Ordinance,
the assistance of Malaysian Industrial Development Finance Berhad who
provided a long-term loan, the Alcan Group who supplied the majority of
the capital as well as engineering and technology, and Diethelm who pro-
vided minority capital as well as their experience in distribution and
salesof aluminum products,

In 1969 Alcan provided an opportunity for the Malaysian public to acquire
40% of the equity capital of Alcanmalay, and the resulting issue was
extremely well received, At the present time, Alcanmalay is expanding its
base as a producer of various forms of aluminum sheet and sheet products
and will shortly commission a large extrusion press to meet domestic needs
which are presently imported,

Also in Malaysia, Alcan has a 757% interest in Southeast Asia Bauxites Ltd.,
a raw materials mining and shipping operation, The remaining 25% is owned
by NKK, who take a large portion of the company's output of bauxite on
long term contract, A further large portion is sold to Taiwan for use in
the government-controlled aluminum concern, The remainder is sold mainly
to various large customers in Japan,

Thailand :

Alcan made a substantial investment in Thailand in 1969, by contributing
to a joint venture with a local partner in the aluminum extrusions field.
The company has been exploring the possibility of developing the domestic
aluminum market in other fields, and it is likely that Alcan will maintain
a strong interest in Thailand, Metal requirements to supply Alcan's
investments in both Thailand and Malaysia are imported from Canada,
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China :

Alcan was doing business in mainland China as far back as the 1920's, and
used to be a partner in a rolling mill operation in this country, During
the past ten years, we have from time to time sold metal to China,

In view of the recent establishment by the Canadian Government of closer
diplomatic relations with Peking, Alcan is placed in a relatively
favourable position as a potential source of aluminum supply. However,
the aluminum demand picture in China is by no means clear at present,
and Alcan will enter the market provided realized metal returns are
acceptable,
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(iv) South Pacific
Australia :

Since the late 1940's Australia has been undergoing the longest and most
broadly based phase of expansion in its history. At times during this
period, the economy has been subject to inflationary pressures and there
have been brief period of recession, most recently in 1961, However,
consistent attempts by the Government to achieve stable conditions for
growth have been largely successful, GNP at constant prices has grown at
an average annual rate of over 4%, Growth of production in the manu-
facturing, mining, building and construction sectors has been over 5%
per annum,

During the last decade, the consumption of aluminum in Australia has
grown at an average annual rate of 137%, This high rate of growth has
been caused primarily by the fact that the Australian economy has
recently entered a stage of high mass consumption, In this respect,
Australia and Canada are closely comparable economies in which the rapid
development of secondary industry and the importation not only of capital
but also of consumption patterns from the U,S, had led to accelerated
growth, However, this rapid rate of consumption is unlikely to be
sustained over the next five years as housing and consumer durable
markets become more saturated, and a growth rate of some 97 per annum

is forecast to 1975,

Alcan has been in Australia since 1939, when Australian Aluminium Company Ltd,
was formed and became jointly owned by Alcan, British Aluminium and Elec-
trolytic Zinc Company. In 1951 Electrolytic Zinc sold ite one-third holding
in the company to the other two partners and in 1963, British Aluminium sold
its one-half interest to Alcan which resulted in Alcan becoming the 1007
owner of the company, In 1967, as an essential ;prerequisite to raising
local long-term debt for a new smelter, the company placed 29,57 of the
equity with 26 Australian institutions and the company's name was then
changed to Alcan Australia Limited,

Alcan Australia commenced fabricating operations in 1941 when the first plant
was built for the production of sheet and extruded products for defence uses,
Over the years this plant has been progressively enlarged and the range of
products substantially broadened,

Before 1955, all ingot requirements were imported principally from Canada,
as Alcanaust was the dominant fattor in the semi-fabricating industry,

In 1955, two important occurrences took place: firstly vast bauxite deposits
were discovered in Weipa and secondly the Government smelter at Bell Bay
commenced operations, At that time, it did not suit Alcan to show an
interest in the local smelter because Kitimat had just been completed.
However, in 1958, Alcan embarked on an expansion programme in fabricating
facilities which cost about U,S,$20 million over the seven years to 1964,
In 1960, a joint venture, Comalco (50% Kaiser, 507% Conzinc-Riotinto)
acquired the Bell Bay Smelter, In 1962/63, Comalco integrated forward by
acquiring a number of independent fabricators, and installing modern sheet,
foil and extrusion facilities in Sydney., In 1963/64 Alcoa of Australia
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was formed by Alcoa, Western Mining Co. Ltd., and two other Australian
mining companies to establish integrated aluminum production, Following
essentially the same route as Comalco, Alcoa purchased a number of end
product manufacturers and installed modern sheet, foil and extrusion
facilities near Melbourne., From 1963 onwards, as the capacity of domestic
smelters increased, the Government imposed increasing restrictions on
aluminum imports, resulting in a complete embargo by 1966, as a result

of which Alcan lost its export market in Australia for Canadian metal,
With the continued imposition of the embargo, Alcan constructed its

own smelting facilities in Australia,

Construction of a 50,000 ton per annum smelter cormenced in 1967, and

to date some U,S,$30 million has been invested, The above developments
have led to Comalco and Alcoa having capacity in excess of their domestic
requirements, which in turn has led to their adopting a very aggressive
posture in export markets, particularly in the Pacific Basin countries,

In the raw materials field, Alcan has obtained a 21,47 interest in
Queensland Alumina Ltd, in which several other major interrational
aluminum producers also participate, This consortium operates one of
the world's largest alumina refineries, based on extensive Australian
bauxite reserves, Alcan's share of the output is largely used in its
Australian and Canadian smelters. Queensland Alumina is undergoing very
rapid expansion, which will result in the development of the world's
largest alumina refinery by 1972, Alcan itself also owns an 84 year
bauxite mining lease over some 600 sq, miles in the Cape York Peninsula,
and future plans call for the possible development of this property
during the next decade by a fully owned subsidiary.

New Zealand :

In 1961, Alcan established an aluminum rolling mill near Auckland,

New Zealand, to supply sheet and coil products to the domestic rarket,

A modern extrusion plant was added in 1964 for the production of aluminum
sections, Alcan New Zealand Limited also has an interest in a large cable
manufacturer, Metal for these fabricating plants is currently imported
from Canada, Alcan has an agreement with the New Zealand government to
import 100% of its ingot requirements through 1971, and 50% for five
years thereafter, We would have wished to continue to supply our

New Zealand subsidiary with all its metal requirements, but at present
the government is not disposed to extend our import licence, in view

of the establishment of local smelting facilities by Comalco. This
Comalco smelter, with an initial capacity of over 100,000 tons, has

been built largely to service Pacific export markets and will be a

major competitive factor in the future,

In 1970, Alcan raised new equity funds locally, with the result that
several local institutions as well as the New Zealand public have a
total 30% interest in Alcan's New Zealand operations, An ambitious
expansion programme is under way, which involves a new foil mill and a
second extrusion press, It is expected that the future growth of
aluminum consumption in New Zealand will be not less than the world
average, which has been 8 - 97 during the past five years., Alcan

New Zealand has established itself as the leading fabricator in the
domestic market, and hopes to maintain this position despite the entry
of Comalco into the smelting and fabricating field in New Zealand,
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3.

Possible Future Developments and Implications for Canadian Policy

Taken as a whole, the Pacific area has considerable potential for develop-
ment by comparison with the world's major industrialized economies.
Australia has only just reached a "take-off" stage in economic develop-
ment, and Japan, despite its outstanding GNP growth, has not yet obtained
a high level of consumption in per capita terms, The other Pacific
nations are now in a relatively less developed stage, but should expand
at above average growth rates of between 5 and 15% per annum during the
next decade,

The process of development in the Pacific area is reflected in the changing
regulations of the countries regarding foreign investments and trade, It
is important that the nature of inter-governmental agreements between
Canada and these Pacific countries change pari passu with the relative
economic development of the countries concerned, As an example, whereas
investor confidence in Australia was originally supported by the fact

that Australia was an integral part of the Commonwealth, the investor

must now look more to multilateral treaties for such confidence. In this
respect, we hope that the Canadian Government will take a firm stand with
Australia on matters concerning taxation, With regard to Japan, it should
be understood that the level of protection should not be greater than that
used by other nations which are at a similar stage of economic development,
e.g. the E,E.C,

Looking further into the future, we foresee the likelihood of increasing
economic ties between Japan, Australia and New Zealand, with the possible
ultimate formation of a Pacific trade bloc which could also include some

of the Southeast Asian nations, Australia is developing into a major
competitor for Canada in the export of raw materials to the industrialized
nations of the world and in particular to Japan, Indonesia also may develop
into a major source of supply for Japanese raw material imports, Although
Alcan is by necessity an exporter mainly of primary products, we believe
that Canadian companies should develop exports of more secondary manufac-
tures and finished products to the Pacific, and encouragement should be
given to Canadian investors to participate in the development of the
Pacific rim countries as a means of capitalizing onrour skills, Canada
should not ignore the probability that China will ultimately seek develop-
ment capital in Europe and North America and that Canada could be the
conduit for such capital, We should anticipate that Japan's economic
growth rate will slow down, probably by the time per capita GNP has reached
U, S, levels or about 1980 by current forecasts; this development is likely
to be accompanied by a readjustment process which may substantially affect
the pattern of trade and investment with Japan,

The growth of Canada's exports has been impressive and this can be attri-
buted in no small part to an improvement in the Export Development Cor-
poration's long and medium term financing arrangements as well as to the
insurance scheme that is now offered, We have used these facilities to
export capital items from Canada to India and other countries but would
like to suggest that the programmes could be improved by providing a
rediscount facility for export paper which results from such export
transactions, and selected market insurance coverage,
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We also note that the U,S, Treasury is talking of setting up a new tax-
free export incentive proposal, taking the form of a "domestic inter-
national sales corporation", Although full details of this plan and

its implications are not yet known, it is aimed at providing an incentive
for American corporations to expand their export facilities in the United
States to supply world markets, including Canada, and this would obviously
be disadvantageous to Alcan's exports from Canada to the Pacific rim
countries,

When one reflects on these far-reaching developments, the need for closer
communication between governments becomes all the more imperative, To

some extent this development is inevitable as multinational corporations
continue to expand their spheres of activity and become major factors in
the economies of countries other than their original home base, If

Canada decides that it wishes to further encourage the development of
Canadian-based multinational companies, then a favourable environment

must be created for the growth of such enterprises, This environment
should incorporate new tax regulations to encourage exports and to
encourage Canadian-based multinationals to raise capital abroad and
channel the funds to subsidiaries overseas without attracting Canadian
tax, As one of the world's major trading nations, Canada is in a position
to play a very active role in fostering intergovernmental cooperation and
in helping to shape the progress of its Pacific neighbours, whose fortunes
will increasingly affect those of Canada itself,
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APPENDIX “B”

STATEMENT BY K. H. J. CLARKE, ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT,
THE INTERNATIONAL NICKEL COMPANY OF CANADA LIMITED,
BEFORE THE CANADIAN SENATE FOREIGN AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

November 24, 1970

I am honoured to have the opportunity to present a statement
by International Nickel on a subject that, as indicated in the Canadian
Government's recent foreign policy paper on the Pacific, is of such

interest to Canada and Canadians.

I also welcome the opportunity because it allows me to bring
you up-to-date on some of the activities of International Nickel --

and, thereby, this Canadian Industry -- in the Pacific area.

The Government policy paper on the Pacific has aptly pointed
out that, for geographic, economic and historic reasons, the future
of Canada is closely related to the economic, social and political
evolution of the Asiatic and Pacific countries. Indeed, the degree
to which this overall region achieves "peace and stability", in the
face of many serious problems and "forces of change", will fundamentally
influence the pattern of world history. The meaningful proposals set

forth in the Policy Paper implicitly recognize the link between a proper
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development of the region's vast economic potential -- people,
natural resources, underpopulated areas -- and the establishment
of the "social justice" and "quality of life" that peace and stability

are based on.

This economic growth, as the Policy Paper notes, has
already begun -- partly through initiatives taken by the various
countries themselves, but, to a considerable extent, through the
efforts of Canadian and other overseas companies. International

Nickel has been a leader among these companies in these activities.

I would like to review for you briefly some of the circumstances
which have led us to participate in the Pacific region, and also
describe some of our various activities there for you. Before
doing so, however, I would like to note that much of Pacific area is
stable and is being steadily developed. It embraces countries with
some of the most politically stable governments in the world -- as
well as Japan, the second largest economic power in the non-Communist
world. Because of its key significance to any reflection on the Pacific
area, I will also devote a portion of this statement to International

Nickel's activities in Japan.
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I think you will note, however, that this statement is
not responsive to some of the points raised in the Canadian
Govemment Foreign Policy paper and in the suggestions of
the Parliamentary Centre for Foreign Affairs and Foreign Trade.
This is because we feel that our business activities in the
Pacific -- exploration for new mineral sources and exporting
niickel from Canada to Japan -- do not put us in a position to

have expertise on various topics of interest to this committee.

As you know, up to the present, Canada has been the
world's major source of nickel, all of it coming from sulphide
ores. The dramatic growth in nickel de mand over recent years,
however, has led producers and would-be producers to look
toward the development of other ore sources, not only foreign

sulphides but, most prominently, the lateritic ores.

It is estimated that some 80 per cent of the world's known
nickel reserves are contained in the lateritic, or oxide, ores found
in tropical and subtropical regions. Their development represents

the great bulk of future expansion in the industry.

23146—4
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Some of the most important lateritic deposits are in
"Pacific Basin" countries -- Indonesia, the Philippines, Australia and,
of course, New Caledonia. Indeed, there have been estimates
that New Caledonia, alone, by 1975 could be producing 25 per

cent of the world's nickel.

By this same year, despite planned substantial increases
in Canadian nickel output, Canadian production is expected to
account for less than one-half of the non-Communist world's
nickel supply and about one-third of the entire world's nickel

supply.

This does not necessarily mean, however, a diminution
of Canada's worldwide role in the nickel industry. The development
of the foreign ore bodies, such as those in the Pacific area, offers
an exceptional opportunity to Canadian mining companies with their

unparalleled mining experience and technical know-how.

International Nickel has long recognized that, if it is to
remain a major factor in the industry, it must successfully participate
in developing the laterites. Our own studies have demonstrated that
the laterites can be profitably developed and that they will be highly
competitive with sulphide production. In addition to the vast amount
of research we have conducted to acquire a mastery in treating these

ores, we have actively explored the lateritic-bearing regions of the
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world, and at present, have projects underway in the Pacific

area -- which will hopefully lead to fruitful producing operations.

In the French Territory of New Caledonia, International

Nickel is a partner with a holding company of French interests

in the new company, COFIMPAC. We recently presented a feasi-
bility study to our partners in this company which sets forth a
technically and economically feasible plan to produce 100 million
pounds of nickel a year -- in the form of carbonyl pellets. This
project, which would represent an investment of $481, 000,000,
could reach full production in mid-1975, Although it has been
favourably considered by the French partners, the report has not

yet been definitely approved.

In Indonesia, International Nickel has formed a subsidiary,
P. T. International Nickel Indonesia, which is proceeding rapidly
with the investigation of nickel deposits in a 25, 000-square-mile
area on the island of Sulawesi., The results thus far have been
encouraging and, as a matter of fact, a bulk sample of Indonesian
ore has recently arrived here in Canada for analysis and test processing
at our pilot plants at Port Colborne, Ontario. We expect to present to
the Indonesian Government a preliminary plan for the development of

these deposits early next year.
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Exploration feasibility work is also being pursued on

lateritic nickel deposits in the British Solomon Islands Protectorate.

International Nickel has been exploring in Australia for

some years. Working with The Broken Hill Proprietory Company
Limited, its major effort at present is in the Kalgoorlie region of
Western Australia where important nickel deposits have been found

by others.

These efforts led to the discovery in 1969 of interesting
deposits of nickel sulphide mineralization near the town of
Widgiemooltha, Western Australia. Work began in April 1970 on
the sinking of a 1,000-foot shaft that will permit éxtensive
exploration at depth and the hoisting of bulk samples for

metallurgical testing.

The company is also collaborating with Broken Hill in
evaluation work on a lateritic nickel deposit at Rockhampton,

Queensland.

Another recent activity in Western Australia, in which
International Nickel is the majority shareholder, was the completion

last summer of a comprehensive feasibility study on the Wingellina
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nickel deposit held by Southwestern Mining Limited, which
concluded that development of this particular deposit at this

time remains uneconomic.

Although our activities in Australia have not yet led
us to where we can delineate a specific project, we are confident
that International Nickel will participate in the future development

of Australia's mineral resources.

I would like to point out here that, in addition to their
ore potential, a major factor in our considering the development
of projects in Indonesia, Australia and New Caledonia has been
the favourable conditions with which the government s of these
countries have encouraged outside investment. Their policies,
while logically preserving conformity to local conditions, recognize
the risks involved in the vast investments these projects entail,
as well as the difficulties presented by infrastructure needs,
skilled labour requirements, and remoteness of location. The
investment climate, while varying considerably in detail and
means, are comparable to those long provided by Canada, and
which have contributed in no small way to the development of

Canada's great mineral industry.
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In Australia and New Caledonia the investment climate
is also enhanced by political stability. This is also becoming
increasingly true of Indonesia which continues to make important

progress in the social and economic advancement.

I would now like to turn to Japan. As you know, the
industrial expansion of this country has been nothing short of
phenominal. A clear indication of this growth is its nickel
consumption which has moved from an annual rate of 60,000,000
pounds in 1965 to 190,000,000 pounds in 1970. By 1975 it is
estimated that Japan will be consuming over 300,000, 000 pounds

of nickel.

Although Japan has no ores of its own, it is a major
producer of nickel products based on ores from New Caledonia,
Indonesia, Australia and Canada. Immediately following World
War II, Japan depended almost entirely on imports from Canada.
The establishment, and careful protection, of a Japanese nickel
industry was brought about by the rapid industrial reconstruction
of Japan, the worldwide nickel shortage caused by the Korean War
and U.S. and U,K. stockpiling policies. As a result, it has
become one of the facts of life that Japan is determined to, and
will for probably a long time ahead, produce internally the bulk

of her requirements for primary nickel products.
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Although Canada is presently the producer of over 60 per
cent of the free world's nickel, her share of the Japanese market
is under 20,000,000 pounds or 10 per cent of the whole. In order
to acquire a foothold in Japan before the opportunity was foreclosed
by arrangements between Japan and alternative sources of ore supply,
International Nickel joined with Japanese partners in 1965, in a
jointly owned project, the Tokyo Nickel Company, to produce
nickel oxide 75, which is directly competitive with ferro-nickel
and other nickel oxide produced in Japan. Feed for the plant is our

refined nickel sulphide product exported from Canada.

Because of the needs of its other customers suffering from
short supply, Inco had been supplying this plant 10,000, 000 pounds
a year only. Because of the Ontario government's policy that the
refined nickel sulphide product which we export maximize to the
most practicable extent Ontario and Canadian employment, the
permission of the Ontario government was required to permit us
to export this product, which is virtually the same as the nickel
oxide 75 produced for direct sale in Ontario, before the sulphur
has been removed. The Ontario cabinet granted this permission
and also, last August, permission to increase the feed by an

additional annual rate of 15,000,000 pounds.,
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We feel that their decision is an example of the type
of imaginative flexibility that is needed if Canada is to acquire

and broaden its foothold in the Japanese nickel industry.

By making it possible to participate on a slightly larger
scale in this activity -- and thereby meet some pressing immediate
Japanese needs -- Canada's overall competitive position is
strengthened in the face of the active efforts of the Japanese
to import ores from other sources. It may even have the effect
of retarding, or causing a re-thinking of, the participation of

Japanese interests in nickel-producing operations elsewhere .

While fully appreciating the concern of Canada's Federal
and Provincial governments that maximum benefit, in terms of
employment and utilization of local facilities, be derived from
its local industries, I would like to suggest that the willingness
to accommodate specific circumstances such as those in Japan by

these governments is to the long range advantage of Canada.

Another example of International Nickel's efforts to
strengthen its presence in Japan is the market development
company it has established there, International Nickel Japan

Limited. This company provides all segments of Japanese industry
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with scientific and technical information that International
Nickel provides in many other countries of the world, including
Canada, the U.S., the United Kingdom, and the European

Common Market countries.

It is unlikeiy that there will be an imminent change in
Japan's protective policies -- or one which will lead to the
immediate creation of reciprocal trade policies. As indicated
by the recent abolition of the import quotas for nickel and a
slight gradual reduction in duties, the long range trend is probably
toward a more liberal policy. I feel that no industrial sector is

better placed to take advantage of it than the nickel industry.

I think it is clear that the development of the nickel
potential in the developed and developing countries in the Pacific
area offers a challenge to Canadian industry. But because of the
great strengths which that industry has in mining, processing,
marketing and financial know-how, it also offers an exceptional
opportunity. This is also an opportunity to implement creatively
and with mutual benefit the admirable goals of the Canadian

government foreign policy paper on the Pacific.

There is no doubt that there will be a positive Canadian
presence in all of the areas I have referred to. I am confident that,
as in the past, the same understanding and flexibility which Federal
and Provincial governments have shown will continue and that this

presence will be a profitable one.
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APPENDIX “C”

STATEMENT BY K. H. J. CLARKE, CHAIRMAN, CANADIAN NATIONAL
COMMITTEE, PACIFIC BASIN ECONOMIC COOPERATION COUNCIL
BEFORE THE CANADIAN SENATE FOREIGN AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

November 24, 1970

The Committee requested that, in my capacity of
Chairman of the Canadian National Committee of the Pacific
Basin Economic Cooperation Council, I outline the aims and
objectives of that organization. I appreciate very much the

opportunity to do so.

The Pacific Basin Economic Cooperation Council is
an informal organization of senior business executives in
Australia, Canada, Japan, New Zealand and the United States.

The Council operates entirely under private auspices.

The main purposes of PBECC are twofold. One is to
strengthen economic and business relationships among the five
member nations. The other is to generate greater economic and
social progress in the Asian developing countries of the Pacific

Basin.

In the PBECC Covenant, adopted at the First General
Meeting in Sydney, Australia, in May, 1968, the members agreed

to engage in activities on a multilateral basis as follows:

A) Promote economic collaboration among the member
countries, including; expansion of trade, exchange

of capital and industrial technology, promotion of
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tourism, joint studies, exchange of economic
information, clarification of economic problems,
and promotion of cultural and scientific pursuits.
B) Cooperate with the developing countries in their
efforts to achieve self-sustaining economic growth
including, for example: promotion of capital and
technology in agriculture, mining and other
industrial fields; expansion of trade in products
of the developing countries; development of
cultural and scientific exchange; and promotion

of tourism.

The first president of the Pacific Basin Council was Shigeo
Nagano, Chairman of Nippon Steel Company. He was succeeded
in 1970 by The Honourable Sir Edward Warren, Managing Director,
The Wallarah Coal Company Limited of Australia. The international
headquarters of PBECC rotates among the member countries along

with the office of president.

The executive arm of PBECC is its Steering Committee,
composed of three representatives from each of the five national
committecs ., It meets twice yearly to discuss policy questions and

to give direction to the Council's studies and action projects.



: 52

Foreign Affairs

24-11-1970

The major programs of the Council are carried forward
through five international standing committees operating in
the fields of economic development (including trade), natural
resources, human resources, transportation and tourism.
Canada's representatives on these committees are business
leaders having specialized knowledge and experience in their
committees' fields. These committees endeavour to strike a
reasonable balance in their activities between action-oriented
programs and discussion forums. Their range has included
such topics as monetary problems in the Pacific countries;
business opportunities in Indonesia, Korea and the Republic
of China; population and food problems in Asia and the Far East;
barriers to trade among the Pacific nations; Japan's capital
liberalization and foreign investment programs; the long-term
outlook for business in each of the PBECC countries; and

potentials for post-Viet Nam development.

While PBECC is the exclusive domain of competitive
enterprise, it maintains close liaison with many governmental
and international agencies including, for example, the Asian

Development Bank, the Economic Commission for Asia and the
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Far East, UNESCO, etc. Its recommendations involving
government policy are brought before the governments
concerned by the respective National Committees which, in
turn, report upon the responses received. In matters not
requiring govemment. action, the Council endeavours to

organize its own implementation.

The Canadian Committee for Pacific Basin Economic
Cooperation is jointly sponsored by the Canadian Manufacturers'
Association and the Canadian Chamber of Commerce., Its
membership is widely representative of the whole spectrum
of Canadian business - resource industries, manufacturers,
financial institutions, transportation companies, consulting
engineers and a variety of other professional people - all of
whom share an enthusiasm for Canada's potential as a member
of the Pacific community and a desire to help realize that

potential.

Our Committee has received the most cooperative attention
of the Government of Canada and its representatives abroad. Canadian
delegates to PBECC meetings have benefited from advance government

briefings and, on their return, have reported in detail on their
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international discussions. In those instances when we have
made recommendations to the government as a result of PBECC
decisions, the response has been interested, serious and

constructive.

The principal preoccupation of the Canadian Committee
at present is the planning of the 4th General Meeting of PBECC,
to be held in Vancouver in May, 1971. On that occasion we will
be hosts to some 350 people, including not only the delegates from
member countries, but guest participants from ten developing

nations of East and South East Asia.

A central focus of the meeting will be to find means of
stimulating private investment in the less developed countries
through some form of international security against expropriation.
PBECC is keenly aware of the accomplishments of governmental
aid in improving economic and social conditions in these countries,
but we believe their development will not achieve the levels needed
until they gain the confidence of private investors and the immense
creative force of competitive enterprise to provide gainful employment

and rising standards of living.
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PBECC is still a very young organization and,
consequently, its record of concrete achievement is not
long. It has, however, from the outset succeeded in achieving
a frank exchange of views, a sense of purpose, an acceptance
of joint responsibility for the solution of international problems,
and an enthusiastic willingness to work together constructively.
We believe it merits the strong support being given by its

Canadian Committee.

Queen’s Printer for Canada, Ottawa, 1970
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Orders of Reference

Extract from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the
Senate, Thursday, October 8, 1970:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator McDonald moved second-
ed by the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Foreign
Affairs be authorized to examine and report to the
Senate from time to time on any matter relating to
foreign and Commonwealth affairs generally, on any
matter assigned to the said Committee by the Rules
of the Senate, and, in particular, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, on any matter concerning
the Pacific area with particular emphasis on the
position set out in the policy paper “Foreign Policy
for Canadians: Pacific”;

That the said Committee be empowered to engage
the services of such counsel and technical, clerical
and other personnel as may be required for the
foregoing purposes, at such rates of remuneration
and reimbursement as the Committee may deter-
mine, and to compensate witnesses by reimburse-
ment of travelling and living expenses, if required,
in such amount as the Committee may determine;
and

That the Committee, before assuming any financial
obligations in connection with the said examination
and report, submit to the Standing Committee on
Internal Economy and Contingent Accounts a budget
for approval setting forth in reasonable detail the
forecast of expenses to be incurred.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>